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          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I want to

          3  apologize for starting late.

          4                 Welcome to this joint hearing of the

          5  Committees of Government Operations and Technology

          6  in Government.

          7                 I am Simcha Felder, Chair of this

          8  Committee on Governmental Operations, and I am

          9  joined by Council Member Gale Brewer, who is the

         10  Chair of the Committee on Technology in Government,

         11  who's the Co-chair of this hearing, as well as, to

         12  my right I have Council Member Charles Barron, and

         13  to my left, Council Member Inez Dickens.

         14                 In addition, first with the Committee

         15  on Governmental Operations, to my right is DeNora

         16  Johnson, the Counsel to the Committee, and all the

         17  way in the back by the American flag is Michael

         18  Castletano (phonetic) my Legislative Aid.

         19                 With the Committee on Technology in

         20  Government is Jeff Baker, to the left of Council

         21  Member Brewer, who's Counsel to the Committee, and

         22  Colleen Pagter, Policy Analyst to the Committee.

         23                 Today the Committees are very eager

         24  to hear the testimony from the City Board of

         25  Elections, the State Board of Elections, Co-chairman
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          2  Douglas Kellner, appreciate very much your coming on

          3  short notice, we're not done yet, we are eager to

          4  hear your testimony, and good government and

          5  advocacy groups regarding the State and City's

          6  Boards' progress to become fully HAVA compliant, how

          7  they plan to address security issues associated with

          8  the DRE's, PB/OS, voting systems, the State Board of

          9  Elections and their consultants are reviewing.

         10                 This hearing will also be used to

         11  discuss Resolution Number 131 - 2006, sponsored by

         12  Council Member Charles Barron, which is relevant to

         13  the discussion of voting system security issues.

         14                 I am sure that Council Member Barron

         15  will go into the Resolution's content in greater

         16  detail very soon, but briefly, it urges the State

         17  Board of Elections to certify a paper ballot/Optical

         18  scan system, and for the City Board of Elections to

         19  select a PB/OS system as the permanent voting system

         20  for New York City.

         21                 As always, I would like to urge

         22  representatives of the Board to remain for the

         23  duration of the hearing to hear the testimony

         24  provided by all of the witnesses, and if time

         25  permits, to address some of the issues and
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          2  suggestions raised by those witnesses.

          3                 As the State and City Boards work to

          4  become fully HAVA compliant, it is imperative that

          5  the Boards, the Council and Administration, good

          6  government groups and advocacy groups continue to

          7  work collaboratively to ensure that the voting

          8  system ultimately implemented for use in this City

          9  is secure and reliable.

         10                 The Council remains committed to

         11  protecting the interests of the voters of New York

         12  City by ensuring that there is sufficient oversight

         13  of the City Board during the election and

         14  modernization process.

         15                 I would like to highlight that

         16  despite the State's lack of full compliance with

         17  HAVA's mandate, New Yorkers are in a unique position

         18  to learn from the experiences of other states that

         19  have used the voting systems we are considering for

         20  our elections.  So, that when the City Board selects

         21  a permanent voting system for New York City, I hope

         22  that it will select, not only the best system, but

         23  one that stands the test of time like the lever

         24  machines that they will replace, and have been used

         25  in New York for approximately 45 years, and I would
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          2  just say to you that my own opinion is that it will

          3  be very difficult to replace them, no matter what is

          4  chosen, an essential use of new voting technology

          5  does not destroy voters confidence in our electoral

          6  system.

          7                 Finally, I'd like to thank Council

          8  Member Brewer the Chair of the Committee on

          9  Technology in Government for working so diligently

         10  with me and my staff to prepare for today's joint

         11  hearing.

         12                 As our Committee's continue to

         13  monitor the Board's efforts to become fully HAVA

         14  compliant, I look forward to further coordination

         15  and collaboration between us.

         16                 Before I turn it over to Council

         17  Member Brewer, I just want to repeat the rules that

         18  take place in my committee hearings, and unless

         19  Council Member Brewer wants otherwise, that's what

         20  will continue.

         21                 First of all if anyone wants to

         22  speak, you must sign up within 15 minutes from the

         23  start of the hearing.  So if somebody comes a half

         24  an hour late, it has nothing to do with the fact of

         25  whether I like that person or don't, but most of you
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          2  were here before we started, you know we started

          3  late but somebody  -- I feel that if you're really

          4  interested in the hearing, unless there's some great

          5  excuse, you should be here and sit through everybody

          6  else's testimony, if they're going to have to sit

          7  through yours.  So 15 minutes, if you're not signed

          8  up by 10:30, we're not accepting your testimony, or

          9  let me say it in a positive way.  If you like to

         10  speak, you must be signed up by 10:30.  That was 15

         11  minutes from the start of the hearing.

         12                 In addition, those testifying will

         13  have two minutes to speak.  I'm telling you that in

         14  advance so that you can look through your notes, and

         15  make them as concise as possible.  If you repeat the

         16  material that was said, I will stop you, and again,

         17  it's not because I like the other person, it's just

         18  because whoever said it, said it before you, and I'm

         19  sure that you do not want to hear the same thing

         20  twice, even if you're the one saying it.

         21                 So if you have testimony, and you're

         22  the first to mention some idea, that's great.  But

         23  if you've heard somebody say it, there's no need to

         24  repeat it because there are a lot of people sitting

         25  here and have other obligations, and we appreciate
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          2  the fact that they community people who are not on

          3  the City payroll come out of their own time for

          4  these important issues. So, we want to make sure the

          5  time is used constructively.

          6                 With that, I would like to turn over

          7  the microphone to Council Member Brewer, who's much

          8  nicer than me, and give her an opportunity to

          9  provide her opening remarks.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you

         11  very much, council member.

         12                 The reason that Council Member Simcha

         13  Felder is so excellent as Chair of this Committee is

         14  because he's intelligent and practical, and for this

         15  issue of HAVA and voting machines we need

         16  practicality.

         17                 I'm just going to be very quick, and

         18  just talk about what many of you know, which is that

         19  Congress passed HAVA in 2002 to improve the

         20  administration of elections.  It requires all states

         21  to replace punch- card and lever voting machines

         22  like ours, create a statewide computerized

         23  interactive voter registration list, provide

         24  accessible voting machines, and become compliant by

         25  November 2004.  But of course, New York received a
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          2  waiver, one time, to extend the deadline to the

          3  first election for federal office held after January

          4  1st, 2006, and we'll see where that goes.

          5                 Voting systems, we call them DRE's,

          6  but Direct Recording Electronic, were Voter-

          7  Verifiable Paper Audit Trails. It's a touchscreen or

          8  push button voting system.  It electronically

          9  captures the voters choices, and displays the

         10  choices on a paper record within the machine.

         11                 The one that we're talking about

         12  today in terms of the resolution, the Paper-

         13  Based/Optical Scan, we call them Opticals, Optical

         14  scanners, PS/OS machines, feature a paper ballot

         15  where voters mark their selections manually, feed

         16  the ballot into a scanner that records the vote,

         17  usually across from the voting booth.  Both systems

         18  are susceptible to security issues, including the

         19  insertion of corrupt software into the machine, and

         20  program malfunctions that cause mis- counts or lost

         21  votes.

         22                 New York State's compliance in 2005,

         23  the State Legislature passed the Election Reform and

         24  Modernization Act, authorizing the local Boards of

         25  Elections to make the final decision about what
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          2  system should replace the current lever machines.

          3  The State has mandated that local Boards may choose

          4  between DRE's with VVPAT and Scanners, PB/OS.

          5                 Before the Boards can make a decision

          6  the State must first publish standards for all

          7  machines, conduct public testing and certify the

          8  specific machines from which the local Boards can

          9  choose, and I know the Board has certainly here in

         10  New York been trying to do that.

         11                 New York State compliance with HAVA

         12  to date, obviously New York is not fully compliant,

         13  in February`06 the Department of Justice sued our

         14  state over our failure to replace the machines, or

         15  to comply with other HAVA guidelines.

         16                 As part of a remedial plan for the

         17  2006 election, the City's Board of Elections

         18  implemented a ballot- marking device as the voting

         19  machine for people with disabilities, or anybody who

         20  wanted to use them.

         21                 The State Board is not expected to

         22  certify new voting systems until May 2007 at the

         23  earliest, and of course, Saturday's papers had a

         24  discussion about the 2008 probably being the first

         25  time that we would use any new machines. Since I'm
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          2  the one that caused the lateness this morning, I

          3  apologize.  Let's proceed.

          4                 We just were honored to have Council

          5  Member Peter Vallone from Queens here, and I know

          6  that an opening statement from Council Member Barron

          7  is forthcoming right now because he is the prime

          8  sponsor of the Resolution.

          9                 Council Member Barron.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well I want

         11  to thank both Chairs very much for this timely and

         12  critically important hearing, and I'm glad that

         13  you're voting it out of Committee today.  And

         14  hopefully real soon we'll get a vote out of

         15  Committee, so that at least, the express political

         16  will of the number one city council in the world,

         17  would be made very, very clearly to the public.

         18                 I think everybody knows that we fight

         19  very, very hard for honest, observable, and easily

         20  verified elections.  That constitutes the very

         21  foundation, the very basis of any representative

         22  democracy, and looking at what happened in Florida,

         23  and what happened in Ohio, we can honestly say that

         24  they were dishonest elections and with that, we

         25  wound up having a selected President who was never
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          2  elected, and so we in the Black community in

          3  particular, fought very, very hard to make sure that

          4  every one of our votes count, and that elections are

          5  fair and that we have the kind of technology that

          6  will make it easy for people to use, that would make

          7  verifiability very, very necessary.  And that's why

          8  we think the Optical Scanner, the paper ballots, is

          9  the way to go, and we are highly recommending to the

         10  City Council to support it, and also to the Board of

         11  Elections.

         12                 We just want to say the few reasons

         13  why because I think as the date has been pushed back

         14  to June to make a determination on this issue by the

         15  Board of Elections, we still want to in a very

         16  expeditious way get this through, but in our

         17  research and doing all the work that we've done

         18  around the possibilities of technology that will

         19  take over here in New York City, we observed that

         20  the paper ballots avoid issues with fraud detection,

         21  prevent and correct errors and tampering because

         22  they can be easily secured and stored and handled,

         23  which allows election observers to meaningfully

         24  witness election procedures and vote- counting, and

         25  I think that that's critical to what we want to do.
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          2  We want the votes to count, and you want people to

          3  be able to easily do that.  Optical Scanners in the

          4  polling site would detect errors and ballot-

          5  marking, such as over votes, under votes, stray

          6  marks, and enable voters to correct such errors

          7  before their ballot is even cast, which also gives

          8  us an ability to verify our votes.

          9                 Optical Scanners have proven their

         10  reliability by being successfully used in elections

         11  nationwide for over 30 years, and are currently used

         12  by 30 percent of the American voters, and 46 percent

         13  of the American jurisdictions.

         14                 Optical Scanners can easily be

         15  programmed by bipartisan technical staff at the New

         16  York City Board of Elections without the need for

         17  ongoing involvement of vendors, whereas, the DRE

         18  voting systems do not lend themselves to complete

         19  public control as vendors typically retain an

         20  interest in the hardware, software, or source code

         21  of such technologies, and the Optical Scanners are

         22  more cost effective than the DRE's.

         23                 So, we are looking at for all of

         24  those reasons, and many, many more as you'll hear in

         25  this hearing for those who will testify.  We have

                                                            18

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  got over 43 council members are supportive, or on

          3  board, including the Public Advocate, and we're

          4  saying to the Chairs of these Committees, and to the

          5  City Council, and to the Speaker of the City

          6  Council, it's time to get on board with the rest of

          7  the City and the rest of the country because people

          8   --  every hearing I've gone to, 90 percent of the

          9  people were supportive of paper ballots, and Optical

         10  Scanners, and we are hoping that this City Council

         11  can be the leaders in this question of fairness and

         12  honesty and verifiability in voting.

         13                 I thank you very much, Mr. Chairs  --

         14    Madam Chair and Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Our first witness will be Doug

         18  Kellner from the New York State Board of Elections.

         19                 MR. KELLNER:  Good morning Chairman

         20  Felder and Chairman Brewer, and members Barron and

         21  Vallone.

         22                 I want to applaud the City  --  and

         23  of course, Council Member Dickens.  I want to

         24  applaud the City Council for holding these hearings,

         25  and continuing New York City's role of remaining in
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          2  the forefront of monitoring the implementation of

          3  the Help America Vote Act.

          4                 I have been very pleased at the role

          5  that the New York City Board of Elections has played

          6  in this process, that working with the City Council

          7  and the Mayor's Task Force on Election

          8  Modernization.  The New York City Board of Elections

          9  is really ahead of the curve.  In my opinion, they

         10  are ready to do what needs to be done when the State

         11  Board is finally able to certify voting equipment as

         12  suitable for use in New York State.

         13                 To get right to that issue, as

         14  Council Member Brewer indicated that right now,

         15  under the best circumstances, we will not be able to

         16  certify voting equipment before the early part of

         17  May, and that's under the best circumstances.

         18  That's if everything works perfectly between now and

         19  May 7th.  That has not been the case in the last

         20  year, and it is unlikely to be the case as we

         21  proceed.  So, May 7th is just the earliest possible

         22  date. It's not a promise date when we say that we

         23  will be able to certify voting equipment.

         24                 What has happened?  Well, much of it

         25  is actually good news in the sense that New York,
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          2  while it may be one of the last states to actually

          3  implement the new voting machine requirements of the

          4  Help America Vote Act, is really in the lead in

          5  terms of the rigor of its regulations, and as my

          6  testimony points out in more detail, New York is one

          7  of the first states to require a Voter- Verifiable

          8  Paper Audit Trail on direct recording electronic

          9  machines.

         10                 New York is one of only two states

         11  that prohibits electronic communication with any

         12  kind of voting machine, whether it's a DRE or a

         13  Ballot Scanning Device.  New York is the only state

         14  that requires that the software source- code be

         15  placed in escrow, and New York is the only state

         16  still so far that requires the voting machine

         17  vendors to comply with the 2005 Voluntary Voting

         18  System Guidelines.  That's remarkable because all of

         19  the other states have purchased equipment under the

         20  2002 standards. Eventually, they will have to

         21  retrofit or replace all of that equipment that they

         22  have bought, and they will not have new HAVA money

         23  in order to pay for those costs of bringing their

         24  equipment up to date.

         25                 New York has said that we're going to
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          2  get this right the first time we do it, right from

          3  the beginning, so that we don't avoid the  --  so

          4  that we don't have the problems that so many other

          5  states had in their sloppy and hasty efforts to

          6  comply with the Help America Vote Act that really

          7  backfired and had the result of denying tens of

          8  thousands of people their right to vote.

          9                 In New York, one of the key things

         10  that we've seen is that the voting industry isn't

         11  really ready to comply with the standards that New

         12  York has set up.  When we adopted those regulations

         13  in the early part of 2006, the vendors said they

         14  would be able to comply.  Instead, they were months

         15  behind schedule in actually submitting their

         16  machines for testing and the certification process.

         17  Then as we went through the certification process,

         18  we found that none of the machines was ready to

         19  comply.  The vendors have been working diligently to

         20  try to correct those problems, and it is possible

         21  that we may have a machine ready for certification

         22  by May.  No promises.

         23                 The rest is in my written testimony,

         24  and I am happy to answer any questions if you have

         25  any.
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          2                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I have a

          3  question, we'll see about the reason that the

          4  machines are being held up, security being one of

          5  them, and I just wondered technologically what we

          6  can do to enhance security?

          7                 MR. KELLNER:  Security is one of the

          8  major issues because New York has extremely rigorous

          9  security requirements as I pointed out in the body

         10  of the testimony, requirements that very few other

         11  states have.

         12                 One of the problems with security has

         13  been that the testing authority, Ciber, has not been

         14  able to gear up to test to those New York standards,

         15  and that has been on of the major factors in the

         16  delay that our independent consultants, Nystech

         17  (phonetic) have continually rejected the Ciber

         18  security testing plans and at this point, Ciber has

         19  been told to rewrite them again from scratch.  If we

         20  actually do continue with Ciber, and do not

         21  terminate their contract, that's where the delay is

         22  now, is preparing adequate security tests for each

         23  of the machines that have been submitted.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  If you do

         25  terminate, obviously, I assume that would push up
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          2  the date from May 7th, but would there be other

          3  consequences?

          4                 MR. KELLNER:  Well, the biggest

          5  consequence is how much of what Ciber has already

          6  done can be used by the new testing authority, and

          7  how much would have to be re- done.  That's one of

          8  the things we have to look at.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I know many

         10  colleagues have questions, but I just had a question

         11  about  --  I know that you cannot by state law use

         12  wireless components, which would make sense, but I

         13  just didn't know how do you, I guess that would be

         14  part of the security issue, is that true about the

         15  wireless?

         16                 MR. KELLNER:  Yes.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Then, how do

         18  you, sort of, do other kinds of networking?

         19                 How does the whole system going to be

         20  networked without the wireless?

         21                 MR. KELLNER:  Well, that's the point

         22  of the State's statute that there is no networking

         23  of the system, so that you have to have individual

         24  access to each voting machine itself.  That would be

         25  done through a hard medium, whether it be a card, or
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          2  whether it be a disk that would be submitted.

          3                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

          4

          5                 Council Member Dickens who's been so

          6  patient.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

          8  much, Chairs.

          9                 I have a question, and maybe

         10  Commissioner, and thank you for your testimony.  By

         11  the way, I want to commend the New York City Board

         12  for having the forums throughout the community about

         13    --  concerning this very, very important issue.

         14                 A question about the cost of repairs.

         15    Has a summary been conducted by the State to

         16  ascertain what the repair cost would be, not just at

         17  the Board, but at the polling site?               Because

         18  I want to make sure that if the printer or the

         19  whichever, whether it's the Optical Scan is

         20  purchased that we have not only the personnel

         21  available to come out, but what is the cost going to

         22  be in order for those machines to be up and running

         23  as quickly as possible?

         24                 Has that been looked at, and are you

         25  thinking about purchasing additional printers in
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          2  order to  --  when you have the people that go

          3  around to make the repairs, that they can bring a

          4  printer if the printer is unrepairable on site?  At

          5  the polling site I am talking about now.

          6                 MR. KELLNER:  Council member, that's

          7  an excellent point that you are making, that the

          8  cost of repair is a significant cost that should be

          9  factored into the evaluation of the costs of the

         10  contracts.

         11                 The contracts themselves that the

         12  vendors have submitted do indicate what the hourly

         13  rates are for the cost, but I think you make a good

         14  point that the State Board should, when it does its

         15  final report, determine how many hours are actually

         16  needed in any given type of repair, and what would

         17  be reasonable to anticipate.

         18                 As far as buying extra parts, I would

         19  certainly urge that the counties do buy extra parts,

         20  but that's a decision that each of the County Boards

         21  or the City Board of Elections has to make when they

         22  do the purchasing.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you.

         24                 Now one last question, will the local

         25  Boards  -- will our staff within the local Boards,

                                                            26

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  are they going to be trained immediately, and with

          3  the contracts, are they going to be accompanying

          4  those people that the Boards send out to the polling

          5  sites?

          6                 Because that's where my concern is,

          7  if there's a breakdown with the printers.

          8                 MR. KELLNER:  I think you should

          9  address that to Mr. Ravitz when he testifies because

         10  it's really a City Board of Elections issue, and all

         11  I can say is that they have been doing a great job

         12  of preparing, and I'm sure that Mr. Ravitz will be

         13  able to give you a detailed answer on that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         15  much, Commissioner.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Very

         17  quickly, again, back to the security issue.

         18                 I mean if you, in fact, have a card

         19  or if you have a disk, at least in my limited

         20  situation, as termed just a user, those can be

         21  corrupted, they can have challenges.

         22                 So, what again is the  --  or maybe

         23  we don't know yet, are the security processes for

         24  making sure that that doesn't happen?  Again, is

         25  this part of the contract?
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          2                 MR. KELLNER:  No, you're absolutely

          3  right.  It's not part of the contract, it's part of

          4  the testing process, and New York has minimum

          5  standards for security.

          6                 One of the things that we are going

          7  to do in the final report is indicate which systems

          8  are more robust with security than meet the minimum

          9  requirements, but the basic requirement is that

         10  there has to be some type of encryption so that not

         11  anybody can submit the information into the machine,

         12  whether it be a ballot scanner, or whether it be a

         13  DRE.  That encryption is a required element of the

         14  security.

         15                 Each of the vendors is required to

         16  provide a detailed security plan when they submit

         17  their machine for certification.  Those security

         18  plans are not public because we don't want them to

         19  give a roadmap to people publicly as to what to do.

         20  But, it will be part of the testing process, and it

         21  will be something that will be reviewed in summary

         22  form so that the counties will have an idea of which

         23  machines provide better security than the other

         24  machines.

         25                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Is there a
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          2  difference, and this is my ignorance, between the

          3  security on one machine or the other, the Optical or

          4  the DRE?

          5                 They obviously both have security

          6  challenges, but is it  --  generally whatever

          7  machine is selected, or whatever method, would be

          8  the same kind of card, disk, moving it to the

          9  mainframe?

         10                 MR. KELLNER:  Well, you're correct

         11  that the security issues are significant for both

         12  types of systems.

         13                 Each vendor addresses security in a

         14  different way, and some of the systems have quite

         15  robust security features in them where there are

         16  multiple layers of encryption that would make it

         17  very difficult to access the main chip

         18  electronically through the medium that's inserted

         19  into it.

         20                 You also have physical security, so

         21  if you can simply pop it open at the poll site when

         22  nobody's looking, for example, before the election,

         23  while the machine is just lying around the poll site

         24  waiting to be used, you can actually change the

         25  whole chip, and so, you do need physical security as
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          2  well as encryption in order to make sure that

          3  adverse consequences don't occur.

          4                 But the bottom line is, with each

          5  system there is a paper record created.  With a

          6  valid scanning system, you have the actual ballot

          7  itself, and that's the ultimate security because if

          8  you don't trust the count on the ballot scanning

          9  machine, you can still manually count the ballots.

         10                 With the Direct Recording Electronic

         11  Machines, you have the Verifiable Paper Audit Trail,

         12  which is certainly less convenient to audit, if you

         13  have to, in the case of a re- count, but it is

         14  available for that purpose.

         15                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 MR. KELLNER:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Council Member

         19  Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  It's good to

         21  see that you are supporting the paper ballot, that

         22  what you said, right?

         23                 MR. KELLNER:  I think in general

         24  council member, most people know my views on the

         25  subject, but I'm trying not to get pinned down too
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          2  publicly because if the  --  the State law provides

          3  that if a local board is unable to decide, than the

          4  State Board of Elections has to choose the system

          5  for them, and we have a duty to see that both

          6  systems get certified if they pass the requirements,

          7  so I've been trying to remain officially neutral.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I'm concerned

          9  about, and I'll ask Commissioner Ravitz these

         10  questions too, about insider tampering.

         11                 We have written down some questions,

         12  my office and our supporters, and insider tampering,

         13  we want to make sure that doesn't happen, and we're

         14  going to be asking the Commissioner if there's some

         15  kind of public demonstration, arrangement, by

         16  independent experts that we can come up with to

         17  really demonstrate how insider tampering can occur

         18  because even when you have some experts at the Board

         19  of Elections, they may not have the same kind of

         20  expertise on insider tampering, how these machines

         21  can be used for that  --  all of the machines, and

         22  would you be supportive of some kind of a public

         23  demonstration and us joining the City  --  this

         24  would be more for Commissioner Ravitz, but the idea

         25  of having some demonstrations so that we can make
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          2  sure that we avoid insider tampering?

          3                 MR. KELLNER:  Absolutely council

          4  member, and you're absolutely right that that is one

          5  of the major security threats because the insiders

          6  always have more knowledge, and almost be

          7  definition, they have access to the machines, and of

          8  course, that's still a threat to the lever machines

          9  because you can change the counters even before and

         10  after the election with insider access, and there

         11  are significant insider threats with both ballot

         12  scanning and with Direct Recording Electronic

         13  Machines.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Yes, because

         15  it was quite disturbing to hear one of the vendors

         16  tell us that you just can't stop that, that's going

         17  to happen, and just said it like  --  and we got

         18  other reports that 44 percent  --  this happens 44

         19  percent of the time in organizations with different

         20  machinery and he was basically saying it cannot be

         21  avoided, and I just hope--

         22                 MR. KELLNER:  Well, I don't agree

         23  that it can't be avoided, but it requires attention

         24  and commitment to enforcing procedures at the local

         25  Boards of Elections in order to make sure that
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          2  insider access has to be on a bipartisan basis, and

          3  that there are controls in place so that insider

          4  tampering becomes much more difficult.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Right, and

          6  just on costs, and we'll be asking of course, the

          7  New York City Board of Elections Commissioner this

          8  question as well.

          9                 We have been trying to get  --  do

         10  you have a sense of the cost analysis for each

         11  machine and just?

         12                 MR. KELLNER:  Yes, I don't think

         13  there's any question council member that the ballot

         14  scanning system in New York City will be only a

         15  fraction of the cost of using Direct Recording

         16  Electronic Machines.  My own estimate is that it's

         17  probably only a third of the cost.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 MR. KELLNER:  You're welcome.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         22                 I have a few questions, and before I

         23  ask these questions I just want to repeat something

         24  that I mentioned at one of the forums that I joined

         25  Councilman Barron at, at Medgar Evers College, is
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          2  that, that in our quest to try to come up with a

          3  good system that satisfies all the needs, we still

          4  have to be cognizant of the fact that many elderly

          5  people, and whenever I think about these things, I

          6  think about my own parents.

          7                 So, if my mother who is 87 walks into

          8  a machine, no matter which one of the systems that

          9  we use, she's going to be frightened and anxious

         10  about using some new system.  So that whatever we

         11  decide at the end, including making sure that

         12  everyone is able to use the machines, we have to

         13  take into consideration the ability of those that

         14  have been using the machines easily before to be

         15  able to use them again easily, without difficulty,

         16  and I think that at the forum being able to use some

         17  of the machines, I think a lot of them, a lot of

         18  them, and I'm not interested in discussing which

         19  ones, have problems. I think that some of the tests

         20  that the City Board of Elections have been doing

         21  with people have been showing that, but in any case,

         22  as of today to your knowledge, are any of the voting

         23  systems fully compliant with the Standards of the

         24  State Board?

         25                 MR. KELLNER:  Not one of them is.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

          3                 MR. KELLNER:  They are working on

          4  trying to make them compliant.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So we're almost

          6  at February, and there's  --  none of the systems

          7  are compliant at this point?

          8                 MR. KELLNER:  That's right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, now 2008

         10  is a Presidential election year, which usually means

         11  a higher voter turnout.

         12                 Are you concerned about the local

         13  Boards being able to implement it in time, being

         14  able to implement things in time?

         15                 MR. KELLNER:  I think we're all very

         16  concerned about that.

         17                 I think that  --  speaking for the

         18  whole state is, there's a consensus that we should

         19  do this right, and we should not rush into anything

         20  before each local Board is actually ready to do it

         21  in a way that they're sure that they're not going to

         22  be depriving people of the right to vote by

         23  switching technologies.            March 2008 is now

         24  the target date, but there are lots of problems with

         25  that.  For one thing, most Boards of Elections
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          2  personnel take their vacations not in the summertime

          3  but in December and January, so that those are  --

          4  that's the most difficult time to set up the

          5  training programs required to bring in a new system.

          6

          7                 September 2008 may be a more

          8  realistic date as the earliest possible date when we

          9  can do this.  I certainly support those who have

         10  been saying we should put it off until 2009, but

         11  under the Federal law we have to do it at the

         12  earliest possible time that we can come into

         13  compliance.

         14                 So, I think it's our view that we're

         15  going to have to be ready to do this at 2008, if

         16  it's possible, if we have a voting system that

         17  passes certification, unless Congress changes the

         18  law to put it off to 2009, and many people have

         19  called on Congress to do just that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  If that were

         21  done, the issue of loosing Federal funds would not

         22  be a problem?

         23                 If Congress  --  is that true?

         24                 MR. KELLNER:  Well, Congress would

         25  have to change that part of the law as well to roll
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          2  over the Federal funds.

          3                 In my view on a statutory basis, we

          4  have already lost it.  The statute said that the $50

          5  million for lever voting machine replacement had to

          6  be returned if the levers were not in place by

          7  January 1st, 2006.

          8                 So now, New York has not actually

          9  given back the money yet, but the Federal government

         10  has asked for it back, and again, that's an issue

         11  that Congress has to address.  We're only going to

         12  be able to keep the money if Congress authorizes it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, it would be

         14  fair to say that you don't  -- to recap what you

         15  just said, that we have nothing to loose because

         16  either we lost the $50 million already, or we

         17  didn't.

         18                 It's not as though we're loosing any

         19  more, right?

         20                 MR. KELLNER:  That is correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Would you say

         22  that it would be fair to say that the issue with the

         23  machines are probably one of the most critical

         24  issues that is facing government over these years?

         25                 MR. KELLNER:  It's fundamental to our

                                                            37

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  democracy that the voters have faith in our

          3  democratic system, and in order to do that we have

          4  to have a voting process that's transparent,

          5  verifiable, and accurate.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So if I said to

          7  you that Simcha Felder thinks that you do it right,

          8  you do it once, and you do it right, or don't do it

          9  at all.

         10                 Do you have a problem with that?

         11                 MR. KELLNER:  I think we all agree

         12  with that, council member.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, so then

         14  there's no point in implementing a system just to be

         15  compliant with HAVA, which we're already not

         16  compliant with, to rush into something to make sure

         17  to be compliant when we're already not compliant if

         18  it's not perfect because the next time we're going

         19  to do something like this may be, or may not be for

         20  50 years from now. Is that accurate?

         21                 MR. KELLNER:  That's exactly right,

         22  and surprisingly that seems to be a very strong

         23  consensus throughout the State, in the Legislature,

         24  and the people at the Boards of Elections, and I'm

         25  glad to hear it coming from you as well.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, so I want

          3   --  those were, what would you say.  So I just

          4  wanted to confirm that those were comments that I

          5  don't personally  --  I'm not speaking for any of my

          6  colleagues, I do not believe that anything should be

          7  implemented just to implement something.

          8                 MR. KELLNER:  I agree.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  This is far too

         10  important, and far too expensive to go through doing

         11  something and experiment with it.  It doesn't make

         12  any sense.

         13                 We have a chance in government to

         14  finally  --  for people to say that government

         15  works, not the way it usually does, which is buy 700

         16  trucks that don't work.  Right?

         17                 So we have a chance to say,`No, we're

         18  not going to buy trucks, even though we have to do

         19  that,' because they just don't work.

         20                 So maybe once like we have an

         21  opportunity to do something right, and maybe not do

         22  anything at all unless we do it right.

         23                 MR. KELLNER:  That's where we're

         24  coming from.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right.
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          2                 Do any of my colleagues have any

          3  additional questions?  No?

          4                 Thank you very much for coming down

          5  and testifying.

          6                 MR. KELLNER:  Thank you, Councilman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No clapping

          8  please.  I told you only spitting if you want, and

          9  please don't spit at Mr. Kellner.

         10                 John Ravitz, Executive Director of

         11  the New York City Board of Elections, Steve Richman,

         12  General Counsel of the New York City Board, and

         13  George Gonzalez from the Board of Elections.

         14                 MR. RAVITZ:  I am John Ravitz, the

         15  Executive Director of the New York City Board of

         16  Elections.

         17                 MS. GRIMALDI:  Lucille Grimaldi,

         18  Manager of Electronic Voting Systems.

         19                 MR. RAVITZ:  Good morning everyone,

         20  and I want to thank both Chairs of these two

         21  Committees for holding this hearing.

         22                 We have given you two documents, and

         23  let me start right off by saying we are not going

         24  through every page of each of the documents, but in

         25  the course of the discussions this morning, and once
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          2  you and your staff review it, if you have follow up

          3  questions on any of the pages in either one of the

          4  documents, please feel free to give me a call, and

          5  we will walk you through them as well.

          6                 The first document that I'd like to

          7  just touch on is the Board's update on HAVA

          8  compliance, and I want to thank Commissioner Kellner

          9  for his kind words.

         10                 Our staff has been clearly dedicated

         11  to trying to do as much as we can, and sometimes it

         12  feels like we're doing it in the dark, with both

         13  hands tied behind our back to be as ready as we can

         14  to implement new voting systems for the voters of

         15  the City of New York.

         16                 It started in 2002, and when you go

         17  through this at your leisure you'll see pages,

         18  literally four through eight will give you a brief

         19  overview of the Boards involvement in terms of what

         20  we have been doing to get ready prior to even the

         21  beginning of this calendar year.

         22                 I then am going to ask you though now

         23  to turn to page 16, and on page 16 of that document

         24  you will see again the team organization that we

         25  have in place for the implementation of what we call
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          2  Plan A.  Plan B was the ballot- marking devices that

          3  were used in the 2006 cycle that we were forced to

          4  do after the Justice Department sued New York State

          5  for not being in compliance.

          6                 Plan A has always been, obviously,

          7  the new systems, the systems that we will be using

          8  for, hopefully, the next 20, 30- plus years in the

          9  City of New York.  But what I'd like you to focus on

         10  right now, and I will take you through briefly again

         11  some of them, are the 13 boxes at the bottom. Those

         12  are 13 specific work streams that the Board of

         13  Elections will have to do prior to putting these

         14  machines into the poll sites for the first time that

         15  we use them, whenever that date is. They are

         16  critical work streams that we actually have, and the

         17  staff has, sat down and really tried to put

         18  timeframes for each of them.

         19                 We're going to do through a few of

         20  them, but obviously the selection and procurement is

         21  the first piece, but then the rest of them are

         22  critical, and as I said, I'm going to talk to you

         23  about a few of them in the next few moments.  But

         24  whenever you think about the fact that just

         25  selecting a voting machine and that's it, we're
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          2  done, I want to refer you to this page, and to see

          3  exactly the specific work that's going to have to

          4  take place for us to get ready.

          5                 The next page, on page 17 though, is

          6  and again, the selection voting process and where we

          7  are in this process. Now as you know, there are four

          8  vendors that have applied for certification, the

          9  Avante DRE, the ES&S Op Scan, the Diebold Op Scan,

         10  Sequoia's DRE, and they withdrew their Op Scan, but

         11  we are told that there's a possibility that they are

         12  going to be bringing a different Op Scan system in

         13  for certification.  That has not happened yet.  So,

         14  right now, we are looking at those. There is one

         15  other vendor, and I think this is also very

         16  important to note, there is one other vendor,

         17  Liberty, that has a DRE system, but they will not be

         18  able to be used in New York City because they cannot

         19  do the language ballots.  So right now, we are

         20  looking at those systems that can do the language

         21  ballots, obviously, for New York City.

         22                 But as you'll see on page 17, the

         23  Board has, and I think in my prior testimony we've

         24  talked about that, we have created an evaluation

         25  team, and the evaluation team consists of Board
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          2  members, Board staff, all with different experiences

          3  in putting on elections, and again, I want to state

          4  that I think it is  --  I am so proud of the work

          5  that our staff has done because, again, when you

          6  think about putting on elections in the largest city

          7  in the country, it doesn't happen over night, and

          8  whether it's Ms. Grimaldi's department, or any of my

          9  other departments, we have I think, continued to

         10  hopefully raise the level of performance, and raised

         11  the bar of performance for the Board over  --

         12  during these interesting months.  But we have an

         13  evaluation team, we have created a selection

         14  criteria, and these selection criteria are the areas

         15  in which the evaluation team will be looking at each

         16  of the systems, and then putting a weighted formula

         17  to that as they develop their report that they will

         18  give to the commissioner's for their

         19  recommendations.

         20                 We have developed  --  we have done

         21  the internal vendor demos, in which the vendors have

         22  come in once to meet with Lucille's department to

         23  begin that process.

         24                 We created and drafted, and again all

         25  of this is on our website, WWW.VOTE.NYC.NY.US, a
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          2  200- plus question, request for information that was

          3  sent to each of the vendors.  Now why is that

          4  important?  Well, the evaluation team spent months

          5  working with our consultants the Gartner Group to

          6  develop these RFI's so that we could deal with

          7  specific questions on how these systems would be for

          8  New York City.  Dealing with security, dealing with

          9  testing, dealing with the support that we would need

         10  from the vendors in terms of training, dealing with

         11  other issues that we feel are going to be very

         12  important as the evaluation teams makes their

         13  recommendation to the commissioners.  Those 200-

         14  plus questions, plus the answers that the vendors

         15  have supplied to us, are also listed on our website.

         16                 So again I encourage anyone who has

         17  not yet seen that, as well as the selection

         18  criteria, that is also on our website.

         19                 We are in the process as Commissioner

         20  (sic) Barron and Felder and Dickens just mentioned,

         21  we have just finished last week what we call our

         22  Five Borough Voter Demos, in which we went to each

         23  borough with the systems.  We asked the vendors to

         24  bring two sets of systems to each of these events,

         25  one in which the vendor did a formal presentation in
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          2  an auditorium, and then outside of that auditorium,

          3  we had the vendors set up another set of their

          4  systems with staff, so that they public at any time

          5  during the course of the evening could literally

          6  just demo them themselves, and ask questions.  The

          7  turnout for most of those in each of the five

          8  boroughs, I think, was very, very positive in terms

          9  of voters having the opportunity to actually see the

         10  systems, and actually work them themselves.

         11                 We have had two public hearings, our

         12  last public hearing was last Tuesday, in which over

         13  160 people attended, so we have now done two public

         14  hearings, five borough demonstrations.

         15                 The next step will be that the

         16  evaluation team will be bringing in the vendors for

         17  what are called`vendor interviews' in which the

         18  vendors will be asked specific questions that the

         19  evaluation team now needs them to answer after

         20  reviewing the RFI, after seeing the vendors at these

         21  public demonstrations, and those meetings will be

         22  set up in the next few weeks.

         23                 Now, I should let you know that all

         24  of the evaluation team meetings will be open to the

         25  public to observe and to watch, but not to ask
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          2  questions or participate.  It's really a chance

          3  though for them to see how the evaluation team has

          4  posed their questions to the vendors.  They can

          5  hear, obviously, the vendors responses, and then the

          6  evaluation team once they finish that piece, will

          7  begin meeting to begin to discuss all the

          8  information that they've gathered, and again, the

          9  RFI's are huge documents, again, this is something

         10  that I think people do need to understand.  If you

         11  fill a binder with the RFI's, they are about this

         12  big for each system.  So the evaluation team has a

         13  lot of work that they have to do to get ready for

         14  this.  But then the evaluation team will begin

         15  meeting again in public to discuss all this

         16  information, and then they will write a report.  In

         17  their report, their goal will to be give a

         18  recommendation to the commissioner's for which

         19  system they believe is the best system to be used

         20  for New York City.

         21                 The day that that report is released

         22  to the commissioner's, it will also be released to

         23  the public, and five days after the report is

         24  released, if the calendar works that way, we will

         25  hold another public hearing for the public to make
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          2  comments on the evaluation teams report and

          3  recommendations to the commissioner's.

          4                 Once that's done, then the

          5  commissioner's will begin again meeting to discuss

          6  the report, to ask the evaluation team members their

          7  questions on the report, and then the commissioner's

          8  ultimately will take a vote to either support the

          9  evaluation team's recommendation or want them to go

         10  a different way.

         11                 That's the format that we have set

         12  and again, a lot of problems can come up, and a lot

         13  of things can happen to deviate that schedule as

         14  we've already seen.  But again, so when you look

         15  through how we have done that, I think that's very

         16  important.

         17                 The next page I'm going to ask you to

         18  look at is page 20, and that is dealing with public

         19  awareness because, again, one of our major goals and

         20  challenges is obviously going to be how are we going

         21  to educate the public on these new voting systems,

         22  and make them feel comfortable about that.

         23                 Well, we are going to bring on a

         24  public relations consultant firm to help us craft

         25  that message, to help us begin to deal with how
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          2  we're going to do the community outreach, how we are

          3  going to reach out to the stakeholders throughout

          4  this city to get them on board, and to help them

          5  help us spread the word about these new voting

          6  systems.

          7                 We again, created an evaluation team

          8  and a selection team for this project, they have

          9  made a recommendation to the commissioners, the

         10  commissioners will be voting on that recommendation

         11  next week, and tomorrow they will be seeing a

         12  presentation of those three  --  the groups that

         13  have applied for this position.  It's an important

         14  position for us to fill because even though we're

         15  probably not looking at a new voting system until

         16  possibly 2008, we need to bring this firm on board

         17  to help working with us as soon as that selection is

         18  made so that we start an aggressive community

         19  outreach.

         20                 So, that's going to happen in the

         21  next few weeks, and we will begin again to work with

         22  that group to develop the public awareness.  But our

         23  goal has always been this, and this is where I will

         24  need you and your colleagues to assist us in this

         25  area.  As soon as we pick a system, and as soon as
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          2  we have done the acceptance testing on those

          3  systems, and as soon as Lucille tells me that we can

          4  take five systems and put them on trucks, our gaol

          5  is to staff those trucks with our personnel and go

          6  out to each of the boroughs on a daily basis to go

          7  to any church, synagogue, mosque, senior center,

          8  library, any place where we can plug in these

          9  systems two or three times a day to do these types

         10  of public demonstrations.

         11                 So again, having the elected

         12  officials in the communities work with us to do

         13  that, I think, will be very important to us as well.

         14                 Another area that we're going to have

         15  a great deal of work to do is on page 22, and that's

         16  dealing with poll site readiness, and again, this is

         17  one of things that I think not many people

         18  understand.  Under the Federal law obviously, we

         19  have to make sure that our poll sites are compliant

         20  for people with disabilities.

         21                 We have been working, I think, as

         22  hard as we can to do that.  Now again, I will remind

         23  you, we have 1,369 poll sites.  Many of them are in

         24  public sites, and there are some things that I know

         25  the disability community would like us to do to make
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          2  improvements that we can't do.  Schools that have

          3  heavy front doors, we can't have the schools remove

          4  those doors. School auditoriums that slope down, so

          5  that people with wheelchairs obviously feel at risk

          6  in, justifiably so, we can't have the school level

          7  off the auditorium floor.  How we can work around

          8  these things are things that we are already doing,

          9  putting extra door clerks on those schools with the

         10  heavy doors, so that people are always there at the

         11  door, having an extra door clerk at the foot of the

         12  auditorium to help somebody if they need the help to

         13  get down the slope if that's there.

         14                 We are also though, thanks to you and

         15  your colleagues and they Mayor, we did create the

         16  poll site accessibility unit, and they are six

         17  people who on a daily basis are going out to poll

         18  sites now to look at  --  to make sure that we're

         19  dealing with HAVA and ADA accessibility issues, but

         20  also dealing with other issues in terms of can these

         21  sites be homes for any type of electronic voting,

         22  whether it be Op Scan or DRE's.  One thousand, three

         23  hundred and sixty- nine, that's a huge task and the

         24  vendor, whichever vendor we select, they also will

         25  have to under the contract, go out an do a site
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          2  survey.  So, we are going to tackle this.  We're

          3  trying to tackle this as aggressively as possible

          4  but it is a huge thing that is going to have to  --

          5  we're going to have to continue to work on.

          6                 The next slide again, is on page 26,

          7  and this is one that  --  if I have more gray hairs

          8  than usual, it's the one that's going to give even

          9  more, and that's dealing with poll worker training.

         10                 We have 30,000 poll workers, and some

         11  of them are people who have dedicated every year for

         12  30 or 40 years to work in their poll sites.  I think

         13  some of you know them, and some of them do great

         14  jobs, some of them are poll workers that probably

         15  are not doing as good a job, and we try to train

         16  them, and we try to do as much as we can to raise

         17  the level of performance for our poll workers.  Well

         18  when we bring in a new voting system, we are going

         19  to be asking our poll workers to learn not only how

         20  that new system works, but all of the procedures in

         21  our poll sites are going to change, whether it be Op

         22  Scan or DRE, it's not going to be the way people

         23  handled things in their poll sites.  That means that

         24  some of the poll workers that we've used in the past

         25  are not going to be able to do the job, and I think
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          2  all of us are going to have to be honest enough to

          3  understand that, and all of us are going to have to

          4  be talking to the people who appoint the poll

          5  workers to say, look, this is a new era of voting.

          6                 Now, we are going to continue to try

          7  to train our poll workers.  One of the things we

          8  have already agreed upon is that our three-hour

          9  class will now be an all day class, and the all day

         10  class will not only consist on the new procedures

         11  that we will have in place now for how our poll

         12  sites operate, as well as how the new systems work,

         13  but it's also going to deal with being sensitive to

         14  people with disabilities, and we are working with

         15  CIDNY to do just that.  They are actually starting a

         16  project with us in which they are going to begin

         17  training our trainers on those issues, and they are

         18  going to help us add to this curriculum so that we

         19  are now going to be spending a great deal of time

         20  dealing with those issues, not just for people with

         21  disabilities, but people with language assistance

         22  programs, but it's all going to be part of what's

         23  going to have to be an all day class.

         24                 The bottom line folks is though, we

         25  are going to have to pay our poll workers more.  We
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          2  pay our poll workers $200.00 a day, our coordinators

          3  $300.00 a day.  That old adage sometimes you get

          4  what you pay for, we can't afford to do that, and so

          5  we are going to be asking this Council and the Mayor

          6  to look at again, working with us collectively, to

          7  raise the pay for our poll workers so hopefully we

          8  can continue, not only to get the poll workers that

          9  are coming through the process, but also to increase

         10  our standby pools.  Each of our boroughs have

         11  standby pools that we can get from outside of the

         12  two political parties, and we are working with CUNY

         13  and we are going to work with the independent

         14  collages, we are going to work with the good

         15  government groups.  I have to again cite Citizens

         16  Unions huge contribution over the last few years to

         17  helping us increase the number of poll workers that

         18  we have gotten, and I urge all of the other good

         19  government groups to do that as well, to give us

         20  their members, to reach out to their members, to

         21  have them take the class, and have the be part of

         22  this important process as well.

         23                 So the poll worker training is going

         24  to be a huge component for us.  I should also add

         25  that we are going to have to create a new DVD/Video
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          2  to give to our poll workers so that they can take it

          3  home with them, so that they can understand again

          4  how the new system works and all the new procedures.

          5                 We are going to upgrade our website

          6  so that we can make it more interactive so that

          7  people who have the capability can be at home, log

          8  onto our website and somehow be able, and I don't

          9  know all the technical jargon, but they will be able

         10  to play around with it so that they are actually

         11  assimilating that they're using the voting system.

         12                 So, those are all going to be part of

         13  the things that we're going to have to do for that.

         14                 The next slide again is also

         15  something that is very important.  Our five machine

         16  facilities now that are homes for the Shupe lever

         17  machines cannot be home for electronic voting

         18  systems, whether they be Op Scan or DRE's.  I know

         19  Council Member Addabbo, Council Member Felder have

         20  been into our facilities in the last few months.

         21  They have seen the problems that we have. We are

         22  working with DCAS and OMB.  DCAS is our landlord,

         23  they negotiate the contracts with the landlords for

         24  each of these sites.  They understand that we have

         25  to do a huge amount of upgrades.  It's been a little
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          2  hard for them to do that though because they don't

          3  know which system we're using.

          4                 So, I sympathize with them, but we

          5  have had ongoing meetings with both DCAS and OMB,

          6  and I can say to you with all confidence that both

          7  agencies are on board to assist us on that.  But

          8  that's something that's going to have to happen as

          9  well.

         10                 Then on page 33 again, that's just a

         11  brief summary of what we've been doing, the fact

         12  again, that we haven't just been waiting for the

         13  State to tell us,`Okay, these are the systems that

         14  have been certified.'  We have taken, I hope, a very

         15  proactive role in leading for the State.

         16                 The next document, and I'm only going

         17  to show you a few slot pages on this, is a document

         18  that we've prepared for a conference that we

         19  attended two weeks ago with the State Election

         20  Commissioners, and it was basically talking about

         21  the different type of contingency plans that we need

         22  to have in place because, again, we don't know when

         23  a system is going to be certified and we didn't know

         24  if it was going be for 2007 or 2008.

         25                 I think we've all ruled to the issue
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          2  that 2007 is not happening for New York  City, and

          3  then the question as Commissioner Kellner just

          4  raised is what are we going to be able to do in

          5  2008.

          6                 There are a lot of important pages on

          7  this document, and because we actually built out a

          8  model of taking the different types of contingencies

          9  that could happen citywide if we had to do a partial

         10  implementation.  I'm not going to take you through

         11  the model, if you have any questions please call me,

         12  and we can go through it with you.

         13                 But there is one page that I think is

         14  very important, and that again, and before I started

         15  this job, if you had told me that I'd be talking

         16  about EMS's and Interfacing, I would have thought

         17  that you were nuts but this is again some of the

         18  things that I don't think people understand about

         19  how you have to put on elections.

         20                 If you go to page 11 of your

         21  document, the timeframe is the timeframe for the EMS

         22  testing and interfacing. Now once we choose a new

         23  system, we are going to have to again do the

         24  acceptance testing to do that, but then we are going

         25  to have to create and build our own software, and
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          2  our own ballot creation.  Again, one of the

          3  questions that one of the council members asked is

          4  how dependent are you going to be on the vendor. The

          5  vendor is obviously going to play a huge role in

          6  assisting us and helping us get ready, but we

          7  ultimately going to be the ones who are going to

          8  develop the ballot for New York City because of the

          9  complexities of the ballot in New York City.

         10                 So, there are things that we had to

         11  understand and that's  --  these are one of the work

         12  streams that are in the organization chart that I

         13  referred to earlier that have specific timeframes

         14  that we think will have to happen.

         15                 The training for the EMS training, in

         16  which the vendor would come in and work with Lucille

         17  and her staff and other Board staff, we believe

         18  takes about a week.  To examine the EMS, again that

         19  would be Lucille's staff, they would actually again

         20  see what's wrong with the system, if the system has

         21  to have modifications, and we learned a great deal

         22  with the BMD's last year in terms of how vendors

         23  give us software, and we find bugs in it, and we

         24  have to deal with those bugs, and make those

         25  corrections as well.
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          2                 Building a test plan because

          3  obviously we are going to want to test this, and we

          4  are going to want to deal with all of the issues,

          5  some of them that have been raised together. We

          6  believe that examining the  --  Lucille's staff

          7  would need about three weeks to examine the EMS.  To

          8  build a test plan again, would take about a week.

          9                 To build the Interface, a two- way

         10  Interface, would take four weeks, and this is a very

         11  important point.  We need to take the new software,

         12  we need to develop it, we need to make sure that it

         13  can talk to and get information from our existing

         14  software that helps build the ballot right now.

         15  That's our Sapis program, remember now, we don't use

         16  the ledgers.  We can go online now and you can see

         17  which candidates are running for each office.  Well

         18  now, the new system is going to have to talk to the

         19  old system, and the old system is going to have to

         20  be able to talk right back to the new system.

         21  That's a layman's way of saying that you're building

         22  a two- way Interface.  We believe that's going to

         23  take a minimum four weeks to be able to do.

         24                 Then we have to, obviously, create

         25  the data testing for that, which takes another week.
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          2  We have to test the Interface to make sure that both

          3  sides are talking.  We believe  --  and make sure

          4  that it's permanent because this is not going to be

          5  a one shot deal, as we had to do with the BMD's. We

          6  believe that takes another four weeks.

          7                 Run and validate the Interface, we

          8  believe takes one week.

          9                 Set up the EMS, and check the EMS,

         10  and do the data document results, and again, that's

         11  building the ballot, testing and building the

         12  ballots.  That takes five weeks at a minimum.

         13                 Setting them up in each of the

         14  boroughs, because we're now going to have to  --

         15  Lucille and her staff are going to have go to each

         16  of our borough offices, train the staff, the

         17  appropriate staff at those boroughs to learn the EMS

         18  system, and we believe that takes at least two

         19  weeks.

         20                 Load the election data, again, that's

         21  the ballots that we'd be using, that takes a week.

         22  That would be prior to rolling out the systems for a

         23  primary of a general election, and then again, doing

         24  the re-canvassing and the returns with Sapis, and

         25  making sure that again, the systems are talking to
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          2  each other takes two weeks.  Grand total of 25

          3  weeks.

          4                 Now, that's six months.  So, whenever

          5  a system is certified, and whenever the

          6  commissioners select a system, that's when this work

          7  begins, not before, it begins after, and so, as we

          8  move forward, and as I hope we're not pressured by

          9  anyone to do something that we cannot do in a

         10  certain timeframe, we felt it was very important to

         11  document this because if we have to

         12  talk  -- have conversations about moving faster than

         13  we think, my response will be to whoever is telling

         14  us that we have to move faster,`show me which of

         15  these work streams that you want me to cut' because

         16  if I'm going to cut one of these work streams, then

         17  I'm jeopardizing disenfranchising our voters, and

         18  that's something I'm not prepared to do.

         19                 That's why again, the timeframe that

         20  we have put for each of these specific work streams

         21  are so important.

         22                 So that last thing I'll show you on

         23  this again, and I appreciate your patience on this,

         24  is on page 17, and again, that just gives you a

         25  necessary  --  an update on where we are about the
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          2  demo's, about the systems that we've done, the

          3  evaluations, the RFI's.

          4                 We are beginning to issue an RFP

          5  because one of, again, the lessons that we learned

          6  with the Audio Ballot that we had to create for the

          7  Ballot- Marking Devices, we had our own staff do

          8  that, and we had to have them record thousands of

          9  names in English, Spanish, in Chinese, both in

         10  Mandarin and Cantonese, and in Korean.  It took

         11  staff working seven days a week, fourteen hours a

         12  day, to do that.  So obviously we are going to now

         13  be a little smarter, and we're going to send this

         14  out to, whether it be the John Houseman Shakespeare

         15  Theater School, or somebody else to do the ballot,

         16  but the writing of the contract and the approval of

         17  that contract takes some time.

         18                 The accessibility for our poll sites,

         19  and the readiness surveys are ongoing.  The poll

         20  site modifications that might have to occur after

         21  that study is going to have to happen, and then

         22  again, all of the training that we are going to have

         23  to do for our 30,000 poll workers, and the voters of

         24  New York, are going to be things that are on our top

         25  priority list.
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          2                 So, it is frustrating for us because

          3  obviously sometimes as I said, it's like working in

          4  the dark with two hands tied behind your back, or

          5  running in sand, and not being able to move as fast

          6  as we want.

          7                 We have, I think again with your

          8  support, been able to staff up so that we can do the

          9  work that we've already done, but it is going to be

         10  our goal to do this right.

         11                 As Commissioner Kellner said so

         12  eloquently, we are not the first in this country to

         13  have to implement HAVA but I think if we stick to

         14  everything we know we have to do, and are given the

         15  time to do it, we will be, again, be putting the

         16  voters rights first, and that's going to be again,

         17  our number one priority.

         18                 So, thank you very much for

         19  listening, and I'll answer any questions that my

         20  team and I can.

         21                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you

         22  very much.

         23                 I certainly want to say that

         24  Commissioner Kellner said how terrific the New York

         25  City Board is doing, and I certainly concur.
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          2                 I want to introduce two wonderful

          3  council members, Council Member Addabbo from Queens,

          4  and Council Member James from Brooklyn.

          5                 My questions is, and this is just my

          6  lack of understanding the timeframe, on the security

          7  measures when the State Board of Elections decides

          8  that the systems are secure, does that meet your

          9  standards also?

         10                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well obviously, and we

         11  fought for it very hard, and one of the things I

         12  can't criticize the process in terms of

         13  certification right now because if you'll remember

         14  last year, when the State Board first issued their

         15  first draft of the Voting System Standards, they

         16  weren't adhering to the 2005 EAC Guidelines.  We

         17  felt it was very important that those Guidelines be

         18  what the vendors have to meet because of the

         19  dealings of security and testing.

         20                 So once the State Board put that in

         21  the voting system standards, we feel very

         22  comfortable.  Now obviously, we are going to have

         23  specific questions on security, and again, that's

         24  going to be really the work that Lucille and her

         25  department and the evaluation team taking the
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          2  information that they have from the RFI's will be

          3  asking each of the vendors. But the entire state and

          4  Commissioner Kellner can correct me if I'm wrong,

          5  the entire state now will be on one standard and one

          6  guidelines with the security that the vendors are

          7  going to have to meet.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, now in

          9  the schools or the polling places there are

         10  different levels of electronic and other kinds of

         11  applications, everything from surge protectors to

         12  no- surge protectors, et cetera, it's just sort of

         13  basic, but as I understand it, again I'm not

         14  anything close to an expert, some of the machines

         15  you plug in and some of them, do you need more

         16  extensive technology?

         17                 In other words, when you're there in

         18  that polling site, in addition to being accessible,

         19  how "accessible" technology- wise?

         20                 I happen to know what's in the

         21  schools extensively, technology- wise.  I don't know

         22  what's in other polling sites.

         23                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well again, and the

         24  schools and we have--

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And schools
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          2  are not great, so.

          3                 MR. RAVITZ:  Yes you are right, and a

          4  lot of our public sites are schools, and some are in

          5  the Housing Authority, some are in other city and

          6  state buildings.

          7                 Our poll site unit is doing  --  is

          8  working to look at that when they do their

          9  accessibility issues.  More importantly, we have--

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  When you say

         11  accessibility, you're talking not just about

         12  physical?

         13                 MR. RAVITZ:  Not just physical, but

         14  also for readiness for the new systems.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         16                 MR. RAVITZ:  We also have a meeting

         17  set up in ten days with school facilities because,

         18  obviously, we're going to need to really have a

         19  frank conversation with the Department of Education,

         20  but also give them at least the specs that we've

         21  gotten from the RFI for each of the systems, so that

         22  they can look at each of the schools that are poll

         23  sites to say,`Well yes, we can do this.'  Or there

         24  might be some that say,`No, there's just no way.'

         25                 Again, remember on primary day we're
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          2  not the only people in the school, and what we don't

          3  want to do is we don't want to blow a fuse or

          4  whatever on a day of school.

          5                 So, it's going to be an interesting

          6  process to see again if the schools can meet the

          7  standards as well as some of the other sites.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  If there's an

          9  upgrade needed, who pays for it?

         10                 MR. RAVITZ:  I'm sorry say that

         11  again.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  If there's an

         13  upgrade needed, who pays for it?

         14                 How does that physically happen,

         15  dollar- wise happen, et cetera?  Or is that to be

         16  determined?

         17                 MR. RAVITZ:  I think that would have

         18  to be determined.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, I mean

         20  I have many more questions.

         21                 Does anybody else have questions,

         22  council members?

         23                 Council Member Dickens is first.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         25  much both of my Chairs.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Ravitz, for your

          3  testimony, and it's good to see you, Steve.  Again,

          4  I want to commend you on the community awareness

          5  that you are doing, it's great.

          6                 But I just want to ask a question,

          7  piggybacking on my colleague, Council Member Brewer.

          8    If it is determined that a school is not

          9  compatible electrically to handle it, for instance

         10  in my district, there are several schools that have

         11  not gotten technology into the schools because they

         12  physically can't handle it, and it's determined that

         13  DOE would have to absorb the cost of the upgrade and

         14  they don't want to do that.

         15                 What timeframe do we have of

         16  relocating large polling sites?

         17                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well council member, I

         18  think that's an issue and that's why we want to have

         19  the meeting now with the Department of Education

         20  because I think they clearly know which schools

         21  could meet the  --  not meet the criteria, or

         22  schools that are not wired fully, and so, we want to

         23  start these conversations now in early`07 so that if

         24  we were going to have to make a change, our borough

         25  staff because, again, we have a poll site department
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          2  in each of our borough offices, could begin the

          3  very, very tough job of trying to find a new poll

          4  site, especially if it is a poll site that has a

          5  large number of ED's.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Exactly.

          7                 MR. RAVITZ:  And that again, because

          8  it is not an easy sell to try to find a new poll

          9  site, whether it's a public site or a private site.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Because 154

         11  in my district has like seven ED's.

         12                 MR. RICHMAN:  Council member, the

         13  other prospect at least for Brooklyn, Manhattan and

         14  the Bronx, is if we do  -- are fortunate enough to

         15  find an alternate poll site, that is subject to pre-

         16  clearance by the Federal Justice Department, which

         17  is normally a six- week process minimum.

         18                 So again, it's not something that we

         19  could try to do overnight.  I think the concern's we

         20  have is the electrical capacity that was talked

         21  about, also depending on the type of system

         22  selected, what's the physical layout?

         23                 Right now, we know what the size of

         24  the Shupe voting machine is and what type of space

         25  you need to operate that.  Depending on what the new
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          2  systems are, their size, the type, if it's an Op

          3  Scan we're going to need the privacy booth spread

          4  out.

          5                 We may also run into a place that

          6  some of the public schools may have the electrical

          7  capacity, but not the space to accommodate the

          8  additional needs.

          9                 So again, by beginning a dialogue

         10  early with DOE, we're hoping to go forward.  I think

         11  we face those same problems though with private

         12  sites.  Those of you who know when we rent from

         13  lobbies of apartment buildings and community

         14  centers--

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  And NYCHA

         16  also.

         17                 MR. RICHMAN:  And NYCHA as well, even

         18  across the street at the Surrogate's Court Building,

         19  in that grand lobby of theirs, there's not a lot of

         20  electrical outlets.  Again, how we're going to deal

         21  with that in working with DCAS as well, again, those

         22  are the things that are being identified in the

         23  costs of the surveys, hopefully they can be

         24  addressed.  We expect to come back to the Council,

         25  and I would assume the other city agencies involved
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          2  possibly for funding, and with the private sites,

          3  try to deal with the landlords.  They may ask for

          4  more money if they've got to make improvements.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Once that

          6  you have met with DOE, NYCHA, and private  --  the

          7  private sector, would you be willing to work with

          8  the local elected in each of the area in order to--

          9                 MR. RAVITZ:  Whenever we have to make

         10  a poll site change, we reach out to borough offices,

         11  reach out to the district leaders, the elected's

         12  because we want your help. Obviously you know your

         13  communities better than we do, and if there are

         14  sites that we should be looking at and hopefully you

         15  can make positive introductions to those sites for

         16  us, we will definitely take you up on that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Now I have a

         18  question on page 16.

         19                 MR. RAVITZ:  Which document?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Of the

         21  update on the HAVA compliance.

         22                 MR. RAVITZ:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  In the boxes

         24  that you told us to look at, you have one that

         25  says`Audio Ballot Program Development.'

                                                            71

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2                 MR. RAVITZ:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Can you tell

          4  me a little something about that specifically?

          5                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well again, we used that

          6  for the first time as I said, with the Ballot-

          7  Marking Devices in 2006.

          8                 Whatever system we use, whether it's

          9  a DRE or an Op Scan, people who are blind or people

         10  who have other type of physical disabilities that

         11  are not going to be able to use the Op Scan if they

         12  were going to have to scan it themselves, will be

         13  able to listen to the ballot, and either use a

         14  keypad or use a Sip and Puff Device, or rocking

         15  paddles, but that means that we have to translate

         16  all of the names into an Audio Ballot in both

         17  English, Spanish, Chinese, in Mandarin and Cantonese

         18  in those districts that have that, and Korean.

         19                 So that was the first time that we

         20  had to do that in 2006.  We saw again the huge

         21  amount of time it took because then we also had to

         22  give, and all of you who are running for the council

         23    --  actually you guys weren't running for re-

         24  election, it was the state legislature.  Each person

         25  who was on the ballot in 2006 got a letter from us
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          2  saying that if they wanted to come and hear how

          3  their names sounded in all the different languages,

          4  they could do that, and if they did not like the way

          5  it sounded, we would change it on the spot for them.

          6

          7                 So again, we have to prepare this

          8  Audio Ballot, we're going to have to test it, and

          9  then, we're going to have to be able to allow the

         10  candidates on the ballot to hear it and approve it

         11  or let it go.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Also, as

         13  part of the training for the poll workers because

         14  that's another big concern for the Audio Ballot, for

         15  those voters the come in that suffer with let's say

         16   --  because I'm heavily involved with an

         17  organization that focuses on Retinitis Pigmentosa,

         18  so that the Audio Ballot would not be of assistance

         19  to them.  I want to know if part of that training

         20  for the poll workers will include the assistance

         21  that would be needed, the added assistance, I'm

         22  really talking about, that would be needed for those

         23  who are both blind and cannot hear.

         24                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well again, that's one

         25  of the reasons why I hope we have developed a good
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          2  working relationship with CIDNY because if we're

          3  really going to ask them to be part of building this

          4  new curriculum for us, and it starts with the work

          5  that they're going to be doing to train our

          6  trainers, and then the work that they're going to be

          7  doing to help us add something to our curriculum

          8  which will be in the manuals and as well as will be

          9  in the training DVD's and the video's.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right,

         11  and just lastly I'd like you to consider for the

         12  future, because my district is becoming heavily  --

         13  people from West Africa and Haiti, and there primary

         14  language is French.  There's becoming a lot of

         15  difficulty in their being able to  --  they're

         16  becoming citizens, and being able to vote.

         17                 MR. RAVITZ:   Well but again council

         18  member, and I understand that, we are held to the

         19  Voting Rights Act, which calls for us to have all of

         20  our voting material in the four coveted languages.

         21  That could change in 2010 with the new census

         22  numbers, and we're obviously preparing for that as

         23  well, and we have had meetings with groups

         24  throughout the City, who feel, whether it's the

         25  Russian community in Brooklyn, or whether it's the

                                                            74

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  Creole community, Haitian community, where they

          3  really want to have that.  If we open the door

          4  before 2010, we're going to disrespect some groups,

          5  and we'd rather not do that.  But what we have said,

          6  and we will continue to say is we have no patent to

          7  any of our material  --  copyright to any of our

          8  material.  We will work with any community group to

          9  take our material, and if they will translate it, we

         10  will give it to them so that they can use that for

         11  people in their communities.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Oh great,

         13  I'm glad to hear that.  Who would we contact?

         14                 MR. RAVITZ:  You can call me.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you,

         16  thank you.

         17                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  He answers

         18  all e- mails.

         19                 Council Member Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you

         21  very much, Madam Chair.

         22                 You know, my whole position has

         23  always been that we really need to verify these

         24  votes to keep them honest, keep it secure, and we

         25  believe the Paper Ballots/Optical Scanner system is
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          2  the best one.

          3                 I just  --  you said you had

          4  hearings, you had two hearings?

          5                 MR. RAVITZ:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  What were the

          7  results of those hearings?

          8                 Do you see more of the public and

          9  experts moving toward Paper Ballot/Optical Scanner,

         10  or DRE's?

         11                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well obviously, at both

         12  hearings the majority of the people who came and

         13  submitted testimony were people who were in favor of

         14  Optical Scan.

         15                 In terms of experts, we had some

         16  people who said that they were computer experts.  We

         17  take them at face value. Again, we are going to be

         18  looking, again, for our evaluation team when they do

         19  the vendor interviews to really get into some of the

         20  technical analysis in all areas of each of the

         21  systems from security to testing because, again, all

         22  of us have the same priority of making sure voters

         23  confidence on their  --  that their votes are

         24  counted and counted correctly.

         25                 The one, and again, and this has been
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          2  one of the more interesting developments that I've

          3  observed in this whole process, is that the

          4  disability community has not participated. They have

          5  not participated in large numbers to coming out to

          6  any of the five public demonstrations, and they have

          7  not participated in large numbers at the two public

          8  hearings.  I don't know why because, again, one of

          9  the foundations of HAVA was to be able to create a

         10  voting system for people with disabilities so that

         11  they could vote independently and privately like

         12  other voters as well.

         13                 So, I don't know if they are waiting

         14  to see which systems are finally certified to make

         15  their voices heard, but we have tried to reach out

         16  to them and more importantly, we went out to  --

         17  for the Ballot- Marking Devices we did 26 individual

         18  public demonstrations in which we brought these

         19  systems out to sites throughout the five boroughs,

         20  and in four of the boroughs we went to the

         21  independent living centers and we did not get much

         22  participation.

         23                 So, we're going to continue to do

         24  outreach, again I ask the members of this council if

         25  the have relationships with organizations, CBO's in
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          2  the disability community to get me their names, and

          3  we will continue to try to engage them in this.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Another

          5  concern we have is cost for each machine.

          6                 Do you have a one page summary

          7  prepared to give us a cost analysis or for future

          8  costs, initial costs for each?

          9                 MR. RAVITZ:  Right, we have

         10  unofficial costs and I can pull out for you, and

         11  where your staff can go to our website on one of

         12  the, obviously, key areas of the RFI is that we ask

         13  each vendor for were cost issues, so that you could,

         14  if someone goes to our website and then goes up on

         15  the RFI, they'll see an area just for cost.

         16                 Obviously, one of the things that the

         17  evaluation team and our consultants are going to be

         18  doing though is preparing an independent cost

         19  analysis of each of the systems, and that will all

         20  be part of the evaluation teams report that they

         21  submit to the commissioners with their

         22  recommendations.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Do you have

         24  one particular page of the  --  on your machine?

         25                 MR. RAVITZ:  Each report did have one
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          2  but what we'll do is we'll pull one out.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Okay

          4  because--

          5                 MR. RAVITZ:  Right, the only thing

          6  that Mr. Richman reminded me again is, we are not

          7  going to be doing  -- the City is not going to be

          8  involved in the final contract for these systems.

          9  This will be done by the Office of General Services,

         10  OGS.  We have met with OGS, we have given them what

         11  we think if our good, hopefully, recommendations on

         12  how to make this a contract that is helpful to the

         13  counties, including us, as well as for the vendors

         14  so that everyone can see what the cost is for each

         15  of the different areas, and we're obviously waiting

         16  to see OGS come back with that file contract.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Okay because

         18  cost analysis is very, very important for all of us

         19  who are involved in this.

         20                 MR. RAVITZ:  But I will say this

         21  council member, it's not just a cost for the systems

         22  that we're going to have to look at.  The cost, they

         23  are going to be ongoing costs, and one of the things

         24  we are talking about when we do our fiscal analysis

         25  is we're building this out over a ten year period
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          2  because we think it's that important.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just want

          4  to let you know for the record, you're one of the

          5  few people that I allow to cut me off before I

          6  finish.

          7                 MR. RAVITZ:  I'm sorry, I'm honored

          8  though.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just want

         10  you to note that because you did it three times, but

         11  it's all right because you're giving vital

         12  information that we need to have.

         13                 But that analysis I think is very,

         14  very critical to what we're talking about here

         15  because most of us know that Optical Scanners are

         16  very cost effective, far more than the DRE's, that

         17  is our belief, and that is the belief of many of the

         18  experts.  So, we just definitely wanted to have that

         19  out there.

         20                 The insider tampering, would you be

         21  open to public demonstrations coupled with some

         22  people that you feel are experts on that, and also

         23  that our supporters and some groups that we know can

         24  supply some experts as well to do public

         25  demonstrations on how this insider tampering occurs?
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          2                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well again, the

          3  commissioners will give me and our staff the final

          4  approval of whatever we want to do, but this is all

          5  part of what I hope has been a transparent process,

          6  and will continue to be a transparent process.  We

          7  want the public's confidence and to get the public's

          8  confidence, we're going to need elected officials

          9  confidence, especially because not only do you

         10  represent the public, but your names are going to be

         11  on the ballots, ultimately, whichever system we use.

         12

         13                 So again, that's why we felt it was

         14  important to have all of the evaluation team

         15  meetings with the vendors, as well as their other

         16  meetings open to the public.

         17                 We also, and it should be noted in

         18  the consultants that we have brought on board to

         19  help us with this, they have brought on security

         20  experts too, and they will be part of the team that

         21  will be working with the evaluation team to make

         22  their final recommendations.

         23                 In terms of bringing outsiders in,

         24  it's something we can think about.  But, I would

         25  want to do it in what I would hope we would both
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          2  agree would be a constructive way.  There's so much

          3  cynicism right now because of how dysfunctional this

          4  process has been that  --  about the new voting

          5  system, that what I would not like to see happen is

          6  that we are opening it up to say that anyone can

          7  hack into our new voting system.

          8                 If we could construct a  --  and it

          9  might not be something that could be open to the

         10  public, but could be with our staff in which we

         11  could bring some experts in once we have selected

         12  the system to have them give their thoughts on the

         13  system.  That is something that I think that we

         14  could do.

         15                 Obviously then, those experts could

         16  report back to the public on this, but to open it up

         17  to the public and have a hearing on how to hack into

         18  a New York City voting system, I think would maybe

         19  take us a step backwards rather than a step

         20  forwards.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Not how to

         22  hack into it. See you were doing good up to this

         23  point when you said that you hoped it would be

         24  constructive as though we would present something

         25  destructive, we would never do that.  But you know,
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          2  we're not talking about teaching people how to hack

          3  into systems, they are already doing that, and in

          4  many areas, so that's happening.

          5                 We want to show it so that we can

          6  avoid it, and bring in come experts that we know

          7  that are credible people, that have been around this

          8  kind of information because you know we suffered

          9  Florida, we suffered Ohio, across the nation, and we

         10  are suffering from election irregularities, and New

         11  York elections as well.

         12                 So what we're trying to get at is to

         13  make sure that when we come to this new system that

         14  we want to have demonstrations on how this can be

         15  avoided, how this can be avoided, and have experts

         16  come in and show them how that can be avoided.

         17                 MR. RICHMAN:  Councilman, also the

         18  statute provides a regular testing on a bipartisan

         19  basis by board employees.

         20                 In addition, similarly as you have

         21  now the right to    inspect the voting machines, the

         22  paper ballots, before the election, that ability

         23  will exist again for the candidates to make sure

         24  that if it's a DRE you can hit the button, if it

         25  registers to you who you hit it for, or on the
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          2  Optical Scan that if you mark in oval, it's

          3  registered that way as well.  There will be an

          4  extensive system of testing.

          5                 I don't know if you're familiar with

          6  the testing that goes on before we scan the paper

          7  ballots that we currently use for absentees and

          8  emergencies.

          9                 Lucille, how many hundreds of test

         10  deck ballots do we do before a general election?

         11                 MS. GRIMALDI:  Yes, we actually

         12  create test decks that we run through the system

         13  before every election, and we run that test twice

         14  before the election.  The second time is for the

         15  public to observe, and then we run it on the morning

         16  that the canvass begins, and we run it after, and

         17  the size of the test deck is dependent upon the

         18  complexity of the ballot.

         19                 We had a year in Brooklyn where we

         20  had to create 40,000 test ballots, and we ran every

         21  one of them through to make sure that this system

         22  was working right, and that is done in front of the

         23  public.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well that's

         25  good, but once again, the purpose of me saying
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          2  public demonstrations, it's like what we do

          3  sometimes with our, at least with my campaign, was

          4  say hey listen,`this is how they can rip you off,

          5  this is how they can get in there and steal your

          6  election.'   And we have to say,`make sure you check

          7  that machine because when that machine comes in make

          8  sure it's on zero, that they other guy doesn't have

          9  a hundred' before we even get started.

         10                 So for the public to know that, we're

         11  not teaching them how to do that, that's what's

         12  being done.  For the public to know that would

         13  say,`this is a better opportunity for us to avoid

         14  that from being happening,' and that's why the

         15  public demonstrations are very, very critical.

         16                 MR. RICHMAN:  Council member, that

         17  exact scenario was mandated under the law, so we

         18  don't even have a choice. There will be these public

         19  testings of the test decks, the candidates have the

         20  right to inspect and participate, or the political

         21  parties in the general election as well, to make

         22  sure that, as Lucille said, that the 40,000 ballots

         23  and those are hand- marked Op Scan ballots marked

         24  with a certain format, and we know what the result

         25  was supposed to be to make sure that the scanner
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          2  read it properly, and that's mandated now to be done

          3  with whichever system we choose, Precinct-

          4  Based/Optical Scanning or DRE's, in addition to

          5  quarterly testing to make sure that the logic and

          6  internal workings of the machines haven't been

          7  tampered with as well.

          8                 All of those materials will be made

          9  available to the public, they are followed with the

         10  State Board.  So the regimen that the legislation

         11  created in the Election Reform and Modernization

         12  Act, and the standards adopted by the State Board

         13  have gone a long way, I think, to reassure the

         14  public once we begin implementing them.  Right now

         15  they haven't seen anything, we have nothing even to

         16  test with.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  All right,

         18  but I'm just saying that we want to make sure that

         19  our experts as well, be able to join with you, just

         20  in case there may be a few things that we know some

         21  experts know about, that yours may not know about.

         22  I think a good teaming of that would be critical.

         23                 MR. RAVITZ:  When we get to the point

         24  of, obviously, that when we have selected our

         25  system--
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  You mean when

          3  they select the Optical Scanner?

          4                 MR. RAVITZ:  When we select the

          5  system.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Oh.

          7                 MR. RAVITZ:  We will reach out to

          8  you, and we will pool the team, and we have with

          9  some names that you have, and we will come with a

         10  meeting of the minds, and then I will present that

         11  to the commissioners and then we will, hopefully,

         12  have the type of meeting that you want to have.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  All right

         14  just finally I just want to say for whole process, I

         15  think in areas the outreach has been good, and other

         16  areas we probably can do better, particularly with

         17  the disabled community, making sure that that

         18  happens so that whatever the system is, that it is

         19  satisfactory to them, and that we make sure that

         20  every vote is counted, and every vote is counted

         21  accurately, and we can verify it, and keep it honest

         22  and have the best systems.

         23                 That's why we once again, appealing

         24  to you, and in trying to encourage you to really

         25  look more toward the Optical Scanner.  I think
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          2  there's been enough information on it citywide or

          3  statewide, and around the country,  what has been

          4  happened when there are DRE's.

          5                 So I just want to encourage you to

          6  support our resolution, and support that kind of

          7  system, and I know you're still in the process and

          8  can't make a decision now, but seeing that as a much

          9  better system so that we can have every vote count.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 MR. RAVITZ:  Thank you councilman.

         12                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We have been

         13  joined by Council Member Jackson, and we have a

         14  question from Council Member James.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Commissioner

         16  or any members of the panel, do you have a

         17  definitive opinion on a preferable system for New

         18  York City?  Professional or otherwise or personal?

         19                 MR. RAVITZ:  See, she's getting me

         20  back for all the times when she was a staffer in the

         21  Assembly, and I made noise.

         22                 No, council member, with all due

         23  seriousness, we have created, I think, a process for

         24  how we are going to analyze each system, DRE and Op

         25  Scan.
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          2                 Again, I will refer anyone to go to

          3  our website to look at the specific selection

          4  criteria that we have chosen to evaluate each of

          5  these systems, and the formula that we're going to

          6  be using, or the evaluation team will be using to

          7  make their recommendations to the commissioners.

          8  Whichever system we choose, we have to be able to

          9  stand up not only to this Body, but to the four

         10  million- plus voters of this City and say,`we made

         11  this choice because we believe this is the best

         12  voting system for New York City.'

         13                 So, I'm not trying not to answer your

         14  question, but we have a lot of work still to do

         15  prior to making that selection.  Unfortunately

         16  again, none of the vendors have

         17  made  --  are up to the point of even being

         18  certified as of now. But I can confidently say that

         19  when we do have to make a selection  --  when the

         20  evaluation team is to the point of making their

         21  recommendations, it will be because of the huge

         22  amount of work that has been done to analyze each of

         23  those questions.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  To what extent

         25  will money be a factor in determining?
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          2                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well, it's going to be

          3  an ongoing factor.

          4                 There was a conversation with

          5  Commissioner Kellner prior to our testimony about

          6  the $50 million that possibly we could loose from

          7  the Federal government.  New York City was going to

          8  get 38 percent of that $50 million.  So, that is a

          9  large amount of money that is now going to have to

         10  be made up by the City.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So, they've

         12  already made a decision that we're definitely

         13  loosing the $50 million?

         14                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well again, it's in the

         15  statute.  As Commissioner Kellner said the statute

         16  says that if a state has not met the requirements

         17  for new voting systems by January 1st, 2006, they

         18  are going to loose the money.

         19                 Now, there is an appeal process that

         20  the Election Assistance Commission has in place,

         21  that obviously, New York State will be looking to.

         22                 We also reached out to  --  over the

         23  summer, to the entire New York City Congressional

         24  Delegation as well and including both Senators to

         25  see if their staff's could be  -- and the members
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          2  could look at, without trying to put in some

          3  enabling legislation, so that we could possibly save

          4  that money.  I don't know if that's going to be able

          5  to happen.  Other states might not look to favorably

          6  because they've already spent the money, and even if

          7  they've spent the money and now are going to have to

          8  dip into their own coffers now to purchase new

          9  voting systems.               So, it's not going to

         10  be an easy sell for us, but again, it would be  --

         11  to me, it would be the worst possible thing to loose

         12  that money because of the fact that we are at the

         13  point where we are going be beginning the selection

         14  process, and then implementation process because if

         15  that money is lost, we're going to be coming to the

         16  Council and to the Mayor for the money, and again,

         17  we can't cut corners.  The money that we are going

         18  to need to do the huge amount of training, and the

         19  huge amount of public education is not going to be

         20  able to be done on a flimsy budget.  We're going to

         21  have to get it right as Commissioner Kellner said

         22  earlier, and that's going to mean doing a lot of

         23  media, it's going to be doing a lot of print and a

         24  lot of mail, and that's expensive.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  My last two
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          2  questions are, because of all the changes and the

          3  technology, there's also an opportunity to create

          4  some jobs for individuals, particularly individuals,

          5  and as you know, in the City of New York we have a

          6  high rate of unemployment, particularly in

          7  communities of color.              So the question

          8  is whether or not we can join together and create

          9  opportunities for those pockets within our City

         10  which are looking for employment.

         11                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well we have a set

         12  number of staff if the Council can  --  I'm never

         13  going to turn down more money to bring on more

         14  staff.

         15                 I think one of the reasons why we

         16  have been able to do the body of work that we have

         17  been able to do is we've been, with your assistance

         18  and the Mayor's, been able to increase Lucille's

         19  department and some of our other departments.

         20                 We obviously could do more if we had

         21  more people, and we could pay them good salaries.

         22  That's again another issue for another time, but

         23  I'll just throw it in since you opened the door for

         24  me.

         25                 Remember folks, when we have our new
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          2  voting systems, our machine facility technicians are

          3  now going to be in charge of now really being

          4  computer programmers.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right.

          6                 MR. RAVITZ:  Right now, I pay them

          7  $23,000 a year. I am not going to be able to get a

          8  computer programmer now to oversee Op Scan or DRE

          9  systems, and maintain them over the course of a

         10  year, and make sure that they're ready to go for

         11  $23,000 a year.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Last question

         13  is, will this system have to be subject by approval

         14  by Justice?

         15                 MR. RICHMAN:  Yes it will.  Since

         16  we're going to be using it in the covered counties,

         17  it'll be subject to pre clearance provisions of the

         18  Voting Rights Act.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Is that

         20  factored into your calendar?

         21                 MR. RICHMAN:  In the calendar you

         22  have, and the contingency plan, no.  That's one of

         23  the items that were  --  the assumptions that were

         24  excluded, legal issues and the others, but again,

         25  this is a process that's ongoing.  The same division

                                                            93

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  of the Justice Department brought suit in terms,

          3  last year the federal court, so as they continue to

          4  monitor our progress, hopefully they are sharing the

          5  information with their colleagues in the same office

          6  of where we are.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I also would

          8  imagine that you would need some changes in State

          9  law, right, as well?

         10                 MR. RICHMAN:  The Election Reform and

         11  Modernization Act that the Legislature enacted in

         12  2005, made most of the necessary changes.

         13                 MR. RAVITZ:  But we will need one

         14  change because the law did say that we have  --  we

         15  can't use lever machines after 2006, so obviously

         16  we're going to be using lever machines in 2007,

         17  which will mean that the Legislature will have to

         18  amend that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  What happens

         20  to those machines which break down often in my

         21  district, but I'm fondly attached to them?

         22                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well, I will tell you

         23  this, we had over 7,000 machines out for the

         24  November election, and we only had to replace seven

         25  during the course of the day.  So, I feel very good
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          2  about those numbers.  But we're not going to give up

          3  the lever machines, even when we move to the new

          4  voting systems, I think it's the prudent thing to

          5  keep those machines for a certain amount of time.

          6  Again, it's a logistical issue too because we're

          7  going to have to find space for those 7,000- plus

          8  lever machines, as we retrofit the machine

          9  facilities now to be homes for the new electronic

         10  voting systems.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right,

         12  exactly.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Council

         15  Member Dickens to follow up, and then Council Member

         16  Jackson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         18  much.

         19                 Council Member Barron asked in detail

         20  about the cost analysis and the contracts.

         21                 I have a question about incorporated

         22  into that, is it the additional  --  like for

         23  instance printers.  If we choose a system and it has

         24  a printer, are there going to be extra printers, not

         25  only at the Board, but available for the staff that
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          2  goes, the personnel that goes around on Election

          3  Day, and if a printer cannot be repaired, that

          4  another printer would be available within a timely

          5  fashion, so that no vote is lost?

          6                 MR. RICHMAN:  We have outlined and

          7  communicated to the State what we believe are vital

          8  elements of the contract, including the support

          9  services on Election Day, and the maintenance of

         10  equipment and supplies.

         11                 One of the things we will be looking

         12  at based on the final contract that the State

         13  negotiates is what the contract itself provides, and

         14  what we may have to contract for separately to

         15  provide us with the additional resources.

         16                 Currently as you know, we have the

         17  voting machine technicians in place to attempt to

         18  repair broken down lever machines on Election Day,

         19  we also have standby's and zone trucks around the

         20  borough being ready to be deployed as John said,

         21  only seven had to be put out on the General

         22  election.  Again, we're looking to have that same

         23  type of redundancy available so that no one gets

         24  denied the opportunity to vote.

         25                 You will have the ability to vote by
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          2  emergency ballot automatically, whether it's a DRE

          3  or an Op Scan. If the Op Scan is not working, or the

          4  DRE, it will be a paper ballot and counted

          5  afterwards, but we will look to have that same type

          6  of rapid response and technical support and

          7  equipment necessary to keep Election Day flowing.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Steve, that's

          9  very important, because in my district, my voters do

         10  not want to vote on a paper ballot. They're adverse

         11  to voting on a paper ballot, and if we are not ready

         12  to implement something else, we've got a problem

         13  there. Because I've had, and just in this past

         14  general election, in '06, in November, at one

         15  particular site, at Salem Church on Adam Clayton

         16  Powell Boulevard, where the machine didn't come the

         17  night before and the people were told to vote on

         18  paper ballot and they refused.

         19                 MR. RICHMAN: Council Member, that's

         20  -- the law provides paper ballots now as the

         21  emergency back-up. We got a precinct-based optical

         22  scanning, everybody is going to be voting on paper.

         23  You know, it's a technology we're aware of, it

         24  exists. The fact is, is, again, in the internal

         25  procedures that we have developed, people should not
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          2  be concerned that their emergency ballots are going

          3  to get lost. We have a bipartisan team of inspectors

          4  at the poll site. They put those envelopes into a

          5  ballot box. At the end of the night they're supposed

          6  to count them and record them on the tally sheet.

          7  They're supposed to seal them in an envelope, put a

          8  seal on it, sign it, give it to the police officer.

          9  The police officer brings it to the precinct. The

         10  precinct brings it to our borough office, they log

         11  it in that night, some time between midnight and

         12  4:00 a.m., if things go right, logging in saying

         13  that from this ED or this AD, we have an envelope

         14  containing supposedly 12 emergency ballots. And I

         15  can tell you this year when we got the close race in

         16  the 70th Assembly District for State Committee, it

         17  took us two weeks to count the ballots properly, but

         18  every vote that was qualified to be counted was

         19  counted. And both candidates will tell you that,

         20  that they got their accurate results.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: No, I agree

         22  with that. And I'm not saying that, and I, in fact,

         23  had to go to the site to try and encourage my

         24  constituents to use the emergency paper ballots, but

         25  I just want the Board to be cognizant, that in some
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          2  areas, and throughout the City, the voters are very

          3  frightened of voting.

          4                 MR. RAVITZ: Well, again, Council

          5  member, if we choose Op Scan, that will be one of

          6  the areas in which we will ask for your help and

          7  your colleagues' help in educating the public and

          8  lowering the public's anxiety. Because as Mr.

          9  Richman said, it's true, if we go to Optical

         10  Scanning, essentially you are voting on paper. And

         11  you are going to fill out your ballot by yourself

         12  and you then, if you are physically able, will be

         13  scanning that ballot into the system.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Council Member

         16  Jackson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         18  Chair Brewer, and Chair Felder. I apologize for not

         19  being here for the entire hearing, even though I'm

         20  not on the Committees, but I was at some other

         21  functions this morning.

         22                 But let me just say that I've had

         23  conversations and meetings with the Board of

         24  Election officials concerning questions and concerns

         25  that I've had and they have, in my opinion,
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          2  communicated everything that they, information that

          3  they had at that particular time. So, I have no

          4  problems as far as being briefed and up-to-date. But

          5  obviously, you know, what decisions are made as to

          6  which direction we go is another question, and I

          7  hope that we go in the correct direction in which

          8  people can verify their votes, in which all people

          9  had access, in that everyone will feel that every

         10  vote was counted and there was no hankie-pankie

         11  going on with respects to the number of votes cast.

         12                 But let me ask this question, if I

         13  may, concerning the EAC, the federal Elections

         14  Assistance Commission, they posted reports last week

         15  explaining why the New York State testing lab,

         16  Ciber, was not certified by them. How will that

         17  information affect your evaluation of systems under

         18  consideration here in New York City? And if you

         19  haven't had a chance to evaluate the reports, will

         20  you submit an answer to the appropriate parties

         21  after this hearing?

         22                 MR. RAVITZ: Well, Council Member,

         23  and, again, Commissioner Kellner from the State

         24  Board can correct me if I'm wrong, this is an issue

         25  that has stopped the process as of right now. The
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          2  State Board has stopped their overseeing the testing

          3  of all the systems first, because they will be the

          4  ones making the ultimate certification. Until the

          5  quality assurance issues that the EAC raised

          6  regarding Ciber are resolved, Ciber is not testing.

          7  And I know that on Friday, the State Board finally

          8  got all of the documentation that the EAC had

          9  written to Ciber with those concerns.

         10                 We're hoping, I'm hoping that these

         11  concerns can be resolved in an orderly way. Because

         12  if Ciber is disqualified from continuing to do the

         13  testing, then that is going to set us back

         14  dramatically, because then we're going to have to

         15  bring on another independent firm to probably start

         16  the process all over again, and then you're going to

         17  have to get the vendors then to submit to -- we've

         18  already sent in, it's a huge financial cost to start

         19  a testing fee, they would have to obviously get a

         20  new fee for that as well. So, it would really hurt

         21  the process if Ciber has to be replaced.

         22                 Now, if Ciber is not doing the job

         23  that it should be doing, then obviously, it's a

         24  non-starter. We obviously want the two independent

         25  labs to be able to meet the highest standards
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          2  possible. But that's going to be the State Board's

          3  call ultimately, so I would respectively refer your

          4  questions to the State Board. I'm sure that the

          5  State Board will be sending out a notice once this

          6  issue has been resolved.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I assume

          8  that even though the State Board has jurisdiction

          9  over this particular matter, I assume that you've

         10  had an opportunity to evaluate the reports and what

         11  have you?

         12                 MR. RAVITZ:  We have not seen the

         13  report yet.

         14                 The State Board literally, and

         15  Commissioner Kellner, you can correct me, just got

         16  it on Friday.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, but

         18  today is Monday.

         19                 MR. RAVITZ:  So, I don't know if

         20  they're going to give it  --  I think it's their

         21  call whether they're going to share it with all the

         22  counties or they're going to just be studying the

         23   --  you would have to ask the Commissioner on that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But the

         25  report, I assume the report is public and not
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          2  confidential; is that correct? Because if it's

          3  public, then I assume, whether or not they wanted to

          4  share it or not, I would assume that the New York

          5  City Board of Elections would want to read the

          6  report to evaluate it.

          7                 MR. RAVITZ:  Well, we'll definitely

          8  want to read the report, and I guess it did take the

          9  State Board some time to get the report, not for

         10  them not asking me, they were asking almost on a

         11  daily basis but there seems to have been some

         12  resistance from the EAC in giving out the report.

         13  But we will, I'm sure, work with the State Board to

         14  have our people look at it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Well,

         16  thank you.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Council

         18  Member Barron.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I noticed the

         20  Commissioner had a little smirk when my colleague

         21  said that her people weren't for the paper ballot,

         22  but let me assure you there's a difference between

         23  not being for the affidavit paper ballot when

         24  there's a lever machine, and they would rather vote

         25  on the machine as opposed to using paper because
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          2  they don't trust the paper. That's a different

          3  proposition than everybody voting on paper, and

          4  there's a machine that will validate that paper vote

          5  so you have the machine count and the paper count.

          6                 That is different than an affidavit

          7  ballot on a machine, a lever machine, that some

          8  people would rather vote on that.

          9                 So, I don't think we'll have

         10  difficulties educating our people, and as most of

         11  the people at the hearing said that they were

         12  supportive of an Optical Scanner with a paper

         13  ballot.  That's a total different concept than an

         14  affidavit paper ballot.

         15                 Would you agree with that,

         16  Commissioner?

         17                 MR. RAVITZ:  I would, it's going to

         18  be different because everyone is going to be voting

         19  on paper, but again, and I appreciate Mr. Richman

         20  taking you through the process.  What I really do

         21  hope because we will continue to be using emergency

         22  ballots possibly if a new system goes down, and

         23  clearly in`07 we will be using the emergency

         24  ballots.  The ballots  --  any voter who votes on an

         25  emergency ballot between 6 A.M. and 9 P.M. at their
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          2  poll site has to know that that vote is being

          3  counted at the same time as the votes taken off the

          4  machines.  I really can't say that strongly enough

          5  because I think, again, one of the urban legends in

          6  voting folklore is that people take the time to vote

          7  on emergency ballots, and it gets thrown in an

          8  envelope and never is counted.  It is part of our

          9  procedures, it is paramount that we live up to those

         10  procedures, that those emergency ballots are counted

         11  that night by the bipartisan poll workers and are

         12  recorded, and then as Mr. Richman said, handed to

         13  the police department so that they can then get it

         14  to our borough offices.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  We got that,

         16  but that wasn't my question, and we're clear on

         17  that, but I just wanted to get your opinion that

         18  isn't it quite different than the Optical Scanner

         19  with the paper ballot that will all go into a

         20  machine, and that vote will be on the machine as

         21  well as the ballot.  It is quite different than the

         22  affidavit ballot and the machines that exist now.

         23                 So, people wouldn't have to be afraid

         24   --  the reason why they're concerned about the

         25  paper ballot and machines that we use now, they

                                                            105

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  rather vote on the machine because there's a

          3  mistrust once you use paper.  That has nothing to do

          4  with the Optical Scanner and the paper ballot, which

          5  is quite different, wouldn't you agree?

          6                 MR. RAVITZ:  I would think it's going

          7  to be really a combination of both that we are now

          8  going to have in place, and so again, we're going to

          9  want to raise people's confidence on the fact that

         10  whether they're marking the ballot in the ovals, and

         11  then scanning it themselves, that those votes are

         12  going to be counted.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Yes, I got

         14  that, but I'm just trying to, and I'll try it one

         15  more time.

         16                 Wouldn't you agree that they paper

         17  ballot with the Optical Scanner machine is a

         18  different proposition than using an affidavit ballot

         19  when the machines you have now are not properly

         20  working?

         21                 MR. RAVITZ:  The step that it will

         22  show the

         23  voters--

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Commissioner,

         25  just say it's different  --  you know the
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          2  difference.

          3                 MR. RAVITZ:  I know we had such a

          4  good relationship until now, I don't want to ruin it

          5  but--

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Oh man,

          7  you're messing up this morning.  I'm trying to be

          8  cool.

          9                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Charles,

         10  we're running out of time, let's move on.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  All right,

         12  well I'll just say for the record, it is quite

         13  different than the paper ballot when the machines

         14  are not working, the Optical Scanner and the paper

         15  ballot is totally different.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I understand

         17  what you are saying, thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, that's

         19  all.  I'm finished.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you, and I

         21  want to thank my Co- chair for handling my

         22  colleague.  I said, "this is not the one I'm taking,

         23  let Gale Brewer handle this thing."

         24                 Anyway, there were two targets of

         25  this hearing, and one of them was about security and
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          2  we really haven't spent enough time, but we have

          3  spent a lot of time.  So, I don't want to prolong

          4  the time, but I will ask one question about

          5  security.

          6                 Are audits of paper ballots for PB/OS

          7  systems also routine and automatic?

          8                 MR. RICHMAN:  The statue requires

          9  that any voting system in the State of New York will

         10  have a three percent of the votes cast will be

         11  subject to the paper audit trail.  The State Board

         12  is in the process of developing the rules and

         13  regulations to actually implement that, but whether

         14  it's a DRE receipt or the paper ballots produced

         15  through the PB/OS, at least three percent roughly

         16  will be subject to an audit.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  If a machine has

         18  been identified by the staff as a possible faulty

         19  due to the recording of improper votes, is there a

         20  procedure for impounding and testing to the machine

         21  to determine what caused that error?

         22                 MR. RICHMAN:  All of the rights

         23  available to a candidate with respect to the to the

         24  judicial review of a contest will continue,

         25  including impounding the machines, counting all of
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          2  the paper ballots or the paper receipts.  Those

          3  rights under Article 16 of the Election Law have not

          4  been changed.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, and

          6  finally the last thing I want to mention, it's not a

          7  question, is that especially with the new technology

          8  that's going to come along, again, no matter what

          9  type of machine is being used, I would ask for your

         10  consideration in thinking about the possibilities

         11  since you're going to have to train everyone from

         12  scratch, certainly of having split shifts because

         13  there are many communities where people would be

         14  interested in serving, helping people in their own

         15  communities, but it's impossible for them to do so

         16  with the shift starting at 6 A.M. or something like

         17  that, and finishing 9 P.M., and on the other hand,

         18  if you had a split shift, even if they were

         19  overlapping, so that you knew that you wouldn't have

         20  anything missing, at least some of them, to some

         21  extent, you have the opportunity to bring more

         22  people from the communities where people are voting

         23  into those booths.  I would say that if you go look

         24  at your own numbers, you'll find that many, many

         25  communities, and I think there's no choice, you have
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          2  no choice, you need people working at those

          3  stations, but you have people coming from a variety

          4  of neighborhoods to serve people in other

          5  neighborhoods, and that if you had split shifts you

          6  may be able to get more people within the community,

          7  and as my colleague Council Member James said in

          8  terms of giving people an opportunity for employment

          9  as well.  There are people that work different shift

         10  and it's very difficult for them  --  there's no way

         11  they could take advantage of working from 6 A.M.

         12  until 9 P.M. if you had a split shift for example, a

         13  mailman or a nurse or something else like that that

         14  wants to be part of this process, as well as make

         15  some money, may be interested, or a city council

         16  person.  I didn't mention that originally but you

         17  said you need competent people, right?

         18                 MR. RAVITZ:  I'm not even going to

         19  answer it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do you want to

         21  answer that question?

         22                 MR. RAVITZ:  No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, I want to

         24  thank you very  much for coming today.

         25                 MR. RAVITZ:  Thank you, and Mr.
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          2  Chairman we  -- I'm going to stay for a while but we

          3  have staff from out electronic voting systems

          4  department that will be here for the entire hearing

          5  so that they can take notes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Very good, I

          7  appreciate it very much.

          8                 What we're going to do now is take

          9  one panel. We're going to have panels of four to

         10  start, panels of four, and we're going to start with

         11  a panel of people, a random panel of people just who

         12  signed up, and after that we're going to take the

         13  panel of good government groups and the only reason

         14  we're doing that is that we knew that the good

         15  government groups would not object to having people

         16  go before them.

         17                 How was that?  Was that good?

         18                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  It was okay,

         19  could have been better.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Not good, well

         21  we'll try to improve on that.

         22                 Marion Phyllis Cunningham, Abe Rosen,

         23  Margaret Yonco- Haines, and Barbara Pearl, if you

         24  can take a seat, there's one more chair.

         25                 I just want to remind the people who
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          2  are coming up to testify  --  I want to thank the

          3  Sergeant- At- Arms, they never get the credit really

          4  for making sure that everything runs smoothly, and

          5  that we get all the information that we need and

          6  that the lights don't shine too bright.

          7                 I just want to remind those that are

          8  testifying, you have two minutes, and to please not

          9  repeat anything that was said already, even if you

         10  believe that you can say it better than the person

         11  that said it.

         12                 If you have something new, we want to

         13  hear it, if not, you can say you agree with the

         14  point that was made.  You have the mics in front of

         15  you, in order for it to be working, the light has to

         16  be off on the stick, and we'll just go from right to

         17  left, is that okay?

         18                 Just identify yourself and talk.

         19                 MS. PEARL:  My name if Barbara Pearl,

         20  I live in Manhattan, and I'd like to thank you for

         21  the opportunity to speak.

         22                 I am here to speak on behalf of paper

         23  ballots and Optical Scanners.  I believe it's

         24  theoretically possible to design a system with

         25  checks and balances that would guarantee the
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          2  accuracy of touchscreen voting with some safeguards

          3  if there were a problem at the very least people

          4  would step back and say what went wrong, and what

          5  can we do to make it work better.  But the track

          6  record in other states has shown that such

          7  safeguards will not be put in place.  Rather at the

          8  first hint of a problem of a race awarded to the

          9  wrong candidate, the reaction has been to blame the

         10  loosing candidate for being a spoiler.

         11                 Consider this quote from the

         12  spokesperson for the winning candidate of a recent

         13  election in Florida.  "The loosing candidate is

         14  ignoring the will of the people, and undermining

         15  voter confidence in the democratic process."

         16                 Under this line of reasoning a

         17  candidate who complains that machines failed to

         18  record the votes of thousands of citizens is a

         19  spoiler, rather than someone concerned with good

         20  government.  Because of this risk, it is so

         21  important that New York City go with the paper

         22  ballots and Optical Scan option. With the underlying

         23  paper ballots we are not depending on machines to

         24  help us record our votes, just to tabulate them, and

         25  even then, we always have the option of using the
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          2  paper to tabulate votes, too.

          3                 Thank you for letting me speak.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 MS. YONCO-HAINES:  Thank you for

          7  holding this hearing on Resolution 131, and for

          8  inviting the public to speak.

          9                 My name is Margaret Yonco-Haines.  I

         10  live in Putnam County.  I am a foreigner.  I am

         11  Founder of Philipstown for Democracy, an

         12  organization in Putnam County that for nearly four

         13  years has addressed many public policy issues,

         14  including election integrity.

         15                 I am also Executive Director of Mid-

         16  Hudson Verified Voting, an election integrity

         17  organization that is active in Putnam, Dutchess,

         18  Ulster and Orange counties.

         19                 Both organizations that I am

         20  representing here today have been active in their

         21  strong advocacy for paper ballots and Optical

         22  Scanners instead of DRE's.  You have heard and you

         23  will be hearing many reasons why citizens who are

         24  knowledgeable on the issue have, almost without

         25  exception, taken this position based on factors such
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          2  as security, transparency, cost and voter access,

          3  and I'd like to actually comment  --  the one

          4  comment that was made earlier that in the prior

          5  testimony of the Board of Elections hearing they

          6  weren't certain that people were as expert enough to

          7  have an opinion.  I think that alone should cause

          8  pause.

          9                 If you have to be a certified expert

         10  to have an opinion on voting, I think people should

         11  start getting a little worried that we're moving in

         12  a direction that we don't want to move.

         13                 I share with all voters the deep

         14  satisfaction of going into a voting booth and

         15  casting my vote.  But, like all citizens, I do not,

         16  and the people in our community do not, want to

         17  merely go through the motions of "voting."  It is

         18  essential that my vote and all votes be counted and

         19  counted accurately as cast.  Further, the voting

         20  process should not be one that discourages the very

         21  voters it is designed to serve by imposing

         22  unnecessary delays on access to the voting booth.

         23  People should not have to chose, for example,

         24  between going to work and waiting in line to vote.

         25                 Finally, it is essential that the
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          2  process of voting belong to the citizens and not to

          3  private corporations.                   I come here

          4  today to urge you to bring Resolution 131 to a vote.

          5    Passage of this Resolution by New York City will

          6  be highly influential on the elected officials and

          7  election commissioners in the counties of the Hudson

          8  Valley and beyond.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MS. CUNNINGHAM:  My name is Marion

         13  Phyllis Cunningham, and I reside in Manhattan.

         14                 I hold the vote as the most sacred

         15  tool for participation in governing our country.  I

         16  was engaged in voter registration work in

         17  Mississippi and Alabama in the 60's, before the

         18  Voting Rights Bill became law, and I thank you for

         19  holding this hearing, and allowing me to speak.

         20                 Computers enable one corrupt insider,

         21  or one clever outsider, to alter the outcome of

         22  every voting machine in the City.

         23                 We cannot expect everyone to be a

         24  saint, and we cannot expect everyone to be such a

         25  genius that they can figure out what no one else has
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          2  ever been able to do  --  to make a computer system

          3  that cannot be tampered with by insiders or

          4  outsiders.

          5                 Computer scientist Avi Rubin of Johns

          6  Hopkins University said three- and- a- half years

          7  ago that these computerized voting machines can't be

          8  made secure by little fixes because their entire

          9  design is insecure.

         10                 Optical Scanners are more reliable,

         11  and a safer choice.

         12                 I urge you to vote Resolution 131 out

         13  of committee, so that the entire City Council can go

         14  on record as opposing electronic voting and

         15  supporting the less computerized alternative of

         16  paper ballots, Optical Scanners, and the accessible

         17  ballot- marking devices for voters with disabilities

         18  or non- English languages.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. ROSEN:  Thank you very much for

         21  holding these hearings.

         22                 My name is Abe Rosen, and I live in

         23  Flushing, Queens.

         24                 I am here on behalf of the United

         25  Hebrew Trades, a coalition of 38 unions in New York
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          2  City with a combined membership of more than 30,000

          3  members.

          4                 The United Hebrew Trades supports a

          5  Voter- Marked Paper Ballots and Optical Scanner

          6  system, the most reliable system among those being

          7  considered, for counting and, verifying

          8  independently, the accuracy of a vote.

          9               Democracy depends upon a system in

         10  which the voter can be certain that every vote will

         11  be counted accurately and preserved.

         12                 Moreover, Optical Scanners employ a

         13  well established, reliable and universally- used

         14  technology that is not prone to malfunction.

         15                 In addition, an Optical Scanner could

         16  accommodate five to ten times as many voters during

         17  a given time period than a touch screen system

         18  could, thereby eliminating long lines of voters.  In

         19  every respect, Optical Scanners have conspicuous

         20  advantages over any of the other systems being

         21  considered.

         22                 I am here to urge you to vote on

         23  Resolution 131 and release it from the Governmental

         24  Operations Committee so that it can be passed by the

         25  whole City Council.
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          2                 Thank you very much for your

          3  attention.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          5  much for coming to testify.  It is very much

          6  appreciated.

          7                 The next panel will be Lawrence D.

          8  Norden from the Brennan Center at NYU, Neil

          9  Rosenstein from NYPIRG, Doug Israel from Citizens

         10  Union, and Mary Lou Urban from the League of Women

         11  Voters.

         12                 Just to confuse you, we'll start from

         13  left to right this time, okay?  You can begin

         14  speaking whenever you are ready.

         15                 MR. ISRAEL:  Well thank you Chairman

         16  Felder and Chairperson Brewer for holding this

         17  hearing today.

         18                 I am Douglas Israel, the Director of

         19  Public Policy and Advocacy for Citizens Union.  With

         20  me is Andrea Senteno, she is a Policy Associate with

         21  the organization.

         22                 We provided this testimony to the

         23  Board of Elections last week at their public

         24  hearing, and a lot of it is more relevant probably

         25  to some of their decisions, than the Council, but I
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          2  wanted to hit on a couple of points.

          3                 We did outreach to our staff and also

          4  to our members of our organization to attend the

          5  public demonstrations, and we asked them  --  we had

          6  provided them with some things to look at when they

          7  evaluated the machines, and asked them to provide us

          8  their feedback.

          9                 What we've done in this testimony

         10  which you all have in written form is, provided

         11  feedback on Optical Scan and DRE voting systems.

         12                 Very specific items which I would

         13  like you to take a look at, I'm not going to hit on

         14  all of them today, but I want  --  Andrea's actually

         15  going to hit on a couple of points. I just want to

         16  put out there that we have not endorsed a specific

         17  technology or machine, and when we evaluated the

         18  machines at these public demonstrations, we tried to

         19  see it through the eyes of a voter, and not as an

         20  advocate, advocating for any system. We were looking

         21  for glitches, and things that are going to impact

         22  accessibility when voters go to those machines.  So

         23  these comments actually reflect that.

         24                 Andrea is going to share with you a

         25  couple of those points regarding undervotes and
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          2  overvotes, and also spoiled ballots.

          3                 But in general, I want to say that

          4  most of the feedback that we got is that the DRE's

          5  actually offered the greatest ease of use, and this

          6  was largely due to the appearance and the format,

          7  making them the most similar to the current lever

          8  system, and familiar to voters.

          9                 However, we recognize that the

         10  greatest advantage the Op Scan offered was the

         11  security a voter gained knowing that their ballot

         12  was recorded on paper and it was verifiable, and if

         13  there was any problems with the technology, that

         14  always existed and that's a very important thing to

         15  have.

         16                 So Andrea's just going to quickly

         17  touch on undervotes and overvotes, and then I want

         18  to make one final comment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Just to be fair,

         20  you're time is up.

         21                 MR. ISRAEL:  It's up already?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, do you want

         23  me to ring the bell again?

         24                 MR. ISRAEL:  No, I didn't hear it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right, if
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          2  you want, what I'll do is we will go through the

          3  panel, and if you want you can sign up, we'll make

          4  an exception to speak separately, just to circumvent

          5  the system.  Okay?

          6                 MR. ISRAEL:  Can I have ten seconds

          7  to close?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, sure.

          9                 MR. ISRAEL:  I just wanted to say we

         10  recognize the difficulties the Board of Elections

         11  had with this process over the last couple of years,

         12  and largely due to factors that were out of their

         13  control.

         14                 We think they did a very admirable

         15  job to date, and they have definitely conducted the

         16  process in a very open and transparent manner, and

         17  we're encouraged by the things they've said today

         18  about continuing in an open and transparent manner.

         19                 With that said, we realize the

         20  implementation is not going to happen in 2007, and

         21  we think, we agree that 2008 is a nightmare

         22  scenario.  We're going to have open primaries for

         23  both parties, potentially with candidates from  --

         24  major candidates, from both parties coming from New

         25  York.  That's going to be a lot more voters on
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          2  Primary and General Election Day, and potentially on

          3  General Election Day, New York State is a battle

          4  ground state in 2008, depending on which candidates

          5  are on the ballot.

          6                 So, while we're not prepared to

          7  recommend at this point that we don't implement any

          8  machines in 2009, we think it's something that the

          9  City should very seriously consider.

         10                 MS. URBAN:  My name is Mary Lou

         11  Urban, and I am an Election Specialist for the

         12  League of Women Voters of the City of New York.  On

         13  behalf of the League, I thank you for this

         14  opportunity to address the issues surrounding

         15  implementation of HAVA.

         16                 At times, we have presented testimony

         17  before this Council that was critical of the Board

         18  of Elections administration of city elections.

         19                 Today, we would like to begin by

         20  applauding the Board's latest efforts to make the

         21  selection of voting machines an open process by

         22  arranging demonstrations, and hosting vendor

         23  information.

         24                 Our primary concerns are that a new

         25  system be secure, accurate, recountable, and
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          2  accessible.  The League of Women Voters has

          3  supported Optical Scan for the last several years.

          4  The Board of Elections has made their determination

          5  as to the number of people per machine, based on an

          6  assumption of a 50 percent voter turnout, and

          7  without taking in account peak hour voting demands.

          8  They also underestimated the time it would take each

          9  voter to use a full- face ballot DRE with a Voter-

         10  Verifiable Paper Trail.

         11                 As a result, there would inevitably

         12  be unacceptably long lines at polling places,

         13  particularly in a Presidential election.  HAVA was

         14  designed to help America vote, not to erect barriers

         15  to participation.

         16                 We urge you to join us in supporting

         17  a paper ballot, Precinct- Based/Optical Scan voting

         18  machine accompanied by accessible ballot markers.

         19                 While we could spend hours assessing

         20  blame for our inability to purchase new voting

         21  systems at this time, it serves no purpose.  We are

         22  now confronted with the reality that we cannot

         23  comply with the State's Election and Modernization

         24  Act.

         25                 However, it would be even more
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          2  unfortunate if we were forced to initiate a new

          3  system in 2008 a Presidential year.               Today

          4  we are asking you to join efforts to urge the

          5  Justice Department and State Legislature to delay

          6  implementation until 2009, even though we realize

          7  this is a City election.

          8                 MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Thank you, my name

          9  is Neal Rosenstein.  I am the Government Reform

         10  Coordinator for NYPIRG.

         11                 It's now clear, we all know, the City

         12  really won't be replacing its lever machines in

         13  2007.  We believe the most responsible choice is to

         14  delay full implementation in 2009, on the condition

         15  that the City Board of Elections is required to

         16  improve on their embarrassingly limited introduction

         17  of accessible ballot markers last year.

         18                 For example, we see no reason that

         19  the number of sites offering accessible ballot

         20  markers shouldn't be increased ten- fold for 2007.

         21                 However, we shouldn't be fully

         22  replacing our lever machines and working out the

         23  kinks in a high turnout Presidential year.

         24                 We believe the best choice is Optical

         25  Scan as well.  Two of the advantages I'll highlight
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          2  haven't been focused on as much.  Optical Scan helps

          3  ensure fewer lost votes.  The statistical proof if

          4  clear.  Most people cast their votes  -- more people

          5  cast their votes using Optical Scan systems than

          6  DRE's being marketed in New York.  Why would anyone

          7  want to choose a voting machine which less people

          8  cast their ballot on? This should be the final nail

          9  in the coffin for these systems.             Optical

         10  Scan systems which is really obvious from the

         11  turnout here today, enjoy greater public confidence

         12  because they are safer from tampering or shoddy

         13  programming.

         14                 Now, while HAVA only requires one

         15  accessible voting system per site, we believe that

         16  would be a mistake.  A voter who wishes to use the

         17  accessibility or enhanced language access features

         18  on a ballot marker should not be segregated and made

         19  to stand on a separate line at a poll site.  To do

         20  so raises questions of fairness and equity.

         21                 We support giving each voter a choice

         22  between filling out their ballot by hand, or using a

         23  dedicated ballot marker at their own ED table.

         24  Advantages include preventing voters from being sent

         25  to separate lines at poll sites, based on their
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          2  language or accessibility needs, reducing lines for

          3  ballot markers, still at less of a cost than DRE's,

          4  eliminating voter intent questions about improperly,

          5  completed- by- hand paper ballots, and contributing

          6  to fewer undervotes.

          7                 For these reasons, we urge you to

          8  support Resolution 131.  We have made some minor

          9  suggestions for improvements, and we'd also like you

         10  to embrace this concept of one ballot marker

         11  dedicated at a table for voters to avoid the

         12  problems which were previously mentioned.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MR. NORDEN:  I am Larry Norden, I am

         15  Counsel and Director of The Brennan Center's Voting

         16  Technology Assessment Project.

         17                 Thank you to both Committee's for

         18  having this hearing.

         19                 Very quickly, I'm going to talk about

         20  why the Brennan Center has come out an endorsed

         21  Optical Scan Machines in New York, specifically.

         22                 Something that hasn't gotten, I

         23  think, enough attention is the fact that because New

         24  York has decided that we're going to have to have

         25  full- face DRE machines that list all of the
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          2  candidates and all of the races on a very big

          3  computer screen.

          4                 We're getting systems that usability

          5  experts have long argued are inherently confusing,

          6  and in fact, we have done a study on thousands of

          7  elections throughout the United States over the past

          8  several years, and the evidence is overwhelming, and

          9  if you'll look at page two of my written testimony,

         10  you will see that over the past several elections

         11  the undervote rate has been much higher at the`top

         12  of the ticket races' in counties and states that use

         13  full- face DRE's rather than Optical Scans in New

         14  York.  This could easily result in the loss of

         15  thousands, tens of thousands of votes in`top of the

         16  ticket races.'

         17                 This is  --  usability experts long

         18  warned us are going to be more of a problem in

         19  communities that don't use computers as much,

         20  minority communities, low- income communities, and

         21  in fact again, the results of looking at undervote

         22  rates in elections throughout the country have shown

         23  this is true.  The undervote rates on full- face

         24  DRE's, the DRE's that New York has been looking at

         25  have been much, much higher on full- face DRE's.
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          2                 Finally, when you look at down

          3  ticket, at things like state ballot initiatives, the

          4  disparity becomes so huge that, in fact, it's quite

          5  likely if New York decides to purchase full- face

          6  DRE's, that it is going to loose hundreds of

          7  thousands of votes in every election.

          8                 So for that reason, and others, we

          9  are endorsing DRE's in New York.  I just want to add

         10  one thing.

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  You said

         12  endorsing DRE's.

         13                 MR. NORDEN:  Oh excuse me, endorsing

         14  Optical Scans.

         15                 Just one thing I want to add, we

         16  surveyed thousands of counties throughout the United

         17  States on their procedures, regardless of what

         18  system New York purchases, the procedures that we

         19  adopt in using these machines are really going to be

         20  essential to making them secure, and I urge,

         21  certainly, the City Board and the State Board to

         22  look at the procedures that we found were the best

         23  around the country in using these machines.

         24                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you

         25  very much, and I think the Board of Elections
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          2  deserves great credit, and the State, but certainly

          3  it's because of your extensive many years of working

          4  in these fields. I think all of you have done that,

          5  Neil perhaps takes the prize.

          6                 But the fact of the matter is you've

          7  been doing it for a long time.  So, thank you.

          8                 My question is two- fold, one, asking

          9  Neil, when you talked about the possibility of

         10  amending the Resolution or just putting, instead of

         11  a one- stop- shop for each voter, I just want you to

         12  elaborate that because actually Council Member

         13  Simcha Felder and I were talking about the same

         14  thing, and it always has made more practical sense

         15  to me.  So, I just was wondering if you could

         16  elaborate on that.

         17                 MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Sure, for us and

         18  particularly in an urban area like New York that has

         19  poll sites that have a lot of ED's, we really are

         20  uncomfortable with the idea of when a voter who

         21  wants to use the language features of a machine, or

         22  accessibility features, is sent to a separate line.

         23                 I just think that's the wrong message

         24  to be sending out in general, but there is a lot of

         25  other advantages of giving voters the choice, the
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          2  choice, of filling out their vote by hand or by a

          3  ballot marker.  The ballot marker isn't going to

          4  circle an oval, it's going to shade it in properly.

          5  You'll eliminate a lot of voter intent questions.

          6                 Every voter, when they go up to their

          7  table will know, more likely know, that they have

          8  that option of using the ballot marker, if they have

          9  a disability.  It's not as if a poll worker has to

         10  inform them that in that corner, because some sites

         11  are huge, there's an accessible machine that is

         12  available for them.  There's a number of other

         13  rationale's we go to, while we think this is a good

         14  idea, and still it would be significantly less,

         15  perhaps half the cost of getting DRE's.  If you look

         16  at a four- ED site, you're talking about four DRE's

         17  the Board of Elections says, but probably six DRE's,

         18  maybe $60,000, maybe $80,000.  You look at that same

         19  four- ED site, four times four ballot markers,

         20  that's $24,000, an Optical Scanner, $30,000. Thirty-

         21  thousand is a lot less still than a $60,000 or

         22  $80,000 you need for DRE's.  Throw in another

         23  Optical Scanner even at that site, it's still

         24  significantly less.

         25                 So, we think that particularly in an
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          2  area like New York where there's all these language

          3  issues and requirements under the Voting Right Act,

          4  that it's really the way to go.

          5                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, Andrea

          6  maybe you want to participate in this discussion.

          7  Why don't you ask and answer the questions the you

          8  were going to earlier, go ahead.

          9                 MS. SENTENO:  Thank you, my name is

         10  Andrea Senteno.  I am the Policy Associate with

         11  Citizens Union, and just to kind of continue on from

         12  Doug's testimony, I'm just going to touch on a few

         13  comments made by our members and staff.

         14                 We noticed that the Diebold Optical

         15  Scanner does not sufficiently communicate the

         16  undervotes to a voter.  The voter is notified only

         17  of the first of possibly several undervotes on their

         18  ballot.  Should the voter choose to make a

         19  correction to that race, it must eject the ballot,

         20  make their selection and re- scan it.  For someone

         21  who may have undervoted more than once, it's

         22  possible that they would need to return to the

         23  scanner multiple times.  We noticed that the ES&S

         24  model notified the voter of undervotes more

         25  effectively by displaying on the LCD display the
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          2  total number of undervotes that appeared on one

          3  single ballot.  So after scanning his or her ballot,

          4  if there were undervotes, the voters prompted to

          5  eject the ballot to make corrections or to continue

          6  on leaving the ballot as is.

          7                 Upon speaking with the ES&S vendor

          8  representative, it appears the scanner can be

          9  programmed to go through each undervote on the

         10  ballot, allowing the voter to eject it, or to

         11  continue on at any time.

         12                 So this feature allows voters to

         13  select to undervote on a specific race without

         14  unintentionally undervoting on other races that may

         15  follow.  This was not an option on the Diebold

         16  model.

         17                 Another thing we noted was that the

         18  Sequoia DRE Voter- Verified Paper Trail displayed a

         19  clearer marking for spoiled ballots by

         20  printing`voided' on the top of a receipt after a

         21  voter choose to make corrections, so to decrease the

         22  likelihood of human error in the event of a hand

         23  paper recount differentiating voided ballots from

         24  bad ballots with a numerical code is problematic in

         25  the Sequoia model, better distinguishes the two.
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          2                 In closing we also realize that with

          3  new machines,

          4  a new way of voting, the public and poll workers

          5  will need extensive education and training on the

          6  new machines.

          7                 It will be especially important that

          8  the poll workers, and specifically poll site

          9  coordinators are given more than adequate training

         10  and hands- on experience with the voting machines.

         11  Additionally, we would encourage the City of New

         12  York to consider raising the pay for both positions.

         13                 CO- CHAIR BREWER:  Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 We've been joined by Council Member

         16  James Sanders of Queens.

         17                 Sort of picking up on that, and

         18  anybody can answer, but maybe the Brennan Center has

         19  looked more nationally, but what measures do you

         20  think are adequate regarding the possibility of

         21  eliminating security concerns?

         22                 Do you think that this is something

         23  that has been dealt with adequately, and if not,

         24  what do you suggest?

         25                 MR. NORDEN:  Well, certainly New York
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          2  has some very good regulations in terms of the

          3  certification process, and the audit is something

          4  that is incredibly important if we're going to trust

          5  these machines, and what the electronic tally is

          6  telling us.

          7                 I think that there are  --  doing the

          8  audit right is not something that's going to be

          9  easy, and they're going to have to be pretty

         10  complicated regulations, detailed regulations, in

         11  terms of how we do them.  But there are plenty of

         12  other things that can be done.

         13                 Certainly making sure that we're

         14  testing the machines properly before, immediately

         15  before, the polls open.  If we have Optical Scan

         16  machines, simple things like making sure that there

         17  are no ballots in the ballot boxes ahead of time.  Doing

         18  things like testing the machines actually during the

         19  Election Day, pulling them at random, and making

         20  sure that they're recording votes accurately on

         21  Election Day is something that's important.

         22                 All of these procedures, making sure

         23  that there's good testing, good physical security

         24  for the machines before and during Election Day, and

         25  good chain of custody practices are going to be key.

                                                            135

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2    Chain of custody, not just of the machines, but of

          3  the paper ballots, of the disks, of all of the

          4  material that you're going to use to audit to make

          5  sure that the electronic record is recording

          6  accurately, and the paper of course.

          7                 One thing I want to point out that

          8  has been a real problem in particular with DRE's, is

          9  that the paper trail is seen as just an audit trail,

         10  and as a result in many places like Cleveland, Ohio,

         11  we found this out when there was an audit done of

         12  the primary's there, the records weren't kept.  If

         13  it's seen as just a extra, often they are not kept,

         14  and so that's something that is going to be

         15  incredibly important.  They were missing about ten

         16  percent of the paper records in Cuyohoga County in

         17  Ohio, and I think part of the reason was because it

         18  was seen as just an afterthought to what the real

         19  tally was, which was on the computer.

         20                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Does anybody

         21  else want to respond on the security?  Doug?

         22                 MR. ISRAEL:  One thing we noticed

         23  from I think it was the Manhattan hearing, one of

         24  the members of the public asked why the Sequoia

         25  system was storing memory on RAM as opposed to ROM,
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          2  and I'm not a security expert, and I really don't

          3  know that much about technology, but the answer was

          4  not very satisfying. The Sequoia person on staff

          5  said, "Well, you would need in depth knowledge of

          6  the machine, and adequate access to it to really

          7  mess around with the memory security," and that's

          8  why we think it's fine to store it in RAM as opposed

          9  to ROM.  I think that's something that should be

         10  followed up on.  We were just very unsatisfied with

         11  that answer because that is a very likely scenario.

         12                 MR. NORDEN:  One other quick

         13  suggestion for the City Board if they move to a

         14  paper ballot system.  Paper is

         15  also  --  we support Optical Scanners, I mean it's

         16  very easy to tamper with potentially, conceptually,

         17  you could understand people changing ballots,

         18  stuffing them in, that should we move to a system

         19  where those ballots are barcoded in terms of serial

         20  numbered, so there's actual record keeping

         21  throughout the day, so you know how many voters

         22  signed in, how many of those went out, not in a

         23  method that contract what voter voted which way, but

         24  in a way which keeps more control over the ballots

         25  themselves.  So, someone can't introduce a fake
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          2  ballot or one that they've printed up themselves, or

          3  et cetera, et cetera.

          4                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Does anyone else

          7  have any questions?

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 Next panel we have Pearl Reeves,

         10  Diana Finch, Celia Wu, and James Robbins.

         11                 Pearl Reeves, are you at the desk?

         12  Is there a Pearl Reeves here?

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  She has to go.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Oh, you have to

         15  leave?

         16                 MS. REEVES:  Can I go first?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, yes,

         18  absolutely.  I'm sorry.  Those council members ask

         19  too many questions.  Have a seat, don't worry.

         20                 MS. REEVES:  I'm going to cut this

         21  short

         22  because--

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  We're going to

         24  go from left to right.  You're first.

         25                 MS. REEVES:  Okay, my name is Pearl
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          2  Reeves, and I'm a board member of the New York

          3  Statewide Senior Action Council.

          4                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          5  speak here today.

          6                 I urge the Governmental Operations

          7  Committee to vote on Resolution 131 and pass it, and

          8  recommend it for passage by the full City Council.

          9                 On January 8, 2007, the New York City

         10  Chapter of the New York Statewide Senior Action

         11  Council passed a resolution on the need for paper

         12  ballots, Optical Scanners and accessible ballot-

         13  marking devices for voters in New York City.

         14                 The Resolution says that, and I'm

         15  going to skip a lot of it,`whereas: Paper ballots

         16  and Precinct- Based Optical Scanners offer a more

         17  easily- used method of voting than electronic voting

         18  machines.'

         19                 We urge you, the New York City

         20  Council, to pass Resolution 131, which urges

         21  adoption of paper ballots, and Optical Scanner with

         22  accessible ballot- marking devices when our city has

         23  to replace our lever voting machines, and to urge

         24  the New York City Board of Elections to choose paper

         25  ballots and Optical Scanners with accessible Ballot-
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          2  Marking Devices when it has to replace the lever

          3  voting machines.

          4                 Thank you very much, and thank you

          5  for allowing me to come at this time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I hope your

          7  appointment goes well.

          8                 MS. REEVES:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Next.

         10                 MR. ROBBINS:  Thank you for inviting

         11  me to testify.

         12                 My name is Jim Robbins.  I am a long

         13  time resident of Council Member Gale Brewer's

         14  district on the Upper West Side, hi Gale.

         15                 First, I want to publicly thank

         16  Council Member Brewer for her eloquent testimony

         17  last November 21st in favor of paper ballot and

         18  Optical Scan voting systems at a hearing held by the

         19  New York City Board of Elections.

         20                 The hearing room was packed, and 50

         21  out of 54 speakers endorsed Paper Ballot/Optical

         22  Scan systems that the Resolution 131 calls for.  The

         23  other four talked about other aspects of elections.

         24                 A second hearing at the City Board of

         25  Elections last Tuesday, drew another overflow crowd,
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          2  and 95 percent of the more than 60 speakers spoke in

          3  favor of paper ballots with Optical Scanners.

          4                 But we still need the City Council to

          5  pass Resolution 131.  Your voices on this issue will

          6  carry far farther then ours, not just in New York

          7  City but all over the state. There are voices

          8  whispering in the ears of the decision- makers all

          9  over the state.  They are the voices of the

         10  vendors.  When HAVA was passed in the U.S. Congress,

         11  and they managed to create the impression that

         12  electrical touchscreen voting machines were the only

         13  and obvious new technology to replace hanging chads.

         14                 It's time for New York City Council

         15  to say that computers are not the proper technology

         16  for recording and casting votes.

         17                 Please speak out loud and clear to

         18  give the kind of political guidance and support the

         19  will help our Board of Elections select a PB/OS

         20  system as the next voting system for New York City.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  If you're in

         23  Council Member Brewer's district, you can speak as

         24  long as you want.

         25                 Okay, next.
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          2                 MS. FINCH:  I am here to speak in

          3  favor of Resolution 131.

          4                 My name is Diana Finch, I am a

          5  resident of the Bronx.  I am a literary agent

          6  representing Greg Palast, the first to uncover

          7  evidence of voter purge lists used in Florida in

          8  2000 and again in 2004, and to write about the

          9  effect of spoiled ballots, undervotes, overvotes,

         10  and disallowed provisional ballots, also Professor

         11  Steve Freeman of U. Penn, who analyzed discrepancies

         12  in the 2004 Presidential election between the exit

         13  poll results and the official count.

         14                 Every day I receive the Daily Voting

         15  News E- mail Digest, prepared seven days a week by

         16  John Gideon of VotersUnite.org.  DVN contains links

         17  to voting stories from the day before, news from

         18  county, state and national levels, all of it

         19  archived at the VotersUnite.org website.

         20                 One only has to browse the headlines

         21  in the Daily Voting News to get a sense of the

         22  disruptive, costly and time consuming troubles that

         23  New York City should avoid.  New York is not making

         24  its decision in a vacuum.

         25                 From the last three days, Ohio's new
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          2  Secretary of State is considering  using mandated

          3  service as in jury duty in order to have enough poll

          4  workers, as many long- time poll workers are no

          5  longer interested in what has become a fraught and

          6  difficult job.

          7                 Republican and Democratic legislators

          8  in Texas counties are trying to decide how to add

          9  paper trails to already purchased machines because

         10  of low voter confidence there.

         11                 In Sarasota, Florida, the Supervisor

         12  of Elections had to get special legal permission to

         13  use their voting machines in a March election, as

         14  they have been impounded since November, when 18,000

         15  undervotes were recorded in one race.

         16                 Oakland County, Michigan is recalling

         17  AutoMarks used in November for disabled voters

         18  because of widespread malfunctions.

         19                 Virginia just introduced legislation,

         20  passed in committee by 13 to 2, requiring that the

         21  state's touchscreen voting machines be replaced by

         22  Optical Scan.

         23                 I urge the Governmental Operations

         24  Committee to pass Resolution 131, and recommend it

         25  for a favorable vote by the entire City Council.
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          2                 MS. WU:  My name is Celia Wu,

          3  Manhattan.  I am submitting to you today a written

          4  testimony by my two district leaders, Keen Berger

          5  and Brad Hoylman, 66th Assembly District supporting

          6  PB/OS.

          7                 I have a statement of my own also.

          8  Thank you for giving me an opportunity to speak to

          9  you today.

         10                 PB/OS, paper ballots with Optical

         11  Scanners, are much less expensive, easier to teach

         12  poll workers, easier to maintain, technically

         13  simpler, and much more reliable.  If anything goes

         14  wrong, we have the voter's original ballot to

         15  look at.

         16                 I am concerned with the cost of

         17  DRE's.  DRE's are very expensive compared to Optical

         18  Scan systems.  In addition to the initial costs,

         19  DRE's much be replaced every five to ten years, and

         20  they require extensive training of poll workers, and

         21  on site technicians.  Our city does not have enough

         22  money for critical needs and we should not waste

         23  money on DRE's when we could buy better systems,

         24  Paper Ballot/Optical Scanner systems, that are one-

         25  third the cost.
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          2                 I urge you to consider all these

          3  reasons, and pass Resolution 131 out of committee

          4  for a vote by the entire City Council.  By passing

          5  Resolution 131 you will be providing guidance to our

          6  own City Board of Elections, and leadership to our

          7  whole state and nation.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Council Member Jackson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes, Ms. Wu,

         13  let my just thank you.  I mean you said that you

         14  were here giving testimony on behalf of your two

         15  District Leaders, your female District Leader, Keen

         16  Berger, and your male District Leader, Brad, is that

         17  correct?

         18                 MS. WU:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I've

         20  known Keen Berger for many, many  years, and I

         21  wanted to let you know in representing her, that I

         22  have the utmost respect for Keen Berger, and what

         23  she has done, not only for this City as far as

         24  education and education advocacy, but also for being

         25  a District Leader that is aware of the issues that
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          2  affect our country and our society, and speaking out

          3  today here on her behalf on this particular issue, I

          4  want you to know  --  to let her know that I'm glad

          5  that she's out front on this particular matter.

          6                 MS. WU:  Thank you, I will give her

          7  your message.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

          9  thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         11  much for coming to testify.

         12                 We have been joined by Council Member

         13  Bill DeBlasio, thank you very much.

         14                 Next panel, Seth Johnson, Georgina

         15  Christ, Jessica Flagg, and Shera Katz.

         16                 I just want to remind you again that

         17   --  I know that you have all been waiting a long

         18  time, but if it's the same issues, if you can target

         19  those things that have not been mentioned, there's

         20  nothing wrong with saying,`I'm in favor of such and

         21  such' but then to spend the time and it's a limited

         22  amount on targeting some of the things that haven't

         23  been said, it would be very helpful to us.

         24                 We'll go from right to left this

         25  time?
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          2                 MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you, sir.

          3                 My name is Seth Johnson.  I am an

          4  Information Quality Specialist, and you should have

          5  in front of you a couple of attachments.  One is a

          6  letter that I sent along with some other

          7  professionals in the field of Information Quality.

          8                 It's in response to the hearing that

          9  occurred on July 19th of the Administration and

         10  Commerce and Science Committee's of the House of

         11  Representatives at the Federal level, and they

         12  covered all sorts of different things about the

         13  voting status, voting reform status, but we noted

         14  that nowhere did they actually have any kind of

         15  factual assessment of the accuracy of these  --  the

         16  changes that are happening in the voting process.  You

         17  said I ought to say some new things, I have a number

         18  of very new things, and I think they are very

         19  important things that I think you should bear in

         20  mind, and I think this should help you in crafting

         21  some of the things that you ought to add a couple of

         22  more whereas' to your 131.

         23                 In 1980 the National Institute for

         24  Standards and Technology was giving, in the 80's

         25  that is, was given stewardship of the Baldridge
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          2  (phonetic) Award, which was  --  under Reagan, which

          3  was an effort to foster quality focus methods, okay?

          4                 However, NIST which oversees the

          5  Technical Guideline Development Committee at the

          6  Federal level has failed to apply their own

          7  principles of quality control to the Technical

          8  Guideline Development process, and it would be

          9  impossible for me to explain this in 25 seconds, but

         10  I will just point out one thing really quickly.

         11                 There's a lot of confusion about the

         12  nature of the accuracy, and people debate whether

         13  machines are more accurate, or whether we ought to

         14  recount a close vote.

         15                 If I could have like ten more

         16  seconds, I will just finish the definition, Sir.  Is

         17  that okay?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         19                 MR. JOHNSON:  Okay, what happens is

         20   --  accuracy is attribute of information, okay?

         21  The information that comes out of a complex process,

         22  and it either matches reality or it doesn't, okay?

         23  And under quality control methodology, what you do

         24  to put a complex process under control, and observe

         25  the impact of changes that you're introducing, you
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          2  should measure the product, not all the pieces.  And

          3  what the TGDC has been doing is an elaborate process

          4  of functional characteristics of voting machines,

          5  when the simple thing would be just to simply

          6  measure the accuracy of the output, and I don't want

          7  to take more time, but I certainly would like to

          8  talk to you at more length.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right, and I

         10  thank you and I think that it would be helpful for

         11  you to set up a time maybe to speak to DeNora

         12  Johnson, our Legal Counsel and Council Member Barron

         13  or first our lawyer, and see if that's appropriate.

         14                 I thank you.

         15                 Next.

         16                 MS. CHRIST:  Okay, my name if

         17  Georgina Christ.

         18                 Thank you for holding this hearing

         19  and giving me an opportunity to speak.

         20                 I am a proponent of paper ballots,

         21  Optical Scanners and Ballot- Marking Devices for

         22  voters who need assistance to mark their paper

         23  ballot.

         24                 However, as much as we want good

         25  equipment, I don't understand why we are willing to
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          2  purchase equipment from companies that have such a

          3  poor track record.  Avante's machines have not been

          4  used yet in great numbers, so they don't have much

          5  of a track record, but machines like Diebold, ES&S,

          6  and Sequoia have a history of high failure rates.

          7                 We should not give our money to

          8  companies like this, and should not let them provide

          9  equipment to run our elections.

         10                 If we have to replace our lever

         11  machines, the high cost of new equipment from

         12  current vendors should make us evaluate whether it

         13  is feasible for us to make our own Optical scanners

         14  which are a relatively simple technology.

         15                 The state of Oklahoma developed their

         16  own software for their current Optical Scanner

         17  system.  I have suggested to our New York City Board

         18  of Elections at their hearing last week to speak

         19  with Oklahoma's Secretary of the State Election

         20  Board, who has responsibility for administration of

         21  that office.  His name is Michael Clingman.

         22                 There has not been a problem report

         23  from Oklahoma in any problem database for recent

         24  elections.  If Oklahoma can do it, why can't we?

         25  Why can't we use Oklahoma's approach for New York?
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MS. FLAGG:  Thank you, my name is

          4  Jessica Flagg, and thank you very much for holding

          5  this hearing, and inviting us to speak.

          6                 I'm here to speak in support of

          7  Resolution 131, but I would also like to go on the

          8  record as supporting Georgina Christ's testimony, as

          9  well as the testimony by NYPIRG.

         10                 I support the paper ballots and

         11  Optical scanning because the DRE's have really

         12  failed voters around the country, lost votes,

         13  overcounts, more votes than people, no way to

         14  determine the original voter intent because the

         15  electronic record and the paper trail are both

         16  created by the computer.

         17                 I come out of the computer industry,

         18  I worked in it for years.  I know how really simple

         19  it is to create a paper record that says one thing,

         20  while the internal is doing something else, and

         21  there's no way to certify it unless you do an item-

         22  by item check.  To have a three percent audit

         23  suggested as the standard is absolutely, pitifully

         24  inadequate.

         25                 New York needs to stand apart, and we
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          2  need to serve our voters and the democracy.  We owe

          3  it to the democracy that our system be of highest

          4  integrity, and that it can withstand the scrutiny of

          5  a rigorous audit.  We shouldn't allow controls of

          6  technology to be in the hands of private interests,

          7  and the mechanism for counting the vote should not

          8  be based on a virtual record.  It needs to be based

          9  on an original document, marked by the voter.

         10                 Thank you for holding the hearing,

         11  and I appreciate the opportunity to speak.  Thank

         12  you.

         13                 MS. KATZ:  Thank you, my name is

         14  Shera Katz, and I've been a voter in the county of

         15  New York for over 20 years. I've worked as a poll

         16  worker since the fall of 2005.  When I work as a

         17  poll workers, it means a great deal to me to see our

         18  democracy in action.  I want to continue to see our

         19  democracy stay in action.  I'm here to support Paper

         20  Ballot/ Optical scanners over DRE's.

         21                 Lincoln defined our government as

         22  being "of the people, by the people and for the

         23  people."  He did not define it as being "of the

         24  vendors, by the vendors and for the vendors." He

         25  would not agree as some have implied earlier today,
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          2  that government is "of the experts, by the experts,

          3  and for its people."

          4                 Every generation has its own

          5  challenge to keep democracy real, and not just an

          6  illusion.  In our time, the challenge is to make

          7  sure that the tools we use to keep democracy working

          8  are the right tools for the job.

          9                 DRE's are the wrong tools to record

         10  and count votes because voters and observers can't

         11  tell if the job is being done right.  Security and

         12  voter confidence come from observation and

         13  understanding what we observe.  Legitimacy of

         14  elections comes from ordinary people being able to

         15  observe, understand and attest that the votes were

         16  recorded and counted correctly.  DRE's keep us from

         17  doing that.

         18                 This is too important a moment in our

         19  great City's history to let it pass without all of

         20  us showing where we stand. New Yorkers have

         21  overwhelmingly expressed their support for Optical

         22  scanner over DRE's.  They have done this at the

         23  Board of Elections Hearings, Community Council

         24  Meetings and through petitions.

         25                 Please stand with us.  Please vote
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          2  Resolution 131 out of committee, and urge your

          3  colleagues to give it a unanimous passing vote.

          4  This is not the time for anyone to remain silent.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          7  much.  I want to thank the whole panel for coming.

          8                 Next panel is Aaron Belisle, Brian

          9  Redondo, Brad Usher, and Teresa Hommel.

         10                 The Sergeant- At- Arms is going to

         11  come over and collect your testimony, meanwhile have

         12  a seat and we will start.

         13                 There was four people I called, can

         14  you give me them again just to make sure?

         15                 Aaron Belisle, Brian Rodondo, and

         16  Brad Usher is not here, so who else?  We have one

         17  more person,  Nydia Leaf, please.

         18                 Can you make some room for Ms. Leaf?

         19     All right, and from left to right, we're ready to

         20  go.

         21                 MR. BELISLE:  Thank you for having

         22  this hearing, my name is Aaron Belisle.  I am the

         23  Voter Education and Access Coordinator for Center

         24  for Independence of the Disabled of  New York, or

         25  CIDNY.

                                                            154

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2                 I have testimony here today which you

          3  can read, and we have some of our earlier testimony

          4  on our website, if you want to look at that.

          5                 I wanted to start by talking about

          6  some things that are not necessarily in the

          7  testimony.  I just want to follow up on what Neil

          8  said earlier on the part of NYPIRG about the

          9  importance of expanding the use of Ballot- Marking

         10  Devices, giving voters the choice of using paper

         11  ballot or the machine because that would allow for

         12  the true integrated voting process that HAVA

         13  requires, and it gives people with disabilities the

         14  ability to vote like everyone else.

         15                 I just wanted to touch on some things

         16  that came up on the hearing today.  It was said

         17  earlier about delays and making decisions that

         18  really we have nothing to loose with money and

         19  security concerns, and when we talk about delaying

         20  voting with these machines until 2009, it's

         21  important to remember that those with several more

         22  elections where people with disabilities aren't

         23  going to vote like everyone else, and that the delay

         24  for these concerns is a delayed expense of more

         25  inaccessible poll sites and inaccessible machines.
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          2  So that shouldn't be forgotten.

          3                 The other point about what John

          4  Ravitz said earlier about the disability community

          5  not participating, one, I would say that that's a

          6  disability community which may not be visible to him

          7  not participating.  There are many types of

          8  disabilities that are not necessarily visible, but

          9  also, if you look at our history with CIDNY, and

         10  again, this is all on our website, we did voter

         11  demonstration and machine testing back to 2003 and

         12  2005, Chair Brewer was involved in some of that, and

         13  knows it well, and we feel often in the disability

         14  community that we've been left behind.  We have been

         15  participating, we've shared our opinions.  Our

         16  opinions in 2003 really remain the same now, it's

         17  just that we haven't seen any forward action.

         18                 So, I support the Resolution, and

         19  really any action to move forward on these things,

         20  and get to see some results now this year, as

         21  opposed to 2009.

         22                 Thanks.

         23                 MS. HOMMEL:  Thank you, I am Teresa

         24  Hommel as you know.

         25                 In a democracy it is not appropriate
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          2  for anyone to remain silent.  So, citizens are

          3  asking for voting systems that allow us to

          4  participate in a meaningful way in elections.  It is

          5  not meaningful to tell people to come in and vote

          6  but they don't get to know anything else.  They

          7  don't get to watch how the votes are being handled.

          8  They don't understand a thing, and don't worry your

          9  little head because some expert can tell you that

         10  everything was okay, and a statistician can argue

         11  you about it with another statistician for the next

         12  ten years, and tell you that they think it was all

         13  right, and anyway it's statistically significant.

         14                 I would like to comment on something

         15  John Ravitz said, I would like to say you don't have

         16  to train or educate people that have confidence or

         17  craft your message so that they have confidence if

         18  people can observe and understand what they are

         19  watching.  All right, when you  have to teach people

         20  to have confidence then that's a scam.

         21                 I'm going to repeat myself because

         22  that's a pretty aggressive statement.  It's a scam

         23  when you have to teach people to have confidence in

         24  something because they're not allowed to watch or

         25  understand it.
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          2                 The City Council does not have to

          3  wait to find out what new systems are going to be

          4  certified in the state to take a position on

          5  democracy, and say that you support open, observable

          6  elections, and that observation has to be

          7  meaningful.  Please don't use the buzz work

          8  transparency because nobody really knows what the

          9  means.  The questions is can any non- technical

         10  citizen observe how the votes handled, and attest

         11  that it is honest and proper.

         12                 For example, Chairman Felder, your

         13  mother could watch a ballot box and she would know

         14  what she was seeing if somebody runs in and grabs

         15  it, and runs out, or exchanges a bunch of ballots.

         16  But when somebody replaces a memory stick about the

         17  size of my pencil, and that's been tampered with,

         18  your mother is going to be up a creek.

         19                 I would like to see your mother

         20  against Lucille Grimaldi.  With Paper Ballots and

         21  Optical scanners your mother would do a fine job of

         22  knowing when the ballots were being tampered with,

         23  but with an electronic voting machine she would be

         24  clueless, and the whole questioning  --  the whole

         25  line of questioning that went on about insider
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          2  tampering was easily sloughed off by the New York

          3  City Board of Elections, they did not answer.  The

          4  point of insider tampering is that somebody in the

          5  position of Lucille Grimaldi, and I am not accusing

          6  her of being dishonest in any way, I think she is a

          7  fine and professional person, but insider tampering

          8  means somebody who's on the inside and nobody see's

          9  them work other than other people they work with,

         10  and if somebody comes over and says, "Oh excuse me a

         11  minute Aaron, I just have to check a file" and two

         12  seconds later that file has been altered, who's

         13  going to know the difference?

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. LEAF:  Hello, thank you for this

         16  hearing.

         17                 My name is Nydia Leaf, and actually I

         18  live in Council Member Gale Brewer's district, so

         19  many I'll get another minute.  No, I'm just joking.

         20                 I reside on West 95th Street, and I

         21  have served as an Election Inspector at various West

         22  Side districts since the early 1970's, with the

         23  exception of nine years when I lived in California.

         24                 I attended the voting machine

         25  demonstrations at Hostos College because I wanted to

                                                            159

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  see the equipment from a few perspectives; as a

          3  voter, and as an Election Inspector.

          4                 As a voter, my preference was for the

          5  paper ballots.  By marking the ballot myself, I had

          6  more control of the process, it was mine, it was

          7  transparent, and if a recount would be needed, my

          8  vote was verifiable.

          9                 As an Election Inspector, I prefer

         10  the PS/OS but for different reasons.  The DRE

         11  touchscreens are not user friendly for older voters,

         12  and speaking bluntly, the majority of voters are

         13  always going to be older citizens.  They are the

         14  elders, they understand voting as a duty and as a

         15  privilege, and it's important to acknowledge that

         16  polling places in Manhattan are not ideal sites.

         17                 As an Election Inspector, I always

         18  try to make it a very friendly, welcoming place, no

         19  matter what the weather, the hour, or the noise

         20  level.  I can assure you that from the perspective

         21  of a worker at a polling site, the DRE touchscreen

         22  will be nothing short of a nightmare, and I'm

         23  referring to long lines that will inevitably ensue.

         24  I'm not intimidated by computers, I have one at

         25  home, but DRE screens are not only large, but they
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          2  are pitched at a height and width that are awkward

          3  and forbidding.

          4                 You have my testimony.  I thank you

          5  for your time, and for these hearings.

          6                 I wish you well, it's a complicated

          7  process.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. RODONDO:  Good afternoon, my name

         10  is Brian Rodondo, and I'm the Voting Rights Public

         11  Education Coordinator at the Asian- American Legal

         12  Defense and Education Fund, ALDEF for short.

         13                 ALDEF is a 32- year- old organization

         14  that protects and promotes the voting rights of

         15  Asian- Americans through litigation, legal advocacy

         16  and community education.

         17                 In every election, we consistently

         18  receive complaints that the Chinese and Korean

         19  ballot translations are too difficult to read

         20  because of the font size is too small.

         21                 We emphasize the importance of these

         22  concerns, and we urge the City to adopt a voting

         23  system that uses large, readable print for all

         24  languages.  All voters will benefit in this regard.

         25                 The small print is especially
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          2  problematic for elderly Chinese and Korean- American

          3  voters who rely heavily on translated ballots to

          4  cast their votes.  They're the voters most likely to

          5  use the translations, but are the least likely to be

          6  able to read the small print.

          7                 While the Board of Elections provides

          8  magnifying sheets to aid voters, we have found in

          9  numerous elections that very often these magnifying

         10  sheets are not made available. Instead, the Board

         11  should employ a larger, readable font size.

         12                 Currently, ballots appear in four

         13  languages; English, Spanish, Chinese and Korean as

         14  mentioned earlier.  The inclusion of all four makes

         15  a ballot cumbersome and space limited, while the

         16  Asian language translation suffer.  If enlarging the

         17  translations on an already crammed ballot is

         18  impossible, then we recommend a shift to bilingual

         19  ballots. Three type of ballots could be produced;

         20  English/Spanish ballots, English/Chinese ballots,

         21  and English/Korean ballots.  Limiting the number of

         22  languages on a single ballot affords more surface

         23  area that could be used for larger English and non-

         24  English font sizes.  Larger fonts will improve the

         25  readability of ballots regardless of the language it

                                                            162

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  is in.  Such added simplification and clarity would

          3  aid all citizens in voting with ease.

          4                 We ask that the City consider

          5  implementing these changes to improve the voting

          6  process.  As it stands, the current ballots and

          7  proposed future ballots are hampered by tiny print.

          8                 We urge the Board of Elections to

          9  resolve this problem in selecting the new voting

         10  machines.  Bilingual ballots are paramount to making

         11  the vote accessible to language minorities, though

         12  only if the ballots can actually be read.

         13                 Thank you for your time.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Nydia, I have

         15  a quick question.

         16                 When you are there in the poll site,

         17  I know you do a great job, and I support the Optical

         18  Scanners, but I have one question.  When the

         19  individual either with a machine, and the marking

         20  the ballot by hand, then that person, at least the

         21  one who's marked it by hand, would go to but it in a

         22  box, so to speak.  In other words, in another  --

         23  across the little space, it's not clear how it would

         24  all be laid out.

         25                 Do you think that would be a problem?
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          2    In other words, people just taking it to a second

          3  line?

          4                 I'm just asking because I don't know

          5  the answer.

          6                 MS. LEAF:  Well usually the workers

          7  are supposed to be four people in every ED at all

          8  times, but there are lunch breaks, sometimes there

          9  aren't four people, you start out with two, and two

         10  come later on.  There's going to have to be at all

         11  times, at least three people.  Somebody who's there

         12  where you're signing in, somebody who's giving you

         13  the ballot, and  --  I am assuming this is with the

         14  PS/OS, and somebody who will accompany each person

         15  to wherever you're going to put it in for the vote.

         16                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         17                 MS. LEAF:  There has to be three

         18  people at all times.

         19                 CO- CHAIRPERSON:  Okay, thank you.

         20                 On the terms of CIDNY, I know Susan

         21  Dual (phonetic) well.  My questions is, I mean I

         22  also believe that the community has been involved,

         23  and I was a little surprised at the statement that

         24  the outreach wasn't what was expected by the Board

         25  of Elections because I think CIDNY has been
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          2  tremendously involved.

          3                 So I just wanted to know if there's

          4  something that I'm missing here?

          5                 MR. BELISLE:  Well again, I think

          6  part of it is that perceptions that only  --  we're

          7  basing this on disabilities that you can see, so, if

          8  someone who is blind, or someone who uses a

          9  wheelchair shows up at an event, clearly they are

         10  the people with disabilities in the room when we

         11  know that disability extends beyond that.

         12                 But, I think that again, I think this

         13  is just a demonstration of the frustration with this

         14  process, and the failure to implement the promises

         15  of HAVA.  I mean, if you look at the Ballot- Marking

         16  Devices that were used last year, I think overall it

         17  was very positive, but I don't know if many people

         18  with disabilities used them, in part because of

         19  where they were located, and until there's a machine

         20  in each poll location, and it's just as convenient

         21  for people with disabilities to vote as well as

         22  anyone else, I don't think that we're going to see

         23  that much of a reaction.

         24                 But we have to keep in mind that

         25  we're changing a process for people with
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          2  disabilities that they may never have known anything

          3  different in their lifetime.  They don't expect to

          4  go to their poll sites and vote like everyone else.

          5  One, because the machines are inaccessible, and two,

          6  because the buildings that they're in are

          7  inaccessible.  So, they don't know any different,

          8  and they may not be so willing to change.

          9                 But we have to demonstrate through

         10  the public that this is a new opportunity for them,

         11  and it's going to take some time for us to see those

         12  effects.

         13                 CO- CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         14                 Council Member Barron.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just wanted

         16  to ask Ms. Hommel some questions about the

         17  Commissioner's response to the cost question, and

         18  also to the insider tampering question.

         19                 I don't know if there were adequate

         20  responses, and then the impact that the DRE's  --

         21  negative impact, of DRE's have had across the

         22  nation.  If you could just elaborate a little on

         23  that.

         24                 MS. HOMMEL:  In terms of cost, we've

         25  tried to get a comprehensive, one- sheet summary of
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          2  what all the different costs would be, and what they

          3  are for each different vendor, for each different

          4  product.  We asked that question at one of the

          5  demonstrations, and the Board of Elections and the

          6  vendor were very eager to not answer that, and John

          7  Ravitz said, "Well, the information is on the

          8  website."

          9                 There are over 2,200 pages of

         10  information on the website, and the cost information

         11  is vastly spread out. Activists around New York

         12  state have been studying the RFI replies, in order

         13  to figure out what the bottom line is. One of the

         14  vendors charges eighty- five cents per voter who

         15  uses the machine to estimate the cost.  Commissioner

         16  Kellner left so I was going to say that maybe he

         17  could enlighten us on this.

         18                 Another vendor said that if you take

         19  the total purchase cost, the total up front purchase

         20  cost, they charge another 18 percent of that per

         21  year, so that approximately five years later you

         22  have paid the up front purchase cost twice, and

         23  there are all other kinds of hidden costs.  "Well,

         24  there's one percent for this, and there's $8,000 for

         25  that."  And these are recurring costs per machine,
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          2  or per voter, for the rest of time that you use it.

          3  So, it's sort of like doing business with the devil

          4  because you never stop paying.

          5                 I think it's four years since HAVA

          6  passed, I'd like to say that they two bills in the

          7  State Legislature that ended up being passed as ERMA

          8  in the Senate Bill under Fiscal implications it

          9  said,`to be determined,' and under the Assembly Bill

         10  under Fiscal implications it said,`none,' and we

         11  have waited for four years to get an idea of what

         12  the costs are, and I think it's a red flag when

         13  nobody is willing to say.

         14                 The second thing in terms  --  what

         15  was the other question?  Insider tampering?

         16                 The question of insider tampering is

         17  enormous and it was disappointing to see the Board

         18  of Elections not understand the question.

         19                 The point is, if you have for

         20  example, the New York City Board of Elections, the

         21  Administrative Office at 42 and 32 Broadway, if you

         22  have over 330 people working there, and a certain

         23  percentage of them have access to the computer

         24  systems, are there always going to be two people in

         25  the room?  I think that that is inappropriate to
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          2  even expect.  You have this saints and sinner

          3  mentality about paper ballots versus computers

          4  because people say,`well, if you have paper ballots

          5  a guy can have lead under his fingernails.'

          6                 Again, not to call on Mrs. Felder,

          7  but anybody mother can inspect the fingernails and

          8  see that there's lead under them.  Things that we

          9  can see, I'm from Missouri, the Show Me State, so

         10  I'm sorry I'm from the Midwest, but I think that an

         11  ordinary and non- technical person has to be able to

         12  understand what they're watching, and my example

         13  with Aaron Belisle was not a frivolous one.

         14                 We have had reports from California,

         15  Riverside County, and from other counties around the

         16  country where observers were forced to wait in a

         17  room on the other side of a window or 20 feet away

         18  from the computer.  Meanwhile, a person is there

         19  working on the keyboard, and with the mouse, and

         20  nobody can see what they're doing, but there was one

         21  Riverside County example, and that's why Michele

         22  Townsend (phonetic) retired after it was challenged

         23  that the Sequoia representative's went into the

         24  room.  One candidate had 49 percent, and the other

         25  one had 51, but when the Sequoia representative
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          2  left, the percentages were reversed, and nobody

          3  could see what was going on, and nobody was allowed

          4  to observe.  Republican Jim Marge (phonetic) was

          5  arrested in Los Angles for demanding his right under

          6  state law in California to observe in a meaningful

          7  way.  You cannot do it with a computer, and it's

          8  not, you know when the Sequoia guy here in the

          9  Brooklyn demonstration showed me the little memory

         10  stick, and he explained to me the security with the

         11  memory stick, and I said, "that would only protect

         12  you against the voters and the poll workers, what

         13  about the insiders at the Board of Elections?" He

         14  said, "nobody can protect you against them."  And

         15  that's why Chairman Felder and Chairwoman Brewer, I

         16  just want to make very clear to you unless you have

         17  independent computer scientists demonstrating in

         18  public how the computer can be tampered with by

         19  insiders, there will never be respect for proper

         20  procedures, and nobody will even understand why

         21  those proper procedures have been set up.

         22                 That was a problem that they had in

         23  California when Kevin Shelly (phonetic) set up

         24  procedures, and the County Clerk said, "we don't

         25  think we need to do this, we're not going to do it,"
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          2  and they just refused to follow what was a legal

          3  imperative.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Next panel is

          6  Sherry Rogers, Chris Despopoulos, I hope I got that

          7  right.  I'm sorry.  Rick Schwab, and Pamella Farley.

          8

          9                 Just go to the desk, have a seat and

         10  our wonderful Sergeant- At- Arms will come over and

         11  take your testimony from you.

         12                 In the meanwhile, I just wanted to

         13  mention for the record that we have testimony from

         14  State Senator, Liz Krueger and from Assembly Member

         15  Keith Wright, and from the United Spinal Association

         16  that are going to be input into the record.

         17                 Okay, we start from right to left, go

         18  ahead.

         19                 MR. DESPOPOULOS:  My name is Chris

         20  Despopoulos, I am a Lead Technical Writer and

         21  Programmer at a large high- tech firm here in New

         22  York.  I have more than 15 years in the field, and

         23  I've contributed to the design of many high-tech

         24  systems. There's no hard science for system design,

         25  but there are universally accepted guidelines.  One
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          2  that is common to all successful projects is this:

          3  Use the appropriate technology.

          4                 Now, two people have already

          5  testified to the notion that paper is more

          6  appropriate for marking and storing ballots.  Your

          7  vote has a material effect on your life and liberty,

          8  and a ballot should be a material artifact that can

          9  be retrieved and examined.

         10                 I am going to refer to another

         11  principle that's common for all successful projects,

         12  and that is referred to as KISS, and that is the

         13  acronym, KISS, Keep it Simple Stupid.

         14                 I'll express it with a paraphrase

         15  from Donald Kanouth (phonetic) one of the guru's of

         16  computer science. Debugging a system is more

         17  difficult than implementing it.  If your

         18  implementation is as clever as you can make it, by

         19  definition, you cannot debug it.  These are words

         20  that people live by in the industry, and I would

         21  encourage, as the City of New York considers a

         22  system that without introducing the technology, the

         23  voting system is fantastically complex. Introducing

         24  technology adds to the complexity, and introducing

         25  complexity to the input system and verification, I
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          2  cannot imagine  --  the panel referred to one week

          3  for a test plan.  I cannot imagine being able to

          4  come up with a test plan in one week.

          5                 All right, very quickly I am in

          6  support of Resolution 131.  I urge these Committees

          7  to pass it out of committee so the City Council can

          8  vote on it.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MR. SCHWAB:  Hello, my name is Rick

         11  Schwab, and I am a citizen of New York City.  I

         12  thank you for allowing me to speak here today.

         13                 I, of course, support Resolution 131.

         14  It's a no brainer.  But what I love about being

         15  involved in this whole process for the past year, is

         16  watching the people of New York City and New York

         17  State stand up and make this work.  It's awesome.

         18  This is such a brilliant place, and Commissioner

         19  Kellner and everybody up in Albany, Ciber, goodbye,

         20  great job. They come into our home, and they try and

         21  push us around, forget it.

         22                 Thank you, I urge you to pass this

         23  Resolution right away.  It would be a perfect

         24  bookend to a beautiful American story.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MS. FARLEY:  I am happy to express my

          3  appreciation for the hearings, and to be part of a

          4  process of democracy in action.  I am Pamella

          5  Farley, Professor Emerita of Brooklyn College, CUNY.

          6                 I advocate that we use voter- marked

          7  paper ballots rather than touching electronic

          8  screens that may or may not produce accurate tally

          9  numbers.

         10                 My point is that the use of the

         11  term`paper trail' is misleading because that's not

         12  enough.  There's a difference between a paper trail,

         13  which is used to spot check a few electronic

         14  tallies, and voter- marked paper ballots which can

         15  be recounted.

         16                 I'm not going to speak about the

         17  failures of electronic voting machines already in

         18  use around the country, the fact that these have

         19  proved to be inadequate about the evidence for that.

         20

         21                 I'm not going to speak about the

         22  standards which were not established when those

         23  voting machines were designed, and manufactured and

         24  purchased.

         25                 I'm not going to speak about the
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          2  certification not being properly carried out, or

          3  inadequate security because those points have

          4  already been mentioned.

          5                 I'm not going to speak about the

          6  relationship between the Election Assistance

          7  Commission, and Ciber Testing Laboratory.

          8                 The list of problems with the present

          9  setup is too long for one person to recount.  So, I

         10  would ask you to heed the voices of people who say

         11  that we have too many doubts, and we need to

         12  preserve a first- hand voter- marked paper ballot to

         13  preserve our democratic rights to a fair voting

         14  process.

         15                 In the Netherlands electronic voting

         16  machines were removed from use in elections because

         17  they wanted to avoid even the appearance of using

         18  equipment whose radio waves might be interfered

         19  with.  They didn't think anyone was interfering, but

         20  they didn't want to lose popular confidence in the

         21  electoral process by using equipment the public had

         22  doubts about.

         23                 We shouldn't either.

         24                 Please pass Resolution 131 out of

         25  committee.
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          2                 MS. ROGERS:  Good afternoon, my name

          3  is Sherry Rogers.  I currently serve as the Vice

          4  President of the Brooklyn Queens Chapter of the

          5  National Organization for Women.  Our Chapter has

          6  been actively involved in monitoring the process

          7  used to select the new voting technology for New

          8  York State since 2005.

          9                 We have reviewed the voting machines

         10  under consideration by the Boards of Elections.  We

         11  have tried using them at the demonstrations.  We

         12  have observed the paid volunteers using the

         13  equipment during the timing tests in Brooklyn in

         14  October 2006, and it is our conclusion that Paper

         15  Ballot and Precinct- Based Optical Scanners are the

         16  best of the available proposed technology.

         17                 I have provided a list of reasons

         18  below, but I want to keep my testimony brief.

         19                 Suffragists fought for many years to

         20  get the vote. We don't want to turn our votes over

         21  to electronic voting systems, which close off the

         22  entire voting process from observation and keep

         23  citizens from understanding what's going on. That

         24  kind of concealment turns elections in a shams.

         25                 For these reasons, we urge you to
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          2  pass Resolution 131 out of committee, and enable it

          3  to come to a vote in the full City Council.

          4                 Since I have a few seconds, I just

          5  want to go to one of the points I made, and that's

          6  the bottom bullet on my testimony.

          7                 On October 27th, we observed the

          8  testing of the proposed DRE equipment by the Board

          9  of Elections.  The average time taken for persons

         10  who received training ranged from 4.22 minutes to

         11  6.15 minutes.  We're concerned that voters will not

         12  have the luxury of one-on-one trainers to assist

         13  them with questions on Election Day.  Voters will

         14  not have the luxury of unlimited time to wait on

         15  line to vote, and to understand how to use the

         16  equipment and to verify the votes they cast.  Long

         17  lines will disenfranchise the voters.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Matt Slotkin

         20  (phonetic), and Dan Jacoby.  Left to right this

         21  time.

         22                 MR. JACOBY:  Hi, I'm Dan Jacoby.  I

         23  am with Democracy for New York City.

         24                 I want to first bring up something

         25  that hasn't been mentioned yet today, and is in
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          2  testimony I submitted earlier, and that's what

          3  happens when the machines break down on Election

          4  Day.

          5                 With an Optical Scan system, voters

          6  are still going to get the same ballot they get

          7  anyway.  They're going to fill it out the same way

          8  they would fill it out anyway.  The only difference

          9  is that instead of running it into a Scanner, they

         10  put it into a ballot box.  That's it.

         11                 With DRE's you have to switch from an

         12  electronic system to a paper system.  You're going

         13  to have to set up privacy booths, you're going to

         14  have long lines building up while all of this

         15  switch- over is made, not to mention the anxiety and

         16  the problems that Council Member Dickens referred to

         17  earlier with the paper ballots.

         18                 With that in mind, and then you add

         19  in the three-to-one cost ratio that Commissioner

         20  Kellner talked about.  Paper Ballot/Optical Scan

         21  system is cheaper, easier to set up and run,

         22  verifiable, subject to fewer breakdowns and fewer

         23  problems when the machines do break down.

         24                 With 43, well currently 49 city

         25  council members, plus the public advocate on board,
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          2  including I'd like say, all 14 council members from

          3  my home borough of Queens, the real question now is

          4  what are we waiting for?

          5                 Let's vote already, and then get onto

          6  the other challenging problems that this City faces.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. SLOTKIN:  My name is Matt

          9  Slotkin, and I'm a resident of 307 East 44th Street,

         10  which as I said earlier is in Carolyn Maloney's

         11  district.

         12                 I've testified on this issue quite a

         13  few times, and now I'm urging you to pass Resolution

         14  131.  Enough of the mumbo-jumbo, only because I

         15  remember a time when Reso. 228 was passed in this

         16  very Chambers, and the room was packed, I was

         17  sitting right up there and urging you to, Council

         18  Member Felder, Brewer, and whoever else, action

         19  Jackson to pass Reso. 131 because it's about time

         20  that it got passed, and the reason for this hearing

         21  today is that we want to avoid the hanging chads in

         22  the state of Florida.  You know, they're those

         23  little pieces of paper that hang off that we

         24  encountered in the state of Florida back in 2000.

         25                 Furthermore, we want to make voting
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          2  machines accessible to the disabled, as far as the

          3  height and width of them are.  I tried to ask my

          4  colleague Mr. Belisle before what the height and

          5  width of the voting machines were, but he really

          6  wasn't sure.  So, just want to clarify those points.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Before we

          9  conclude, we just want to read into the record the

         10  names of some people who submitted testimony who

         11  could not make it.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Marge

         13  Acosta (phonetic), Malcolm Varon, Leonard Peters,

         14  Charles Michael Couch, Bridget Cook, Beth Franzese,

         15  Adele Bender, Katherine Jacobson, Ronald Crenshaw,

         16  Sue Bernhard, David Finklestein, Fran Baskin, Gloria

         17  Mattera, Jane Colvin, Rona Beame, Marjorie Gersten,

         18  Diana Finch, and that's it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Now you can shut

         20  off the mic, and allow me to do what I get paid for.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I just want

         22  to thank everyone who joined us, particularly State

         23  Commissioner Douglas Kellner for staying the whole

         24  time.  I think that deserves a clap.  He's been

         25  doing it for a long time, and it's nice that he
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          2  continues.  Thank you, Sir.

          3                 The issue for me is, of course, the

          4  technology that supports security, and the question

          5  is between the access at the schools or whatever,

          6  the voting place is, and the work that's done to

          7  prevent any kind of breech in that security is what

          8  I hope the technology and the training will go

          9  toward. Obviously, if you have, as I support and I

         10  think you all know that, have from the very

         11  beginning the optical scanners, you have less of a

         12  problem. But I can tell you from knowing the schools

         13  and working technology in the schools, any kind of

         14  outage could create a challenge there. There is no

         15  end to the need to plan for the best possible

         16  technology.

         17                 So, I chair that Committee and look

         18  forward to continuing to work on the topic, and

         19  certainly it's a pleasure to co-chair

         20  this particular hearing with Council Member Simcha

         21  Felder.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 I echo your comments.  I echol your
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          2  comments, not about your pleasure of Co-chairing

          3  with me, about Co-chairing with you.

          4                 Before we conclude today's hearing,

          5  I'd also like to thank State Board of Election

          6  Commissioner, Doug Kellner who was here from the

          7  beginning until the very, very end, except for the

          8  time that he had to step out for a moment, and that

          9  was exactly when somebody said he must have left.

         10  But he was here from the beginning to the end, and

         11  we appreciate it, and the testimony he provided, and

         12  providing more clarity on HAVA progress from the

         13  State perspective, very much appreciated.

         14                 Also, my colleague Councilman Barron

         15  who had been persistent, to say the least. To say

         16  the least, yes. Again, it is an indication, for your

         17  own edification, when members come and stay from the

         18  beginning of a hearing until the very end, despite

         19  very, very complex schedules, and sometimes those

         20  are members that can, sometimes not of the

         21  Committee, he's not even on any of the committees,

         22  but I don't want to make him feel too good.  So, let

         23  me move on.

         24                 I'd also like to thank the

         25  representative from the City Board of Elections for
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          2  providing the testimony remaining. Is there anyone

          3  here from the City Board of Elections?

          4                 Thank you very, very much for

          5  remaining until the end, to hear the other

          6  testimony.

          7                 Finally, I'd like to thank all my

          8  colleagues who were able to come, in particular, my

          9  Co-chair Council Member Brewer for agreeing and

         10  being willing to Co-chair a meeting with me.

         11                 The Council remains committed to

         12  oversight of this issue, and looks forward to the

         13  day when New York City has new, reliable and secure

         14  voting systems.  Thank you very much.

         15                 That concludes today's hearing.

         16                 (Written testimony read into the

         17  record.)

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  United Spinal Association

         21  John P. Herrion, Esq.

         22

         23                 My name is John Herrion, and I am an

         24  attorney for the United Spinal Association, located

         25  in Jackson Heights, New York.  United Spinal

                                                            183

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  Association is dedicated to providing expertise,

          3  creating access to resources and strengthening hope,

          4  thereby enabling person with spinal cord injuries

          5  and disorders to fulfill their potential as active

          6  members of their communities.

          7                 For individuals with disabilities the

          8  simple act of voting can be difficult, if not

          9  impossible, due to the inaccessibility of voting

         10  machines and polling places.  In 2002, Congress

         11  addressed this problem and passed the Help America

         12  Vote Act (HAVA) to ensure that every American

         13  qualified to vote can exercise this fundamental

         14  civil right.

         15                 HAVA requires that voting systems be

         16  accessible for individuals with disabilities in a

         17  manner that allows accessibility, independence and

         18  privacy.

         19                 United Spinal Association is aware of

         20  the technological challenges that exist to create

         21  voting machines that perfect these goals.

         22                 It is for this reason the United

         23  Spinal Association is unable to endorse any one

         24  machine.  Rather, United Spinal Association chooses

         25  to endorse a process that ensures accessibility,

                                                            184

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY

          2  independence, and privacy for voters with

          3  disabilities.

          4                 United Spinal Association includes a

          5  significant number of members who are quadriplegic,

          6  and have limited dexterity and use of their arms,

          7  hands and fingers.  It is this group of citizens and

          8  voters that United Spinal Association remains most

          9  concerned about in analyzing the accessibility,

         10  independence and privacy of a voting system.  These

         11  individuals may require the assistance of a third

         12  party to place the paper ballot that is produced

         13  from an Optical Scan machine in a ballot box,

         14  thereby compromising their independence and privacy.

         15                 In addition, these same voters may

         16  lack the dexterity to accurately use a direct

         17  recording electronic touchscreen thereby making

         18  these machines inaccessible to them.

         19                 The machines currently being

         20  reviewed, whether they produce a paper ballot that

         21  must be handled by a third party, or electronically

         22  record a touch on a screen to count a vote must

         23  include a process whereby accessibility,

         24  independence and privacy are provided to voters with

         25  disabilities in the most extensive manner possible.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3

          4  Written Testimony Of:

          5  Assemblyman Keith L. T. Wright

          6

          7                 Thank you Chairperson Felder and

          8  Brewer, and honorable members of the New York City

          9  Council Government Operations and Technology in

         10  Government Committees for allowing me to present my

         11  testimony regarding developments with New York

         12  City's compliance with the Help America Vote Act of

         13  2002, and security issues relating to the selection

         14  of permanent voting systems.

         15                 As the Chairman of the State Assembly

         16  Standing Committee on Election Law, I have to date,

         17  borne much of the blame for the delays in the

         18  passage of the legislation required to enact the

         19  Help America Vote Act (HAVA), in New York State. For

         20  these delays, I will be eternally grateful.

         21                 Thankfully, we in the State Assembly,

         22  resisted the urge to bypass debate and constructive

         23  conference committees, simply to get the monies

         24  promised by the Federal Government at our earliest

         25  possible convenience.  If we hadn't resisted the
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          2  urge to get as much money as possible as fast as

          3  possible, we might be in situations akin to what

          4  many other states are faced; with accusations of

          5  computerized voting fraud, computerized voting

          6  miscounts and other areas of concern which have been

          7  associated with HAVA's implementation and failures.

          8                 New York State is at a critical

          9  juncture, with the certification of voting machines

         10  being undertaken by the New York State Board of

         11  Elections.  This process is another I do not believe

         12  we should rush.

         13                 Earlier this year we were presented

         14  with a great reason as to why we should not rush

         15  this crucial step in the preservation of open

         16  democracy in New York.  Ciber, Inc., the company

         17  charged with testing New York's direct recording

         18  electronic (DRE) voting machines, was barred by the

         19  federal Electoral Assistance Commission from

         20  accrediting new state voting systems because of

         21  problems in their quality- control procedures. Ciber

         22  did not even bother informing our State Board of

         23  Elections about this highly significant development

         24  nor suspend their testing of our machines.  This is

         25  not only very concerning, it is possibly devastating
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          2  to the progress in the selection of machines, which

          3  we have made to date.

          4                 I encourage the State Board of

          5  Elections, in concurrence with New York City Council

          6  Resolution 131, to certify Precinct- Based/Optical

          7  Scan (PB/OS) voting machines, rather than the

          8  controversial and possibly corruptible DRE machines.

          9                 The fact that we are already

         10  experiencing problems with DRE's through their

         11  accreditation, does not portend well for their

         12  future of the future of voting in New York if they

         13  were to be implemented. I recommend that the New

         14  York City Council continue to be strident with their

         15  support of this resolution, but at the same time, be

         16  considerate to the timeframe associated with the

         17  accreditation process.

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  State Senator Liz Krueger

         21

         22                 Good morning.  I am State Senator Liz

         23  Krueger, representing the 26th Senate District in

         24  Manhattan.  I am here today to express serious

         25  concerns regarding the serious concerns regarding
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          2  the failure of the federal Election Assistance

          3  Commissioner (EAC) and the voting machine testing

          4  company Ciber to provide New York State with

          5  information regarding the problems with Ciber that

          6  led EAC to deny them accreditation.

          7                 It is outrageous that EAC and Ciber

          8  are undermining confidence in the certification

          9  process through their intransigence on releasing

         10  this information.

         11                 I strongly support the adoption of

         12  Precinct Based Optical Scanning (PB/OS) voting

         13  systems for conducting future elections in the City,

         14  but do not believe we should move forward with any

         15  new system until it has been thoroughly tested by a

         16  reliable and truly independent testing entity.

         17                 At present, the problem with Ciber,

         18  the company originally chosen by New York State to

         19  conduct an evaluation of competing voting systems,

         20  and the secrecy surrounding those problems undermine

         21  my confidence in the testing process.  Given the

         22  options, New York City and State should eventually

         23  adopt PB/OS voting technology, but oppose the

         24  certification of any machines until the testing can

         25  be resolved.
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          2                 Fair elections are the centerpiece of

          3  our democracy, and in order to protect that

          4  democracy we must adopt the voting system that is

          5  the most reliable, verifiable, and easy for the

          6  voter and poll worker to understand.  As a paper

          7  ballot- based system, PB/OS meets these standards,

          8  and is clearly preferable to computerized Direct

          9  Recording Electronic (DRE) systems, which require

         10  voters to trust the software, make verification

         11  difficult even with a Voter- Verified Paper Trail,

         12  and are more complicated for both voters and

         13  election workers to use.

         14                 The recent 2006 election has just

         15  confirmed the continuing problems with DRE's.  Once

         16  again, the results of a race in Florida are being

         17  contested, this time because one county had more

         18  that 18,000 ballots where no votes were recorded in

         19  the congressional race, compared to less than 2,000

         20  undervotes for every other county.  Since Florida

         21  has no requirement for a Voter- Verified Paper

         22  Trail, there is no way to know whether these results

         23  are due to machine error, voter error, or simply an

         24  unusually large number of voters choosing not to

         25  vote in that race.
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          2                 There were literally hundreds of

          3  other reports of serious problems with DRE machines

          4  reported across the country, including vote-

          5  switching, power failures, broken machines, and

          6  falsely recorded tallies.  These problems just

          7  confirm the results of numerous studies into DRE

          8  systems which have indicated they have a higher rate

          9  of spoiled or unmarked ballots than PB/OS systems,

         10  that they are easier to sabotage, and that they can

         11  be hacked to alter the voting results recorded by

         12  these machines.

         13                 New York State law does require a

         14  Voter- Verified Paper Trail for any new voting

         15  system, which certainly increases the ability to

         16  ensure that election results are valid.

         17                 However, even with a Voter- Verified

         18  Paper Trail, DRE's do not perform as well as Paper-

         19  Based PB/OS systems in terms of verification.   The

         20  mechanism for verifying the vote in a PB/OS system

         21  is the actual paper ballot cast by the voter, which

         22  is available for counting later if there are any

         23  discrepancies with the Optical scanner tallies.

         24                 With DRE machines, the verification

         25  method is a printed copy of the voter's record.  In
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          2  practice this mechanism can fail in a number of

          3  ways.

          4                 First, printers can malfunction, thus

          5  eliminating the record altogether.

          6                 Second, if the voter does not

          7  actually check to make sure the printed record

          8  records their vote as they entered it on the

          9  machine, the record will be inaccurate.

         10                 Finally, the quality of this record

         11  has been compromised in the past by poor printer

         12  quality.  In an attempted recount of Ohio precincts

         13  from 2004 using DRE's with a voter Verifiable Paper

         14  tTail, fully ten percent of the printed records were

         15  found to be unreadable.  Thus while it is certainly

         16  better to have a DRE with a paper trail than one

         17  without, this method of verification remains

         18  inferior to the actual marked ballots that are

         19  available with a PB/OS system.

         20                 In addition to these technical

         21  problems, I am also concerned that DRE's create

         22  significant usability issues for both voters and

         23  poll workers.  Voting systems must be user friendly,

         24  and not intimidate voters.  I have heard from

         25  numerous constituents who are not familiar with
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          2  computers and doubt their ability to us DRE

          3  technology.

          4                 These voters could effectively be

          5  disenfranchised if such technology is adopted.  I

          6  also have serious concerns about the ability of poll

          7  workers to address the technical problems that often

          8  occur with DRE's.

          9                 Again, reports of election problems

         10  throughout the country in 2004 and 2006 often

         11  involve the inability of the poll workers in

         12  particular jurisdictions to resolve problems with

         13  machines, or to adequately instruct voters as t the

         14  operation of these machines.  With something as

         15  important as voting, we should recognize that a

         16  simple, easy- to- understand, user friendly system

         17  is preferable to a complex one.

         18                 A final issue with DRE's that must be

         19  taken into account is the fact that because there

         20  have been so many well reported problems with them,

         21  many voters do not believe this technology can be

         22  trusted.

         23                 A CNN poll conducted in October of

         24  2006 found that 66 percent of respondents felt it

         25  was somewhat or very likely that a significant
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          2  number of votes cast on DRE's would be inaccurately

          3  recorded due to the intentional actions of hackers

          4  or others attempting to manipulate the vote.  This

          5  is a critical problem for our democracy.  If people

          6  do not believe their vote is going to be accurately

          7  recorded, they are less likely to participate in the

          8  political process.

          9                 New York State should not be adopting

         10  a voting system viewed as lacking legitimacy in the

         11  eyes of the public.

         12                 Fortunately, three of the vendors who

         13  want to provide voting systems to New York City are

         14  offering PB/OS systems with ballot- marking devices

         15  for people with disabilities. New York City should

         16  only consider these systems.  Precinct- based

         17  Optical Scan systems have numerous advantages over

         18  DRE's; they are more reliable, a recent study by the

         19  Brennan Center found that PB/OS systems had

         20  significantly lower voter error rates than full-

         21  faced DRE's; votes are easier to verify with PB/OS

         22  systems because the actual paper ballot can be used

         23  to verify the vote; PB/OS systems are also less

         24  technically complex, making them easier to use for

         25  both voters and poll workers; and finally, while
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          2  cost should not be a determining factor for

          3  something as important as our election system,

          4  experience has shown that PB/OS systems cost

          5  significantly less, particularly with regard to

          6  maintenance and replacement costs, than DRE systems.

          7                 For these reasons, I strongly support

          8  the purpose of Resolution 131, calling for the City

          9  Board of Elections to adopt Precinct- Based Optical

         10  Scanning technology, and for the State Board to

         11  certify PB/OS system.

         12                 However, the State Board of Elections

         13  certification process will likely be delayed due to

         14  the denial of accreditation for Ciber Labs, which

         15  was supposed to perform testing of machines for New

         16  York State, as well as by the failure of Ciber and

         17  the EAC to release information requested by the

         18  State Board of Elections.  I believe it is critical

         19  that all questions regarding the testing process be

         20  resolved before any machines are certified, as

         21  whatever new voting technology we adopt must be

         22  subject to the strictest standards for reliability.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  testify today.

         25
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          2  Written Testimony Of:

          3  Malcolm Varon

          4

          5                 Thank you for holding this hearing.

          6  Open government is the basis for public trust.

          7                 I urge you to pass Resolution 131 to

          8  advocate paper ballot and Optical Scanner voting

          9  equipment when our New York City Board of Elections

         10  has to replace our current tried and- true

         11  mechanical voting machines.

         12                 We need to find a way of conducting

         13  elections that the public can trust.

         14                 Computerized voting machines conceal

         15  how the votes are handled, and cannot maintain

         16  public trust.  As soon as there is a problem,

         17  everyone will suspect tampering, and no one will be

         18  able to prove that tampering did not occur.  The

         19  paper trail might not be verified by all voters.

         20  With computerized voting machines we do not have a

         21  first- hand record of the votes, only a second- hand

         22  record made by the computer.

         23                 Optical scanners are only counting

         24  machines.  It is easy to run a test deck through a

         25  scanner and discover whether or not the scanner is
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          2  working properly.  I believe that Voter Marked paper

          3  ballots and Optical Scanners will result in voter

          4  confidence and public trust.

          5                 Please pass Resolution 131.

          6                 Thank you.

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Leonard Peters

         10

         11                 New Yorkers are busy people who don't

         12  like to wait on lines.  Perhaps that's why there is

         13  Starbucks and drug stores at ever corner.  If there

         14  is a line, we keep walking.

         15                 An independent study commissioned by

         16  the State Board of Elections, known as the AIR

         17  Study, measured how long it takes to vote on a DRE

         18  and on Optical Scan system.  The study found that it

         19  took about four minutes to vote on a Sequoia and

         20  Avante DRE, and about 30 seconds to insert a ballot

         21  into an Optical Scanner including listening to a

         22  speech on whether or not the test voter wanted to

         23  override the undervote notification.

         24                 If you do the math, it comes out that

         25  Avante or Sequoia DRE's can accommodate between 207
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          2  and 247 people per machine per day.  That's between

          3  14 and 16 people per hour, not counting people who

          4  may take a little longer due to lack of experience

          5  with computers, disabilities, et cetera, and hold up

          6  the line.

          7                 The Diebold Optical Scan and ES&S Op

          8  Scan machines can handle between 1,588 and 2,571

          9  people per day.  That is between 106 and 171 per

         10  hour, again without counting voters who take a

         11  little longer.

         12                 What this means is that the Op Scan

         13  machines can handle two people per minute, while the

         14  DRE's take four minutes for one voter.

         15                 Duane Reade would be out of business

         16  if its lines took eight times longer than its

         17  competitors' lines.  New Yorkers may plan to come

         18  back later when it's not so crowded because it's

         19  pretty easy for us to get around, but people in

         20  other areas who drive to their polling site may not

         21  have time to come back later. Hourly workers may not

         22  be able to afford to come back later, having already

         23  missed time at work.  Long lines result in

         24  disenfranchisement.

         25                 What about the cost of equipment?  If
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          2  there are 100 people in my building and we all go to

          3  vote between 8 A.M. and 9 A.M. on Election Day, how

          4  many voting machines would the school next door need

          5  in order to serve us without a long wait?

          6                 With one Op Scan machine, at the cost

          7  of about $11,000 for the scanner and accessible

          8  Ballot- Marking Device, all of us could vote in 50

          9  minutes.  It would take six or seven DRE's at the

         10  cost of $8,000 to $10,000 each to provide the same

         11  service.

         12                 The bottom line:  Op Scan machines

         13  provide better service because they can serve more

         14  voters per hour, fewer machines are needed, which

         15  cuts the cost of buying, transporting, storing, and

         16  maintaining the machines.

         17                 Please pass Resolution 131 out of

         18  committee, and recommend it for passage by the

         19  entire City Council.  It is time for the City

         20  Council's voice to be heard.

         21                 Thank you.

         22

         23  Written Testimony Of:

         24  Charles Michael Couch

         25
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          2                 Thank you for holding this hearing,

          3  and giving me an opportunity to speak.  My

          4  background as a certified electronics technician,

          5  computer technician, programmer, systems analyst,

          6  and database programmer; is the basis for my

          7  comments.

          8                 In a democracy, elections have to be

          9  conducted in a way that lets the people participate,

         10  and see that the process is legitimate; votes are

         11  recorded and cast as the voters intend, votes are

         12  not tampered with after they are cast and while they

         13  are in storage, votes are not tampered with when

         14  they are retrieved for counting, votes are counted

         15  as cast.

         16                 Even if electronic voting equipment

         17  worked perfectly, it does not serve the needs of

         18  elections in a democracy.  This is why the

         19  international standards emphasize observation.

         20                 Here in New York state, our current

         21  laws requires you to select either DRE electronic

         22  voting machines, or paper ballots and Optical

         23  scanners with accessible ballot- marking devices for

         24  voters who have disabilities or non- English

         25  languages.
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          2                 DRE's prevent each voter from

          3  observing his or her own vote recording and ballot

          4  casting, and prevent election observers from

          5  observing the storage, handling, and counting of

          6  votes.

          7                 The paper ballot option prevents

          8  election observers from observing the counting of

          9  the votes.  However, by using test batches to check

         10  the scanner and other measures, the accuracy of

         11  scanners can be made reliable.

         12                 It is clear from this comparison that

         13  we should choose paper ballots, Optical scanners,

         14  and ballot- marking devices when we have to replace

         15  our mechanical lever voting machines.

         16                 Therefore, I urge you to pass

         17  Resolution 131 out of committee for a vote by the

         18  City Council.

         19                 Thank you.

         20

         21  Written Testimony Of:

         22  Bridget Cooke

         23

         24                 I want to thank the Governmental

         25  Operations Committee and Technology in Government
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          2  Committee for holding this hearing so that members

          3  of the public can express their views on the very

          4  critical issue of buying new election equipment.

          5                 My name is Bridget Cook, and I am a

          6  resident of Manhattan and a long- time voter.

          7                 I have followed with dismay and fear

          8  the many news stories around the country of

          9  malfunctioning voting equipment.

         10                 I want to urge you to pass Resolution

         11  131 to urge our Board of Elections to choose paper

         12  ballots and Optical scanners.  These are far more

         13  reliable than the direct recording computer devices.

         14    The paper ballot- scanner technology is one that

         15  voters can trust.  And the use of paper ballots and

         16  Optical scanners requires much less money not only

         17  for purchase, but also for the maintenance of this

         18  equipment.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20

         21  Written Testimony Of:

         22  Beth Franzese

         23

         24                 We have recently learned that the

         25  Ciber testing laboratory is not federally certified.
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          2                 This calls into question all of the

          3  voting systems in the nation that were tested by

          4  Ciber.  We have seen many failures and

          5  irregularities associated with federally certified

          6  electronic voting equipment.  Activists have said

          7  for years that federal certification was not a

          8  guarantee that an electronic voting machine worked.

          9  Now we have an idea of why that is true.

         10                 What does this mean about the

         11  equipment submitted to New York State?  It means

         12  that these new machines, designed to meet New York

         13  State's unique requirements, were derived from

         14  machines that caused problems elsewhere, that may

         15  never have been rigorously tested.  It means that

         16  the same kinds of failures that occurred in other

         17  states could happen here, especially if we have to

         18  rush to certify, and buy, and use this equipment.

         19                 It means that we should not rely on

         20  computer technology to help us run good elections.

         21                 We should stick with the most low-

         22  tech equipment available to us.  If we cannot keep

         23  our mechanical lever machines, we should choose

         24  paper ballots, Optical scanners, and ballot- marking

         25  devices for voters with special needs.
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          2                 This is so important that I urge you

          3  not to sit silent while the decisions are being made

          4  by others.  Everyone must take an interest and do

          5  what he or she can to make sure that New York does

          6  not end up with electronic voting machines.

          7                 Please bring Resolution 131 to a

          8  vote, and let it out of committee for a vote by the

          9  full council.

         10                 Thank you.

         11

         12  Written Testimony Of:

         13  Adele Bender

         14

         15                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         16  provide testimony.

         17                 Democracy is so important, we should

         18  not risk it by putting other concerns ahead of it.

         19                 Other concerns might be convenience

         20  or quick results or being modern or using the latest

         21  fancy computer.

         22                 It is more important for each voter

         23  to be able to make their choices in a way that

         24  everyone understands.  It is more important for each

         25  voter to know that their ballot reflects their
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          2  intent.

          3                 I believe that this cannot happen

          4  with an electronic voting machine, since most of us

          5  don't understand computers, and we can't observe our

          6  own ballot inside the computer.

          7                 The paper trail on electronic voting

          8  machines will only be used for a three percent spot-

          9  check, and we don't know how many voters will be

         10  able to verify it accurately, or how many will be

         11  rushing and just assume that it is correct.

         12                 A ballot that is filled out by the

         13  voter's own hand or by a ballot- marking device is

         14  more likely to be understood, and to be accurate.

         15                 For these reasons, I urge you to pass

         16  Resolution 131 out of committee, and to work for its

         17  unanimous passing vote in the City Council.  We need

         18  this resolution to urge our City Board of Elections

         19  to select an Optical scanner system, and not a DRE

         20  system, for New York City.

         21                 Thank you.

         22

         23  Written Testimony Of:

         24  Katherine Jacobson

         25
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          2                 Resolution 131, advocating the use of

          3  paper ballots and Optical scanners for New York City

          4  elections, is under your review.

          5                 I urge you to vote on this

          6  resolution, and release it for consideration by the

          7  entire Council.

          8                 Your support for this well

          9  established technology will surely impress upon the

         10  Board of Elections the desire of New York voters for

         11  a trustworthy and open election process.

         12                 Thank you for letting me add my voice

         13  to the discussion.

         14

         15  Written Testimony Of:

         16  Ronald Crenshaw

         17

         18                 Thank you for allowing me to submit

         19  this statement.

         20                 I urge you to vote Resolution 131 out

         21  of committee so it can be passed by the City

         22  Council, and urge the Board of Elections to select a

         23  paper ballot, Optical scanner system.

         24                 My reason is, computer systems cannot

         25  be verified due to the nature of electronic hacking.
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          2

          3                 For something as important as our

          4  elections we should avoid relying on computers as

          5  much as possible.  A voter marked paper ballot gives

          6  us a real foundation for verifying election results

          7  and the work of the scanners.

          8

          9  Written Testimony Of:

         10  Sue Bernhard

         11                 Thank you for holding a hearing to

         12  listen to the public's concerns.

         13                 I oppose the use of electronic voting

         14  machines. DRE's, because of security concerns.

         15                 Recently the Supervisor of Elections

         16  in Riverside, California, issued a challenge to

         17  local activists, saying that he would match money

         18  with them, 1,000 to one, that they could not hack

         19  the county's Sequoia DRE's.

         20                 Local activists immediately accepted

         21  the challenge, and posted $1,000 as their side of

         22  the bet.

         23                 The Bradblog website has a summary of

         24  recent developments in Riverside County, with links

         25  to other documents and coverage of the challenge.
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          2  (http://www.bradblog.com/?p=4043)

          3                 The county has backed off from their

          4  challenge, causing everyone to say that they knew

          5  all along their equipment was easily hackable, and

          6  that insiders are the greatest threat to all

          7  computer systems including voting systems.

          8                 We know that voting systems may be

          9  certified at the federal and state level, but saying

         10  that an examination on one day will prevent problems

         11  the next day, is like saying you check you tire

         12  pressure today, you won't get a flat tomorrow.

         13                 Computer systems are inherently

         14  insecure, and our City must minimize our reliance on

         15  computer technology in our elections.

         16                 I urge you to pass Resolution 131 out

         17  of committee so that the entire City Council can

         18  vote on it.  It is important for our city council to

         19  express its understanding of the dangers of

         20  electronic voting, and to urge our Board of

         21  Elections to choose a Paper Ballot/Optical scanner

         22  system for New York City when we have to replace our

         23  current mechanical equipment.

         24                 Thank you.

         25
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          2  Written Testimony Of:

          3  David Finkelstein

          4

          5                 My name is David Finkelstein, and I

          6  live in Brooklyn, New York.  I urge you to vote on

          7  Resolution 131 to pass it from committee to the

          8  floor of the New York City Council.

          9                 Every voice must be heard, to urge

         10  the New York City Board of Elections to adopt paper

         11  ballots and Optical scanners as our new voting

         12  machines.  I am opposed to the use of electronic

         13  voting machines, also known as DRE's.

         14                 I have many reasons to prefer paper

         15  ballots over DRE's, but for me, one of the most

         16  important reasons is that the inherent, unfixable

         17  security problems of DRE's mean that, if the city

         18  were to choose DRE's as our voting machines, every

         19  future election result would be under a permanent

         20  cloud of suspicion. Voters in New York would cease

         21  to have full confidence that their votes were

         22  counted accurately, and that the elections results

         23  were correct.

         24                 I know that New York requires DRE's

         25  to produce a Voter- Verified paper printout, but the
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          2  Brennan Center for Justice's report "The Machinery

          3  of Democracy" explained that this printout can also

          4  be tampered with.  Unlike paper ballots/Optical

          5  scanners, the paper printout in a DRE is not a legal

          6  ballot and may not represent the vote that the DRE

          7  is actually recording.  A study quoted by the

          8  Brennan report found that test voters in a study

          9  found only three out of 108 errors in the Voter-

         10  Verifiable printout.  Timing studies conducted by

         11  the State Board of Elections in November 2006 were

         12  marred by failure to instruct voters to verify the

         13  printout.  This means that if we get DRE's, we may

         14  have too few of them.  When voters are in the booth

         15  trying to inspect their printout, they may not have

         16  enough time because of pressure from people who are

         17  still waiting to vote.

         18                 In contrast, I feel confident that

         19  voters marking a paper ballot will not mark the

         20  wrong candidate.

         21                 Jonathan Simon, a lawyer with the

         22  Election Defense Alliance, recently wrote "there is

         23  a remarkable degree of consensus among computer

         24  scientists, security professionals, government

         25  agencies, and independent analysts that U.S.
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          2  Electronic vote tallying technology is vulnerable to

          3  unintentional programming errors and to deliberate

          4  manipulation."

          5                 Many problems across the nation with

          6  the November 2006 election indicate why DRE's are

          7  not capable of providing trustable results.

          8                 For example, in Sarasota County,

          9  Florida, 18,000 ballots on DRE's registered no vote

         10  at all, but officials say the machines "do not

         11  record the level of detail" needed to be able to

         12  trace and correct the problem.

         13                 In Jefferson County, Texas, voters on

         14  DRE's complained that the machine was switching

         15  their vote to the opposing candidate.

         16                 Nationwide, Jonathan Simon believes

         17  that the four percent discrepancy between the exit

         18  polls and the official vote results on November 7 is

         19  far outside the margin of error of the polls, and

         20  that problems with DRE's are largely responsible.

         21                 Optical scanners, on the other hand,

         22  work with paper ballots, which are much easier to

         23  secure than the invisible electronic ballots

         24  produced by DRE's.  With paper ballots, it is easier

         25  to produce election results which the people of New
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          2  York will trust and respect.  As a result of this

          3  trust, government will be able to function more

          4  effectively.

          5                 Thank you.

          6

          7  Written Testimony Of:

          8  Fran Baskin

          9

         10                 I support paper ballots and Optical

         11  scanners with accessible ballot- marking machines

         12  for voters with special needs.

         13                 With paper ballots, everyone votes on

         14  the same kind of ballot.  After you fill it out, it

         15  goes through the scanner and into a sealed box.  If

         16  something goes wrong, the box can be opened and the

         17  paper can be read and counted.  You don't have to be

         18  a technical computer person to read and count paper

         19  ballots.

         20                 With electronic voting machines, you

         21  can't be sure of the electronic records, and you

         22  can't be sure that the voters have verified their

         23  Voter- Verifiable paper printout.  A paper ballot

         24  filled out by the voter directly or with a ballot-

         25  marking machine is better.
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          2                 Please pass Resolution 131 to urge

          3  the New York City Board of Elections to select a

          4  paper ballot and Optical scanner system when we have

          5  to replace the lever voting machines.

          6                 Thank you.

          7

          8  Written Testimony Of:

          9  Gloria Mattera

         10

         11                 My name is Gloria Mattera, and I live

         12  in 437 2 Street in Park Slope, Brooklyn.

         13                 I urge the Governmental Operations

         14  Committee to vote Resolution 131 out of committee,

         15  and recommend it for passage to the entire City

         16  Council.

         17                 Elections must be observable.

         18  Everyone must be able to witness the procedures.

         19  This can't happen if we use electronic voting

         20  machines.

         21                 Please do not delay speaking up for

         22  democracy. Please do not delay the passage of this

         23  resolution.

         24                 Although New York may be the last

         25  state to take the important step of selecting new
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          2  voting equipment, I believe that we can take the

          3  most thoughtful and democratic step with your

          4  support.

          5                 Please pass Resolution 131 for paper

          6  ballots and Optical scanners, if we have to replace

          7  our mechanical lever voting machines.

          8                 Thank you.

          9

         10  Written Testimony Of:

         11  Jane Colvin

         12

         13                 Thank you for holding this hearing.

         14  My name is Jane Colvin, and I am a member of the

         15  League of Women Voters and a registered voter in

         16  Manhattan.

         17                 I am here to urge you to pass

         18  Resolution 131 out of committee for a vote by the

         19  City Council.  It is appropriate for this Body to

         20  urge our City Board of Elections to select paper

         21  ballots and Optical Scanner machines, not DRE's.

         22                 I went to the voting machine

         23  demonstration in Queens and the Bronx in November

         24  2006, and listened carefully.

         25                 The demonstrations were impressive;
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          2  the DRE voting machines, however, were not.

          3                 Compared to the DRE system, the PB/OS

          4  system is; economically superior, easier for poll

          5  workers to support, and easier to find and correct

          6  errors.

          7                 I believe that others will address

          8  the issues of ease of use and accuracy.  I would

          9  like to emphasize the advantageous economics of the

         10  PB/OS system.

         11                 On a strictly economic basis the

         12  PB/OS system is a low- cost winner.  Financially,

         13  it; costs much less than DRE's to purchase, costs

         14  proportionately less to use and maintain, costs less

         15  for poll worker training, and lasts 15 to 20 years

         16  versus five to ten years for the DRE's.

         17                 The PB/OS system is economical in

         18  another important respect; because voters require

         19  less time to use the scanner, it can serve more

         20  voters than a DRE, as a result, fewer machines will

         21  be required to replace the lever machines.  This

         22  means that with the PB/OS system, New York City;

         23  will be able to continue using our current polling

         24  places, will spend less for purchasing and

         25  maintaining the machines.
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          2                 I urge you to examine cost

          3  information from the website www.ncvoter.net. Their

          4  report entitled Operating Cost Comparison for

          5  Different Types of Voting Systems provides a

          6  comparison of total annual expenditures for

          7  touchscreens and Optical scanner in North Carolina,

          8  demonstrating the economy of the PB/OS system from a

          9  state that has experience with both kinds

         10  of voting equipment.

         11                 Thank you for your attention.

         12

         13  Written Testimony Of:

         14  Rona Beame

         15

         16                 I support Resolution 131.

         17                 I feel like the child standing on the

         18  sidewalk watching the emperor proudly parade down

         19  the street naked as all his courtiers applaud his

         20  new clothes.

         21                 It seems just as obvious to me that

         22  electronic touchscreen machines are a bad choice.

         23                 Touchscreen machines with printers do

         24  not have a reliable paper trail.  When machines

         25  break down which they have a propensity to do, the
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          2  paper trail disappears too.  When machines are

          3  hacked, can we trust their printers?  And not to be

          4  forgotten, the printers also have a record of

          5  jamming.

          6                 The National Institute of Standards

          7  and Technology says that voting systems should not

          8  rely on a machine's software to provide a record of

          9  the votes cast.

         10                 We don't even need other reasons to

         11  reject these machines but I must add these facts:

         12  They are more expensive, it takes longer for voters

         13  to use them which means longer lines at polling

         14  places, they break down more frequently and they

         15  take up more space in warehouses.

         16                 Can anyone give me a good reason why

         17  we would choose touchscreen machines over Optical

         18  scanners?

         19                 I can't think of a single reason to

         20  do so.

         21                 If Optical scanners are hacked or

         22  break down, you can still determine what a voter

         23  intended.  You have a piece of paper that the voter

         24  marked.

         25                 Governor Erlich of Maryland who
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          2  suffered through several chaotic primaries and

          3  elections with Diebold touchscreens said, "when in

          4  doubt, go paper, go low- tech."

          5                 Warren Stewart, policy director of

          6  VoteTrustUSA said, "We have a perfectly good system

          7     --  the paper ballot/Optical scan system."

          8                 I hope you agree.

          9                 Please pass Resolution 131 out of

         10  committee so it can be passed by the entire City

         11  Council.

         12                 Thank you.

         13

         14  Written Testimony Of:

         15  Marjorie Gersten

         16

         17                 It is very frustrating for ordinary

         18  citizens who read about the failures and scandals in

         19  other states to watch as New York State follows in

         20  the same path.

         21                 It must be frustrating for you also,

         22  if like us, you read the Daily Voting News from

         23  VotersUnite.org and the Election Integrity News from

         24  VoteTrustUSA.org, and see the endless problems other

         25  states and counties have been having with electronic
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          2  voting equipment; cost overruns, errors and

          3  malfunctions, lost votes, and lost confidence that

          4  votes count.

          5                 I urge you to pass Resolution 131 to

          6  urge our New York City Board of Elections to choose

          7  paper ballots, Optical scanners and accessible

          8  ballot-marking devices.  This kind of equipment

          9  involves less reliance on technology because there

         10  is a first-hand record of each voter's intent. They

         11  conceal the least of what needs to be properly

         12  observable by ordinary, non technical citizens.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 1:35 p.m.)
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